
 Mayor & City Council City of College Park 
  3667 Main Street 

 Regular Session Meeting College Park, GA  30337 

 
  http://www.collegeparkga.com 

 ~ Agenda ~ 404-669-3756 (Main) 

 
  Experience College Park 
  Georgia’s Global City 
 

Monday, November 2, 2020 7:30 PM Council Chambers 

Mayor & City Council Page 1 Printed 10/29/2020 

1. Opening Ceremonies 

A. Pledge Of Allegiance 

B. Invocation 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda 

3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council 

A. Approval of Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Approval of Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements 

A. Presentation of a proclamation to Pastor Marjorie Dent in appreciation of her 30 years of 

community service.  See attached proclamation. 

B. Presentation of a proclamation honoring City of College Park Recreation & Cultural Arts 

Program Coordinator, Jerisha Bronson, for her dedicated service and outstanding 

accomplishments. See attached proclamation. 

C. Update on Clayton County’s Community Engagement Initiative by Nickel Works 

Consulting Project Manager Courtney Whitman.  See memorandum dated October 28, 

2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 

5. Remarks of Citizens 

6. Other Business 

A. Update on the Advanced Metering Infrastructure (AMI), billing interface, and other related 

software.   See memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from Director of Power Hugh 

Richardson.  Also, see attached PowerPoint presentation. 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda November 2, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 2 Printed 10/29/2020 

B. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions.  See memorandum 

dated October 28, 2020 from City Clerk Shavala Moore.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 

7. Public Hearings 

A. Consideration of and action on a request to set a Public Hearing to consider the rezoning of 

2154 Rugby Ave from R1 - Low Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential 

Zoning District. A Public Hearing date of November 16, 2020 is recommended.  See 

memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from City Planner Michelle Alexander.  Also, see 

attached supporting documentation. Ward 1. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the replacement of the lighting 

controls system at the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regional Headquarters.  See 

memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore and letter 

dated October 16, 2020 from Colliers International Commercial Property Manager Ron 

Wilkerson requesting approval in the amount of $140,680.00.  Also, see attached 

supporting documentation.  This is a budgeted item.  Ward 3. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of an agreement between the City of 

College Park and the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) to proceed with the services of 

the ARC to update the City of College Park Comprehensive Plan.  See memorandum dated 

October 28, 2020 from City Planner Michelle Alexander recommending approval.  Also, 

see attached scope of work and final comprehensive plan agreement. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

C. Consideration of the Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

(SFCTP).  See memorandum dated October 29, 2020 from Special Projects Administrator 

Jackson Myers.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 



Regular Session Meeting Agenda November 2, 2020 

Mayor & City Council Page 3 Printed 10/29/2020 

D. Consideration of and action on a request for approval to renew end user licenses for 

Microsoft 365.  See memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from Chief Information Officer 

Michael Hicks requesting approval in the amount of $90,513.00. Also, see attached CDWG 

email license quote for end user license and supporting documentation.  This is a budgeted 

item that is divided among all departments. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business 

10. New Business 

A. Policy guidance regarding contracts for special events.  See memorandum dated October 

28, 2020 from City Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, see attached supporting 

documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

B. Considerations regarding term limits.  See memorandum dated October 28, 2020 from City 

Manager Terrence R. Moore.  Also, see attached supporting documentation. 

ACTION: 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 

11. City Attorney's Report 

12. City Manager's Report 

A. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property tax payers.  See memorandum dated 

October 28, 2020 from  Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley.  Also, 

see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.  See memorandum 

dated October 29, 2020 from the Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-

Bradley.  Also, see attached background information.  NO ACTION REQUIRED. 

13. Report of Mayor and Council 

14. Executive Session 

15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes 

16. Adjournment 



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8405  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:01 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020 

 

 

See attached Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020. 

 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 RS101920 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 10/29/2020 2:01 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/29/2020 2:05 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/29/2020 2:48 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

3.A

Packet Pg. 4



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 1 of 12 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

REGULAR SESSION 3 

OCTOBER 19, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

 7 

  8 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick Taylor, Ken 9 

Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; Deputy City Clerk 10 

Gabrielle Thornton; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 11 

 12 

Absent: City Clerk Shavala Moore.  13 

 14 
1. Opening Ceremonies. 15 

 16 

A. Pledge of allegiance to the flag. 17 

 18 

 B. Invocation by Chaplain Walker. 19 

 20 

2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, Or Changes To The Agenda. 21 

 22 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said I would like to add Item 6b, Community Development 23 

 Block Grant (CDBG).     24 

 25 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to add to the agenda Item 6b, Community Development 26 

Block Grant (CDBG) Agreement, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion 27 

carried.  (All Voted Yes). 28 

  29 

3. Presentation Of Minutes Of City Council. 30 

 31 

A. Regular Session held October 5, 2020. 32 

 33 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Regular Session Minutes dated October 5, 34 

2020, with corrections, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried as 35 

follows: 36 

 37 

 Packet Page 5, line 22 - s/b “Mayor Motley Broom” said…” not “City Manager 38 

Terrence Moore” said …    … 39 

     Packet Page 9, line 220 -  s/b “…add 9 megawatts…” not “…had 9 megawatts…” 40 

 Packet Page 14, line 431-432 - s/b “… (because I have gone to a few Ward 4 41 

 events) has anybody had to pay to go to those events? 42 

   Packet Page 33, line 1321 s/b “…Brownfield…” not “…Brownsfield…” 43 

 44 

B.  Workshop Session held October 5, 2020. 45 

 46 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 5



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 2 of 12 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve Workshop Session Minutes dated October 5, 47 

2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All 48 

Voted Yes). 49 

 50 

4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, And Announcements.  None. 51 

  52 

5. Remarks Of Citizens. 53 

 54 

a.  Deputy City Clerk Gabrielle Thornton read into the record comments from Mr. Tom 55 

Coleman, 1993 Cambridge Avenue, College Park, Georgia.  Our city has experienced in 56 

the past bouts of reckless driving on streets by motorcycles, 3-wheelers, and muscle 57 

cars.  Atlanta has had similar problems and now has a wide publicized police 58 

crackdown.  In the early hours of last Sunday, cars put numerous donuts on Rugby and 59 

White just off Main.  What steps are we taking to stop this dangerous driving on our 60 

streets?  Are we taking similar steps as Atlanta to prevent these events from moving 61 

here?  Thanks for your efforts on this.           62 

 63 

Councilman Allen said we need to open up the citizen’s comments so we can hear what 64 

the citizens have to say and see their faces on the screen, and open those up like we have 65 

the others.      66 

 67 

Mayor Motley Broom said I don’t think there is any objection.  I think at the beginning 68 

of the process when we were all getting accustomed to handling meetings via Zoom, we 69 

had some concerns about people and their ability to Zoom bomb.  Mr. Hicks has that 70 

under control now.  We are opening up during public hearings and allowing people to 71 

speak, so I think we should be able to employ the same procedures in terms of public 72 

comment as well; is that correct Mr. Hicks?  73 

 74 

Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said that’s correct.   75 

 76 

Councilman Allen said if somebody would like to have it read, then submit that in 77 

advance, but I think it is time to open that back up.    78 

 79 

 Mayor Motley Broom agreed.  The one thing we have added is that your request to 80 

speak needs to be in by 7:00 p.m.  That is appropriate. 81 

 82 

Councilman Clay said I would agree with that.  I think now that we are used to it, I think 83 

we can handle it adequately.  The one thing I would suggest is that we have somewhat 84 

departed from the way it was back before the first of the year and before COVID-19, the 85 

policy we were following at that time was that we would restrict comments to 3 minutes 86 

each, and there would be a total of up to 9 minutes on a subject.  I think we will get 87 

more participation, since we have a large number of people.  Anyone can comment.  88 

You sign up by 7:00 p.m., 3 minutes per comment, no more than 9 minutes on a subject, 89 

and that the Mayor & Council does not respond to the comments.  That would be my 90 

suggestion, in addition to allowing people to come in during public comment.           91 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 6



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 3 of 12 

  Councilman Allen said I hate to do away with spontaneous comments.  If they don’t get 92 

 it in by 7:00, are we keeping them from saying what they would like to say to City 93 

 Council?  94 

 95 

 Mayor Motley Broom said on one topic, stop signs, for instance, if we have 15 people 96 

 who are in favor of having a stop sign at a particular intersection, but we have 1 that is 97 

 opposed to it, then the idea would be that we would take whoever shows up first. 98 

 99 

  Councilman Allen asked, but what if that triggers another issue from somebody that did 100 

  not sign up by 7:00? 101 

 102 

  Councilman Clay said Ken’s point is that they need to jump in, even though you have 103 

  not scheduled it before 7:00.   104 

   105 

 Mayor Motley Broom said we want to avoid reactions on the spot on particular topics.  106 

 I’m happy to continue to discuss it to see what makes sense for us.  But let’s open it up 107 

 in terms of people to speak in person as opposed to having things read.  But having 108 

 comments read is an option as well.      109 

  110 

 Councilman Clay asked, are you okay limiting it to 9 minutes per topic and 3 minutes 111 

 per comment? 112 

 113 

 Mayor Motley Broom said yes, I’m comfortable with that.  Ms. Moore has been  114 

 keeping time.  We do have the possibility of Zoom bombing.   115 

 116 

  Councilman Clay said and we should capture their name and address for the record like 117 

  we have done in the past.   118 

 119 

  Councilman Allen said I don’t want to squash somebody that wants to say something to 120 

  Mayor & Council.  If it gets out of hand, we can change it back.    121 

 122 

 Mayor Motley Broom said in terms of IT, I think they would prefer to know who is 123 

speaking before they do it. 124 

 125 

  Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said Madam Mayor, if we can have them sign 126 

  up, then I can control the portal.  Zoom bombing is a concern.   127 

 128 

  Councilman Clay said there is no reason why somebody couldn’t send an email to you, 129 

 and they would put their name, address, and the topic.  And when everyone is done, 130 

 they could be given a time to speak. 131 

 132 

  Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said I can coordinate that with the City 133 

 Clerk’s office.   134 

 135 

  Councilman Allen said I like that.   136 

 137 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 7



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 4 of 12 

 Councilman Taylor agreed.  People should get an opportunity to say what they want to 138 

say.  I’m cool with it.   139 

 140 

  Councilman Gay said I’m okay with it.  I do like the decorum.  I like for them to sign up 141 

  to have structure. 142 

 143 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I’m with you on that.  But if you don’t know 30 minutes or 144 

15 minutes before the meeting, and if there is an issue that you want to bring up with 145 

respect to the Council, then maybe wait until the next time.  It lends itself to decorum.    146 

 147 

  Councilman Allen said it is something we can work on.   148 

 149 

  Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said I will be practicing with other features on 150 

  the backend too.  151 

 152 

6. Other Business. 153 

 154 

 A. Discussion and update on recently adopted ordinances and resolutions. 155 

 156 

 There were no comments made on this item.  157 

  158 

B. Community Development Block Grant Agreement.  159 

 160 

City Manager Terrence Moore said we initiated the administration of the program going 161 

back a couple of months ago and are awaiting the agreement for execution.  This is the 162 

recommendation for Council to offer approval so that can be executed quickly.    163 

 164 

 Councilman Clay said there are various aspects in the document.  For example, people who  165 

 have been economically impacted could apply for funds, et cetera, et cetera.  Can we have 166 

 Gerald, or someone put together an explanation of what is available by application from the 167 

 public?  And again, I didn’t have a chance to read it.  So, I am only guessing that that is the 168 

 case.       169 

 170 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I didn’t fully understand the question.  So, if you did and were 171 

 ready to act on it, go for it.                  172 

 173 

 City Manager Terrence Moore said I was suggesting that Councilman Clay’s request is 174 

 reasonable.  As a result of tonight’s authorization, we will assemble Finance & Accounting 175 

 and Customer Service and Communications to direct an education process relative to the 176 

 opportunities available. 177 

 178 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said there is a video that 179 

 Councilman Gay used at his meeting.  180 

 181 

 Special Projects Administrator Jackson Myers said we do have all that information. 182 

 183 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 8



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 5 of 12 

 Councilman Clay said then we need to publicize it.   184 

 185 

 City Manager Terrence Moore agreed. 186 

 187 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said you should have received a 188 

 document on that as well. 189 

 190 

 Councilman Clay said I saw the flyer.  Isn’t there more to it? 191 

 192 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said no, not right now.   193 

 194 

 Councilman Clay said then we have it covered. 195 

 196 

 Councilman Gay said I noticed that Affirmative Action, the EOC is still in their contract.  I 197 

 thought we couldn’t put those in contracts.    198 

 199 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I presume that Fulton County has done some form of study to 200 

 show. 201 

 202 

 City Attorney Winston Denmark said the Disparity Study that Fulton County paid an 203 

 affordable sum to have done allows them to have a program because they have a factual 204 

 and  legal predicate for that type of program.  Communities that have not done the Disparity 205 

 Study would not have that.   206 

 207 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from City Manager Terrence R. 208 

Moore for the financial support of the Community Development Block Grant for 209 

the administration of the City’s recently initiated Utility’s Assistance Program, 210 

seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 211 

 212 

7. Public Hearings. 213 

 214 

A. Public Hearing to receive comments on the final adoption of the proposed Millage Rate 215 

for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 216 

 217 

City Manager Terrence Moore said this is authorization of the proposed Millage Rate.  It is 218 

20 mils for the Hotel Special District Tax, and for all others to maintain a Millage Rate of 219 

12.619.  This is an opportunity for Council to engage in final adoption, and the 220 

recommendation is to approve the 3 mil rates, respectively.      221 

 222 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing open. 223 

 224 

Mayor Motley Broom asked if there was anyone from the public that would like to speak for 225 

or against the final adoption of the Millage Rate for Fiscal Year 2020-2021. 226 

 227 

There were no comments made from the public. 228 

 229 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 9



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 6 of 12 

Mayor Motley Broom asked if anyone on Council had anything to add with regard to the 230 

Millage Rate. 231 

 232 

There were no comments made from Council. 233 

 234 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the public hearing closed.     235 

 236 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Finance & 237 

Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley to adopt the proposed Millage Rate for Fiscal 238 

Year 2020-2021, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted 239 

Yes). 240 

 241 

8. Bids, Change Order Requests And Contracts. 242 

 243 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of an easement agreement between 244 

the City of College Park and the property owner, DC Property Holdings, LLC, Mr. Drake 245 

Craig, located at 1967 West John Calvin Avenue. Ward 1. 246 

 247 

 Director of Public Works Mike Mason said this is an executed easement agreement with 248 

 Mr. Drake Craig to install 165 feet of waterline pipe to loop the system on John Calvin.  249 

 There have been water quality issues, along the west portion of John Calvin Avenue.  In 250 

 order for us to try to resolve that issue is to loop our system, and that will require going 251 

 through Mr. Drake’s  property.  Mr. Drake is willing to grant the City an easement to allow 252 

 us to do this work.     253 

 254 

 Councilman Clay said this is not a new problem.  Apparently, it’s been going on for some 255 

 period of time.  And I guess people haven’t really complained, or at least complained to me.  256 

 I became aware of it  several months ago, and I talked to Mike.  I realized it was a dead-end 257 

 water connection, and Mike said that there was not enough flow through the pipe because it 258 

 was at the end of a line there.  So, this is a solution to that problem.  It’s a good thing that 259 

 needs to be done.    260 

 261 

 Councilman Allen asked, is that covered under the budget? 262 

 263 

 Director of Public Works Mike Mason said yes, sir.  We will perform the work in-house. 264 

 265 

 Councilman Allen said thank you. 266 

  267 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Public Works Mike 268 

Mason for an easement agreement between the City of College Park and the 269 

property owner, DC Property Holdings, LLC, Mr. Drake Craig, located at 1967 270 

West John Calvin Avenue, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All 271 

Voted Yes). 272 

 273 

B. Consideration of and action on a request for approval of the renewal of a service 274 

agreement with Windstream Enterprise for existing services at all city locations.   275 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 10



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 7 of 12 

 Councilman Clay said I will move to approve, if Mr. Hicks doesn’t want to go into anymore 276 

 detail on it.  I got my questions answered.  I think we need to do it. 277 

 278 

 Chief Information Officer Michael Hicks said you will be happy to know that we found 279 

 that the unknown location was the node for the megabits for our SCADA for our water 280 

 department, so Mike and I worked it out.                  281 

 282 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any questions for Mr. Hicks in regard to the item? 283 

 284 

 There were no further comments made.  285 

  286 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Chief Information Officer 287 

Michael Hicks for the renewal of a service agreement with Windstream Enterprise 288 

for existing services at all city locations, seconded by Councilman Gay and motion 289 

carried.  (All Voted Yes). 290 

 291 

9. Unfinished (Old) Business.  292 

 293 

A. Consideration of and action on a request for a six (6) month extension to the submittal 294 

requirement for a final development plan at 5391 West Fayetteville Road in the PD - 295 

Planned Development Zoning.  Ward 3. 296 

 297 

City Planner Michelle Alexander said this item is in response to the action you took in April 298 

where you annexed and rezoned the property at 5391 West Fayetteville Road.  The Zoning 299 

Code has a provision in this district to not only come before you once for the rezoning 300 

decision, but it requires that the applicant come back within 6 months with a final 301 

development plan for you to review at a public hearing.  It’s unique in the zoning districts 302 

that we have.  That is a very short time frame to require that final plans be provided before 303 

you within 6 months.  So, we are here before you on behalf of the applicant to request the 6 304 

months.  Of course, during COVID, things have been delayed.  I am recommending 305 

approval of the extension request, and then I would like to come before you at a future date 306 

with an amendment to this part of the Code.  Thank you for your consideration.   307 

 308 

ACTION: Councilman Allen moved to approve a request from City Planner Michelle 309 

Alexander for a six (6) month extension to the submittal requirement for a final 310 

development plan at 5391 West Fayetteville Road in the PD-Planned Development 311 

Zoning, seconded by Councilman Clay and motion carried.  Councilman Gay 312 

absent for the vote.   313 

 314 

10. New Business. 315 

 316 

A.  Consideration of and action on a request for approval of Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget 317 

Close-Out.   318 

 319 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said this is a budget closeout 320 

 from last year from several funds, to include the General Fund, CDBG, Tax Allocation 321 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 11



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 8 of 12 

 District Fund, Hospitality, SPLOST Fund, Sanitation Fund, FAA, and the Arena Fund.   322 

 This ensures that our year-end appropriations cover our year-end expenses, and that we are 323 

 compliant with our budgetary level of control.  With the General Fund, I am projecting that 324 

 we will experience an estimate of under $1 million impact reduction to the General 325 

 Fund/Fund Balance.  Any  questions?      326 

 327 

 Councilman Clay said Althea, you have answered all my questions, and you corrected the 328 

 summary where we thought we were going to draw down reserve by $1.4 million.  And you 329 

 realized that we could find another way to only draw it down a little under $1 million.   330 

 331 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said correct. 332 

 333 

 Councilman Clay said the only thing I want to highlight is the fact that, for all the people out 334 

 in TV land, if you will, that are watching this, that we had more revenue and we had more 335 

 expenses, but the expenses exceeded the revenue across all funds by roughly $1 million.  So, 336 

 that reduces our carryover from one year to the next; is that correct? 337 

 338 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said correct. 339 

 340 

 Councilman Clay said that’s all I wanted to say. 341 

 342 

 Councilman Allen said that does not mean that we have plenty of money to spend in the 343 

 city.  July, August, and September were very, very low months.  We are having to deal with 344 

 that as well.   345 

   346 

 Councilman Clay said amen. 347 

 348 

 Councilman Allen said we are quite lucky to have someone like Althea and her crew to 349 

 work on this.  They have done an excellent job.  I have worked with a lot of budgets in my 350 

 life, and she has answered every single question that we have.  Thank you all for the job that 351 

 you do.   352 

 353 

 Director of Finance & Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley said you’re welcome.   354 

 355 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any other questions? 356 

 357 

 There were no further questions made. 358 

   359 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to approve a request from Director of Finance & 360 

Accounting Althea Philord-Bradley for the Fiscal Year 2019-2020 Budget Close-361 

Out, seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 362 

 363 
11. City Attorney’s Report.   None.   364 

 365 

12.  City Manager’s Report. 366 

 367 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 12



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 9 of 12 

A. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent property taxpayers.  NO ACTION 368 

REQUIRED. 369 

 370 

There were no comments on this item.  371 

  372 

B. Discussion and update on top ten delinquent utility customer accounts.  NO ACTION 373 

REQUIRED. 374 

 375 

There were no comments on this item.  376 

 377 

13.   Report Of Mayor And Council. 378 

  379 

 Councilman Clay – said we have unbagged the stop signs that we approved.  They sat for 380 

roughly 30 days.  I received a response from 2 constituents indicating that they were really 381 

happy and felt that the traffic had calmed, and it was less noisy.  That was the general 382 

summary of a couple of comments.  Considering you tend to hear more complaints than you 383 

do positive things on most everything in life, I’d say so far things are looking pretty good.  384 

That’s all I had for my comments.        385 

 386 

 Councilman Taylor – said I have nothing to report. 387 

 388 

 Councilman Allen – said first thing, everybody please get out and vote.  It is very easy.  At 389 

the GICC it doesn’t take very long at all. 390 

 391 

 Councilman Allen said I am seeing a lot of trash out on the roads around Godby and up and 392 

down some of the streets.  Some of the dumpsters at some of the apartments are 393 

overflowing.  We need to take a look at some of these things and keep our city clean.   394 

 395 

 Councilman Allen said there is going to be a Youth Speaking Contest on October 24, 2020 396 

for kids in elementary school.  If you would like to sign up and get into the speaking contest 397 

go to collegeparkga.com and please come and speak.  398 

 399 

 Councilman Allen said on October 21, 2020 there will be a Clipper Sculpture Art 400 

Exhibition.  They are going to open the Clipper Sculpture at Godby Road and Clipper Drive.  401 

They are going to start the installation.  It is going to be a 30- or 40-foot sculpture.   402 

Everybody please come and take a look at that.         403 

 404 

 Councilman Allen said I would like to have a discussion about “term limits” on the next 405 

agenda.  Maybe it is time to bring that up and have a discussion on that at the next council 406 

meeting.  I’d like to see that put on the agenda just to talk about it.    407 

 408 

 Mayor Motley Broom said it sounds good to me. 409 

 410 

 Councilman Gay – said thank you all for the hard work and the value you bring to the city.   411 

 412 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 13



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 10 of 12 

 Councilman Gay said congratulations to all the people who worked on Six West.  I did view 413 

 the groundbreaking. 414 

 415 

 Councilman Gay said at the town hall meeting we had, the only comment we had was 416 

 people wanting to know when we will get speed humps on Lakeshore and Herschel. 417 

 418 

 Police Chief Ferman Williford said the speed humps are manufactured as they are ordered.  419 

 And as soon as they get in, we will get Public Works to get those installed. 420 

 421 

 Councilman Gay said thank you.    422 

 423 

 Police Chief Ferman Williford said yes, sir.   424 

 425 

 Mayor Motley Broom – said I want to thank the Historic College Park Neighborhood 426 

 Association for a fantastic yard sale event.  It was so good that my mother brought a 427 

 truckload of things in her Suburban from Birmingham to sell at this yard sale.  So, thank you 428 

 so much for the opportunity for us to sell our things and my mom to sell things.  It was a 429 

 good opportunity to see our neighbors. 430 

 431 

 Mayor Motley Broom said I want to thank Mercedes, Chief Williford and the Police 432 

 Department, and the Clayton County Sheriff’s Department for all their hard work to make 433 

 the concert at the GICC successful and safe for everyone who attended.  I am constantly in 434 

 awe of your professionalism and what you do to lead our city in that regard.   435 

 436 

 Mayor Motley Broom said voting at the GICC has never been easier.  Fulton County has 437 

 gotten a website so you can go on-line and see what the wait times are at every single 438 

 location where early voting is taking place throughout the county.  I was in and out in 10 439 

 minutes last Friday.  My husband voted today, and he said it was as easy as it could be.  It is 440 

 open 8:00 to 6:00 this week and next week 7:00 to 7:00.  You don’t have to wait until 441 

 election day, but for those of you who are voting on election day go to mvp.sos.ga.gov.  That 442 

 is the voting information site through the Secretary of State.  Some people who voted at the 443 

 College Park auditorium may be voting at the library this time around.  They have changed 444 

 the precincts for a couple of people.  Double check, go online, and enter your information 445 

 to confirm your voting location.  You can vote at the GICC for the next 2 weeks, and you 446 

 don’t have to worry about it.              447 

 448 
 Mayor Motley Broom said I want to thank Economic Development, Communication Staff, 449 

 and everyone who contributed to a great groundbreaking for Six West.  It was a topnotch 450 

 event.   451 

 452 

 Mayor Motley Broom said after the yard sale, there was a white Camaro that sped down my 453 

 street, and I thought, well, I need to call the police, but the police were right behind them.  454 

 To Chief Williford, I am grateful for that.  It has been a concern for a number of people.   455 

 456 

Mayor Motley Broom said Chief, I had some words with staff today.  I did not hear about 457 

the vehicle on Rugby, but I road through there this morning and saw the marks where 458 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 14



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 11 of 12 

someone has been at Rugby and Lyle laying drag marks all over the roadway there.  This is 459 

becoming an increasing problem around the city.  It is metro wide.  I had a chat with 460 

Command Staff today, and we are going to move our traffic resources to focus on the 461 

neighborhoods.  I am  concerned about some of these people doing these things in 462 

residential areas and losing control of the vehicle and strike a pedestrian and end up in 463 

somebody’s yard or house.  So, we are going to divert our resources to the neighborhood 464 

areas and see if we can stop some of this stuff.  I appreciate it Chief.  If you see something 465 

happen in regard to this, call the police.  Get as good of a description as you can of the 466 

vehicle and let our people know so  we can nip it in the bud.                     467 

 468 

 Mayor Motley Broom asked, does anyone else have anything? 469 

 470 

 There were no further comments made.    471 

 472 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to recess Regular Session to take up Executive Session to 473 

discuss personnel, pending litigation, and the potential purchase of real estate, 474 

seconded by Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes). 475 

 476 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the Regular Session recessed at 8:24 p.m. 477 

 478 

14.  Executive Session. 479 

 480 

 Executive Session adjourned at 9:18 p.m., Regular Session resumed at 9:19 p.m. 481 

 482 

15.  Approval of Executive Session Minutes. 483 

 484 

ACTION:  Councilman Clay moved to approve Executive Session Minutes dated October 19, 485 

2020, as presented, seconded by Councilman Allen and motion carried.  (All Voted 486 

Yes). 487 

 488 

16.  Adjournment. 489 

 490 

 Mayor Motley Broom declared the Regular Session adjourned at 9:24 p.m. 491 

 492 

 493 

 494 

 495 

 496 

 497 

 498 

 499 

 500 

 501 

 502 

 503 

 504 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 15



Regular Session 10/19/20 Page 12 of 12 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 505 

                     506 

              507 

_________________________ 508 

             Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 509 

 510 

 511 

 512 

 513 

ATTEST:   514 

 515 

 516 

________________________ 517 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 518 

3.A.a

Packet Pg. 16



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8404  

Updated: 10/15/2020 11:07 AM by Shavala Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 15, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020 

 

 

See attached Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 WSS101920 (DOC) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 10/28/2020 2:22 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:27 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:16 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

3.B

Packet Pg. 17



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 1 of 8 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK5,000.00 1 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL 2 

WORKSHOP SESSION 3 

OCTOBER 19, 2020 4 

 5 

MINUTES 6 

  7 
Present: Mayor Bianca Motley Broom; Councilmen Ambrose Clay, Derrick 8 

Taylor, Ken Allen, and Roderick Gay; City Manager Terrence Moore; 9 

Deputy City Clerk Gabrielle Thornton; City Attorney Winston Denmark. 10 

 11 

Absent: City Clerk Shavala Moore.  12 

 13 

Mayor Motley Broom called the workshop session to order at 5:00 p.m. 14 

 15 

ACTION: Councilman Clay moved to take up executive session to discuss personnel, 16 

pending litigation, and the potential purchase of real estate, seconded by 17 

Councilman Taylor and motion carried.  (All Voted Yes).   18 

 19 

Mayor & Council entered into executive session at 5:02 p.m. 20 

 21 

The workshop session reconvened at 6:04 p.m.  22 

 23 

   1.  Presentation on results of the SkyTrain Way and related roads traffic study   24 

and simulations of traffic flow by Croy Engineering. 25 

 26 
Director of Airport Affairs Gary Young presented the item.  Croy Engineering has 27 

completed their study, and Aimee Turner will lead us through their findings.      28 

 29 

Ms. Aimee Turner with Croy Engineering gave a brief power point presentation on 30 

SkyTrain Way and the traffic study, to include presentation overview and background.  31 

 32 

Ms. Turner discussed the study objectives and project approach, to include stakeholder 33 

engagement, traffic data analysis, traffic simulation, and modeling.   34 

 35 

Ms. Turner discussed the study area with Legend.  36 

 37 
Ms. Turner discussed the ownership in SkyTrain Way vicinity.   The southeastern portion 38 

belongs to the Vilas Choice Mixed-Use Development Developers, and they have 39 

ownership of that area in the white as well as the red area (indicating on rendering).   40 

 41 

Ms. Turner discussed stakeholder engagement, to include ATL, Arena, GDOT, Croy, 42 

GICC, and the City of Atlanta Fire Station. 43 

 44 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 18



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 2 of 8 

Ms. Turner discussed site visits along the SkyTrain Station.  Our primary concern is 45 

traffic flow along the GICC Concourse.  For the SkyTrain Station, there are safety and 46 

operation concerns.   47 

 48 

Ms. Turner discussed the ATL, CIP – ATL West Deck and more.  This is one of a series 49 

of parking projects that Hartsfield is working on.  One of the uses of this facility will be 50 

to serve as an alternative for the north and south parking banks during their renovation 51 

construction.   52 

 53 

Ms. Turner discussed the Gateway Mixed-Use Development.  The entire site buildout 54 

will be in 2024.    55 

 56 

Ms. Turner discussed the Choice Gateway Proposal, to include the Brown Road 57 

realignment and the SkyTrain Park.         58 

 59 
Ms. Turner discussed emergency response road strength requirements.   60 

 61 

Ms. Turner discussed the loop road connection.   62 

 63 

Councilman Clay said I just got a text from a constituent that the slides are not updating 64 

on the Zoom meeting. 65 

 66 

Ms. Turner said I believe Gabrielle is moderating it. 67 

 68 

Councilman Clay said this is a message for staff. 69 

 70 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, has the workshop session packet been uploaded? 71 

 72 

Mayor Motley Broom said in terms of how we need to be thinking about this, in my mind 73 

emergency response would be the No. 1 priority.  In the event something happens with 74 

this parking deck or areas surrounding it, that emergency vehicles are able to get in, and 75 

the sections (the portion of SkyTrain Way from Hospitality Way south to the entrance of 76 

the parking garage) can support whatever vehicles are necessary, and then everything else 77 

comes after that in my mind.  Is that the right way to be thinking about this? 78 

 79 

Ms. Turner said yes.  That is why we engaged the Atlanta Fire and Rescue early on.   80 

 81 

Mayor Motley Broom said I am not sure why the information is not available on the 82 

website; but go ahead. 83 

 84 

Ms. Turner said just to summarize this consideration, the loop road connection, we were 85 

tasked with figuring out what would be the impact of the existing 1-way loop road that 86 

would be made into a 2-way access and how would traffic reorient into the CONAC area.   87 

 88 

Ms. Turner discussed data sources, to include raw traffic counts, GDOT traffic and 89 

analysis data, and Automated Traffic Signal Performance Measures (ATSPM).      90 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 19



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 3 of 8 

Ms. Turner discussed traffic adjustment methodology, analysis conditions, and peak 91 

periods.   92 

 93 

Ms. Turner discussed the 5 scenarios for the SkyTrain, to include traffic simulation 94 

modeling.  95 

 96 

Ms. Turner discussed installing source lanes on Main Street, as well as a second lane for 97 

exiting off the loop road connection of which would be required by GDOT for additional 98 

access to Main Street.  The final preferred scenario was the SkyTrain 1-way scenario.  99 

With the bridge just south of the Brown Road connection, we recommended an additional 100 

look by College Park Staff and the Engineering Department on whether it was feasible, in 101 

terms of constructive feasibility.  Also, any additional access to SkyTrain Way will 102 

require an approval from the Department of Aviation.     103 

 104 

Ms. Turner discussed on the last slide additional considerations, special events, and 105 

general recommendations.  106 

 107 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any questions for Ms. Turner? 108 

 109 

Councilman Clay said I have a comment.  You started off indicating priorities, which I 110 

think is a good thing.  I would argue historically that when we did the intergovernmental 111 

agreement, and Gary remembers this well, we asked them to open up the gates to the 112 

rental car center so we could have traffic coming to College Park to enjoy the downtown 113 

area and help the local businesses.  I feel it is more important that the traffic coming out 114 

be able to access downtown than traffic coming back.  However, as a person who travels 115 

a lot, it sure is nice to be able to get back to where I am trying to go by the same way that 116 

I got out.  If we make it a 1-way and leave it 1-way, with the option they are 117 

recommending, we still have a way to get back to the rental car center.  It is not quite the 118 

same place that you came out, but it is only a block away, and that makes it less 119 

confusing for the traveler.  Since then we have added on the ability to do overflow traffic 120 

from the GICC and the Arena, and I think having that be a relatively convenient access is 121 

a good thing.  So, these are my 2 priorities that I have after your No. 1 priority, which is 122 

emergency access.   123 

 124 

Mayor Motley Broom said I wholeheartedly agree with you.  Good Wayfinding is 125 

essential in all of this.  It has to be an integral element of whatever decision we make 126 

considering that we are going to have so many different end-users.  We are going to have 127 

travelers visiting the Gateway Center for business, pleasure, or whatever it is.  We have 128 

to make sure that all the Wayfinding is integrated in a way that makes sense for everyone 129 

who might be utilizing the area.  I do like the idea of Scenario 3.   Does Scenario 3 open 130 

up the loop road to a 2-way or no?                         131 

 132 

Councilman Clay said no.  The construction cost out on Main Street is $250,000.00.    133 

 134 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 20



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 4 of 8 

Mayor Motley Broom said I like the concept of the loop road being open and for some of 135 

the reasons you discussed.  But where we are right now, saving $250,000.00 sounds 136 

better. 137 

 138 

Councilman Clay said right. 139 

 140 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, are there any other questions or comments? 141 

 142 

Director of Airport Affairs Gary Young said some recommendations that staff has made 143 

is that we accept is that SkyTrain Way will be completed as a 26-foot wide with a 144 

75,000-pound load bearing capacity.  It will operate as a 1-way road going south.  145 

Hospitality Way would be a 2-way road, and we would request that the DOT (ph) allows 146 

the consideration of the connection of Brown Road and whether that conclusion will 147 

work.  That has to happen before we can have any discussion with the developer about 148 

any land deal.  And then to allow us to request the Department of Aviation to consider the 149 

location of the covered walkway.  That will require a legal agreement with the City of 150 

Atlanta.  And then finally, Mike Mason to be authorized to go ahead, if the City of 151 

Atlanta and the Department of Aviation agrees with the Council’s recommendation, to 152 

prepare an RFP for paving, curbing, and guttering of the sections of the road that College 153 

Park is responsible for.  So, the request from staff is to have direction on these items.  Is it 154 

okay to go ahead with the recommendation?             155 

 156 

There was a consensus from Mayor & Council to go forward with SkyTrain Way and the 157 

traffic study.   158 

 159 

Mayor Motley Broom said the interesting part of this project is the level of cooperation 160 

that it takes between departments.  And when it is Public Safety and Public Works, 161 

everybody has to work together to make assessments like this happen.  I’m grateful to all 162 

the departments that worked on this and gave us this product where we are able to make 163 

this informed decision.   164 

 165 

Councilman Allen said thank you very much Gary. 166 

 167 

   2. Final plan presentation on the Southern Fulton Comprehensive 168 

Transportation Plan (SFCTP) by Inga Kennedy, Southern Fulton 169 

Comprehensive Transportation Plan, Stakeholder and Public Involvement 170 

Coordinator.     171 
 172 

Ms. Inga Kennedy introduced herself and Keli Kemp.  Ms. Keli Kemp will be giving the 173 

final plan presentation.   174 

 175 

Ms. Kemp said the recommendation is that you consider adoption of the executive team’s 176 

recommendations that go along with the final plan. 177 

 178 

Ms. Kemp gave a power point presentation on the SFCTP, to include a (5 year) short- 179 

term goal and a (10 year) long-term goal.  You can populate the SPLOST Program for the 180 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 21



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 5 of 8 

renewal in order to apply for federal funds and adopt the plan.  A project is considered in 181 

the plan, regardless of what term or tier it is in.   182 

 183 

Ms. Kemp discussed the 8 cities within the study area of the Comprehensive 184 

Transportation Plan.    185 

 186 

Ms. Kemp discussed the overview of the milestones and schedule, along with the 6 187 

attached tasks. 188 

 189 

Ms. Kemp discussed public and stakeholder engagement pre and during COVID-19. 190 

 191 

Ms. Kemp said the adoption for East Point is next and the City of College Park.  The 192 

other 6 cities have adopted the plan. 193 

 194 

Ms. Kemp discussed how the recommendations were prioritized.  195 

 196 

Ms. Kemp discussed the 3 goals and the 4 objectives within the set goals. 197 

 198 

Ms. Kemp discussed the corridor framework through extensive data analysis. 199 

 200 

Ms. Kemp discussed evaluation of the projects, to include refined vision, goals, and 201 

objectives, and weighting scenarios.  We know all things are not equal.  And 8 cities have 202 

different opinions as to what we should focus on.  We made sure what each city’s 203 

individual response was from, and we had them to rank them, in order to develop specific 204 

weighting scenarios for each city.             205 

 206 

Ms. Kemp discussed the results of the survey on the slide.  College Park is on the second 207 

row on the left.  Safety was your No. 1 priority. 208 

 209 

Ms. Kemp discussed recommended new projects totaling $2.6 billion.  Some projects 210 

start in one tier and end in another tier. 211 

 212 

Ms. Kemp discussed College Park’s 37 projects with a cost of $286.6 million.     213 

 214 

Ms. Kemp discussed the short-term (5 year) and mid-term (10 year) projects in College 215 

Park. 216 

 217 

Ms. Kemp discussed the system and dashboard performances for College Park.  218 

 219 

Ms. Kemp discussed the coverage for the disrupters due to COVID-19. 220 

 221 

Ms. Kemp said 5 of the 8 cities have to approve for the adoption of the plan by ARC.  If 222 

you adopt the plan and you have more projects come up later, you can amend the plan to 223 

include them.  For more information on this go to southernfultonctp.org.  You will find 224 

several technical reports on that site.  Questions?      225 

 226 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 22



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 6 of 8 

Councilman Clay said my primary concern is Main Street through downtown.  You have 227 

shown that as a traffic corridor that would be amenable to trucks.  Main Street through 228 

downtown College Park is 2 lanes, one north and one south.  You don’t have it showing 229 

on the map as being one for expansion.  And in our response to COVID-19, we have been 230 

working with GDOT to implement what we call College Parklets.  And in doing that, we 231 

would take away the parking spaces, and we have already improved Main Street in that 232 

area and have little bump outs at the various intersections.  So, we would be extending 233 

the bump out with a raised platform that would match the curb and so forth.                        234 

 235 

Councilman Clay said so, as far as I’m concerned, Main Street is not going to get wider, 236 

and designating it as truck traffic has a concern.  I was encouraged by your remarks that 237 

the technology will make it more effective and efficient for trucks to go through at off 238 

hours.  Is it my understanding that you are not considering expanding to 4 lanes through 239 

downtown College Park? 240 

 241 

Ms. Kemp said great comment.  I agree with you 100 percent.  One thing to be clear on is 242 

even though all of U.S. 29 as a long segment has been designated as an economic freight 243 

corridor,  Downtown and along Main Street has not.  It has been designated as a 244 

Livability Node focusing more on bicycle/pedestrian transit.  We do not include any 245 

recommendations for widening.  However, there is a study recommendation for all of 246 

U.S. 29 because there are so many physical constraints along the entire length of the 247 

corridor, not just for freight but just in general.      248 

 249 

Ms. Kemp said regarding the parklets, the bike lanes, or the dedicated bike facilities that 250 

are planned or recommended along the corridor, they would have to accommodate the 251 

parklets.  There should be dedicated bike facilities along the corridor.  You are not going 252 

to take out any parklets. 253 

 254 

Councilman Clay said thank you.   255 

 256 

Councilman Clay said I wanted to clarify something that I thought I heard you say where 257 

you talk about the local match and where it is only our city.  There are many cases in 258 

there of those 37 projects over the first 5 years where the local match is equal to the total 259 

of the project.  So, when you say local match, that is College Park’s share. 260 

 261 

Ms. Kemp said yes.  There are some project types or locations, for instance, that are not 262 

on a state route where they may not have a state match.  So, it may be all local funds.  So, 263 

that is one part of it.  The other part is there are some projects that traverse multiple 264 

jurisdictions.  If it is only in College Park, then College Park is responsible for the entire 265 

match.   266 

 267 

Councilman Clay asked, is there other money that might be accessible for a portion of 268 

that local match then? 269 

 270 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 23



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 7 of 8 

Ms. Kemp said yes.  That is why it is important to adopt the plan because then you can 271 

apply for federal funding through ARC, and there should be different grant opportunities 272 

that come as well to help pay for that local match.   273 

 274 

Councilman Clay said okay.   275 

 276 

Ms. Kemp said in the appendix of the executive document, we have a very detailed 277 

matrix of potential funding sources for every project at the local, state, and federal level. 278 

 279 

Councilman Clay said with regard to the way you add things up, on packet page 165 280 

within the first 5-year program, project No. 1548, a scoping study of Camp Creek 281 

Parkway, et cetera.  It shows it is in College Park.  When I go to the total cost estimate, 282 

it’s $1 million.  When I go to the total local match it’s $1 million.  When I go to the 283 

federal match it’s $565,000.00.  So, I would have thought that the local match would not 284 

have been a full $1 million; that it would have been $1 million minus the $565,000.00. 285 

 286 

Ms. Kemp said you are right.  It was a typo, and we are fixing it. 287 

 288 

Councilman Clay said okay.   289 

 290 

Ms. Kemp said we received your comments today, and we have already gone through 291 

them and catching everything.   292 

 293 

Councilman Clay said good. 294 

 295 

Councilman Allen said I noticed some of the streets are not College Park.  Do we forward 296 

those on to you as well? 297 

 298 

Ms. Kennedy said yes.   299 

            300 

Mayor Motley Broom asked, any other questions? 301 

 302 

There were no further questions made. 303 

 304 

Mayor Motley Broom said this will be on the November 2, 2020 agenda; is that correct 305 

City Manager?  306 

 307 

City Manager Terrence Moore said correct.    308 

  309 

Mayor Motley Broom said thank you ladies.  We have 8 minutes left until the meeting 310 

starts, but I’m going to give everybody a break.  We will see everybody at 7:30 p.m.   311 

 312 

Mayor Motley Broom declared the Workshop Session adjourned at 7:23 p.m.    313 

 314 

 315 

 316 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 24



Workshop Session 10/19/20 Page 8 of 8 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 317 

 318 

 319 

       _________________________ 320 

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 321 

 322 

 323 

 324 

 325 

ATTEST:   326 

 327 

 328 

________________________ 329 

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 330 

3.B.a

Packet Pg. 25



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8416  

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:52 PM by Terrence R. Moore  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Presentation of Proclamation - Pastor Marjorie Dent 

 

 

Presentation of a proclamation to Pastor Marjorie Dent in appreciation of her 30 years of 

community service.  Please see attached proclamation. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Marjorie Dent Proclamation (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/21/2020 2:00 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 1:55 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:16 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

4.A

Packet Pg. 26



 

            City of College Park 
             Proclamation 

 
WHEREAS: The Mayor and City Council of the City of College Park duly recognizes Pastor 

Marjorie Abraham Dent for thirty years of tireless service to the City of College 
Park; and 

 
WHEREAS: as a resident of College Park for 44 years, Pastor Dent has extended herself 

spiritually, personally and professionally to our citizens through her active 
involvement in civic and community activities providing leadership and 
motivation to those wishing to contribute to the community; and  

 
WHEREAS: over the years Pastor Dent’s strong spiritual leadership has guided us all 

through challenging circumstances with her powerful delivery of the 
Invocation at our City Council Meetings; and 

 
WHEREAS: she has been active in City Government as a loyal member of the Board of 

Zoning Appeals from 1990 to 2002 becoming the first African American to 
serve as both Vice Chair and Chair during her term.  During her term she 
served in the most dedicated and distinguished manner gaining the respect of 
her fellow board members, the citizens of College Park and the governing 
body; and 

 
WHEREAS: Pastor Dent was honored by the South Carolina General Assembly in 2008 

through a Resolution for her 25 years of service as a minister.  She continues 
to touch others through her annual Color Me Confident: Youth Empowerment 
Conference and her participation in the Lift Community Outreach Food Bank, 
as well as, the South Fulton Human Services Coalition; She was selected in 
2012 as “Citywide Citizen of-the-Year”, served as Co-Chair of the College Park 
Black History Committee, and has served as a member of the College Park 
Police Department Chaplaincy Corps since 2017; and 

 
WHEREAS: the entire City of College Park is privileged to have Pastor Dent as an active 

resident and participant in community and civic concerns.  She continues to 
set the standard for a community servant. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT PROCLAIMED THAT THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF COLLEGE PARK RECOGNIZES  
 

PASTOR MARJORIE ABRAHAM DENT 
FOR 30 YEARS OF SERVICE 

 
PROCLAIMED THIS 2nd DAY OF NOVEMBER, 2020. 
 
        CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
ATTEST: 
       _________________________________ 
_______________________________    Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 
Shavala Moore, City Clerk 
       _________________________________ 
       Ambrose Clay, Councilman 

 
_________________________________ 
Derrick Taylor, Councilman 

        
       _________________________________ 

Ken Allen, Councilman 
 
 ________________________________ 
Roderick Gay, Councilman 

4.A.a

Packet Pg. 27



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8417  

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:59 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Johnson, Director of Recreation & Cultural Arts 

 

RE:  Proclamation for Outstanding Achievement for Jerisha Bronson 

 

 

PURPOSE:  Presentation of a proclamation honoring City of College Park Recreation & 

Cultural Arts Program Coordinator, Jerisha Bronson. 

 

 

Proclamation 

 

Council Meeting Date:  November 2, 2020. 

 

 

Presented by:  City of College Park Mayor and City Council members. 

 

 

Summary:  Presentation of a proclamation recognizing the outstanding achievement of City of 

College Park Recreation & Cultural Arts Program Coordinator, Jerisha Bronson, for her 

dedicated service and outstanding accomplishments. 

 

 

Supporting Documents:  See attached City of College Park proclamation. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Jerisha Bronson Proclamation (PDF) 

 Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America (PDF) 

 Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America picture 2 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

4.B

Packet Pg. 28



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8417)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:59 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 Michelle Johnson Completed 10/28/2020 1:56 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 1:59 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:16 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

4.B

Packet Pg. 29



 City of College Park
Proclamation 

Honoring Jerisha L. Bronson
WHEREAS: Jerisha L. Bronson is a native of Fayetteville, Georgia and a graduate of 

Alabama State University. She is a Program Coordinator/Special Events 
Coordinator for the City of College Park Recreation & Cultural Arts. She is 
also a third year veteran of the Atlanta Falcons, and the Official Assistant to 
the 2020 Sensational Stingettes; and

WHEREAS: Miss Jerisha currently holds the title of Miss Georgia for America 2020. She 
works with people of all cultures and backgrounds and focuses on personal 
growth, community service, and well-being for all. She was a soloist dancer 
for Alabama State's BFA dance program, where she received her Bachelor’s 
degree in Theatre Arts and served as the President. Jerisha was also a 
member of the Mighty Marching Hornet as a Stingettes dance line member in 
2009 and 2012; and

WHEREAS: Dance being her first form of communication, Jerisha touches the center of 
what inspires people to dance freely, and to grow as an individual. It is her 
mission to challenge and expose the youth to the art of dance. Jerisha brings a 
unique vision to the world; and

WHEREAS: She is very passionate about the youth and helping others build their 
self-esteem. She currently manages summer youth programming and senior 
citizen activities for the community; and

WHEREAS: Jerisha realized that being unique is her most powerful tool. She delivers a 
passionate level of energy and an inspiration that is unmatched. Jerisha is
honored and excited to represent as a Millennial Influencer. This year she is 
preparing to compete for the title of Miss America. Her dream is to one day 
open a dance studio in her very own hometown; and

WHEREAS: Jerisha quoted Gandhi saying: “The best way to find yourself is to lose 
yourself in the service of others.” And that is clearly something Jerisha lives 
by.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT PROCLAIMED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
College Park that 

Miss Jerisha L. Bronson

is recognized for her dedication and service to the community and youth acknowledging 
her accomplishment as Miss Georgia for America.  

PROCLAIMED THIS 2nd DATE OF NOVEMBER 2020.

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK

___________________________________
Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor

ATTEST:
___________________________________

__________________________________ Ambrose Clay, Councilman
Shavala Moore, City Clerk

___________________________________
Derrick Taylor, Councilman

___________________________________
Ken Allen, Councilman

___________________________________
Roderick D. Gay, Councilman

4.B.a

Packet Pg. 30



4.B.bPacket Pg. 31



4.B.c

Packet Pg. 32



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8434  

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:34 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Clayton County Community Engagement Initiative Update 

 

 

Nickel Works Consulting Project Manager Courtney Whitman contacted the Office of the City 

Manager requesting approval to provide a brief update to the Mayor and City Council during the 

November 2, 2020 Council Meeting on Clayton County’s Community Engagement Initiative.  

Please see attached e-mail dated October 19, 2020 from Ms. Nickels requesting approval. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Engage Clayton_  College Park City Council Meeting November 2nd (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 1:38 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:00 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:14 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

4.C

Packet Pg. 33



From: Courtney Whitman
To: Rosyline Robinson; Gabrielle Thornton
Cc: Nicole McGhee Hall; Jennifer Schofield
Subject: Engage Clayton: College Park City Council Meeting November 2nd
Date: Monday, October 19, 2020 12:37:24 PM

Good Afternoon Ms. Robinson,

I hope this email finds you well!  My name is Courtney, and I work
for Nickel Works Consulting.  We are the prime consultant for
Clayton County's Community Engagement Initiative.  Would it be
possible to attend the College Parks city council meeting on
November 2nd and give a brief update on the project? 

Currently, Clayton County is embarking on an engagement
initiative to enhance its ability to connect with the entire Clayton
community.  Whether you are a resident, business owner, student,
or frequent visitor, they want to learn how to better inform and
engage with the community.  I would only need 3 minutes to inform
the College Park community about the project and encourage
survey participation.  Please advise if I can present it during public
comments.    
 

I look forward to hearing from you, and have a great day! 

Courtney Whitman
Project Manager
Nickel Works Consulting, LLC
website: www.nickelworks.net
Direct Line: 678.535.3996
Main Office: 678.535.3990

4.C.a

Packet Pg. 34

mailto:courtney@nickelworks.net
mailto:rrobinson@collegeparkga.com
mailto:gthornton@collegeparkga.com
mailto:nicole@nickelworks.net
mailto:administration@nickelworks.net
http://nickelworks.net/


   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8415  

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:36 PM by Hugh Richardson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Hugh Richardson, Power Director 

 

RE:  AMI Update 

 

 

Access Point Performance - number of electric meters communicating: 

 

    9/23 9/30 10/7 10/14  

Charlestown   2277 2490 2337 2224  

W. Fayette   2874 2570 2844 2878 

Princeton   3140 3232 3111 3179  

Total    8291 8292 8292 8281 

 

Electric Meters::  8281 

Water Meters:   3059 

Total Meters & Endpoints: 11,340 

 

 

Requiring manual reads from communication issues= 47= .4% of total 

About 55 more water rereads were done to verify readings or usage but were reading in Badger. 

Electric = 3, Water = 44 

 

System is remotely reading about 99.6%. 

Electric = 99.9%; Water = 98.6% 

 

17 water meters were replaced in October. 

  1 water meter register was replaced. 

11 endpoints were replaced 

16 endpoint wirings were repaired 

  9 endpoints were reset. 

 

Other Updates: 

1.  37 customers have been contacted about water leaks in October. 

6.A

Packet Pg. 35



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8415)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 1:36 PM by Hugh Richardson  Page 2 

2.  KWH sales difference during the pandemic: 

 March   -7.1% 

 April -17.1% 

 May -21.8% 

 June -12.0% 

 July   -5.4% 

 Aug.   -7.9% 

 Sep. -16.1% 

 Oct.   -9.0% 

(Above as compared to the same month in 2019 and without Data Center sales.) 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 AMI Project Update Nov 2020 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Hugh Richardson Completed 10/22/2020 9:55 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:00 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:14 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

6.A

Packet Pg. 36



Access Point Recent Performance
Electric Meters Communicating

2.4 gHz Signal Frequency

Date Charlestown W. Fayetteville Princeton Total

(water tank) (water tank) (cell tower)

Sep. 23 2277 2874 3140 8291

Sep. 30 2490 2570 3232 8292

Oct. 7 2337 2844 3111 8292

Oct. 14 2224 2878 3179 8281

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 37



Meter Performance

Electric Meters:  8281

Water Meters:  3059

Total electric meters and endpoints = 11,340

Electric manual reads = 3

Electric Meters Reading 99.9%

Water meter manual reads with communication issues =44

Water Meters Reading 98.6%

Total system performance of 99.6%

17 Water meters replaced

1  Water meter register replaced

11   Endpoints replaced

16   Wiring repairs

9   Resets

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 38



Other Updates

• 37 Customers contacted about water leaks

• KWH sales difference from pandemic:

All Customers W/O Data Center

March -1.5% -7.1%

April -9.5% -17.1%

May -16.7% -21.8%

June -5.6% -12.0%

July 2.3% -5.4`%

August -2.4% -7.9%

September -10.9% -16.1%

October -4.5% -9.0%

6.A.a

Packet Pg. 39



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8406  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:37 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

RE:  Ordinances and Resolutions Update 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To provide Mayor and Council with updates on recently adopted ordinances and 

resolutions. 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council names of the adopted ordinances & resolutions on a 

monthly basis. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 2, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  None 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  None 

 

STAFF:  Office of the City Clerk 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2020 ORDINANCES (DOC) 

 2020 Resolutions (DOCX) 

 

Review: 

 Shavala Moore Completed 10/28/2020 2:25 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:37 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:15 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

6.B

Packet Pg. 40



  2020 ORDINANCES  

 

 

Ord. No. Ordinance       Adopted  

2020-01 120-Day Moratorium on Tire Shops    2-17-2020 

2020-02 State of Emergency Ordinance    3-19-2020 

2020-03 Emergency Coronavirus Ordinance – Shelter in Place 3-25-2020 

2020-04 Modify State of Emerg. Ord. add Virtual Meetings  4-06-2020 

2020-05 Ethics Ordinance      4-20-2020 

2020-06 Annexation of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-07 Rezoning of 5391 W. Fayetteville Road   4-20-2020 

2020-08 Multi-Family Maintenance Ordinance   5-18-2020 

2020-09 Fire Inspection Ordinance     6-01-2020 

2020-10 Facial Mask Mandate      7-10-2020 

2020-11 Fireworks Ordinance      7-10-2020 

2020-12 Amended Multi-Family Ordinance    8-03-2020 

2020-13 Conditional Use Permit – 1597 Virginia Ave   8-03-2020 

2020-14 Amended Ordinance to include Parklets   10-05-2020 

2020-15 3907 Main Street Rezoning     10-05-2020 

2020-16 Conditional Use Permit – 3907 Main Street   10-05-2020 

 

  

 

6.B.a

Packet Pg. 41



2020 Resolutions 
 

  Number Name         Adopted 
 

2020-01 Mayor Longino – Years of Service Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-02 NLC Service Line Warranty Agreement Resolution   1/6/2020 

2020-03 Execution of the MEAG Power Municipal Competitive Trust Fund 2/3/2020 

2020-04 MEAG Voting Delegate      2/3/2020 

2020-05 HB 309 - GA Local Gov’t Infrastructure Finance Authority Act PENDING 

2020-06 Roosevelt Hwy Renaming      2/17/2020 

2020-07 City of Ethics Resolution      4/20/2020 

2020-08 Aerotropolis CID REBC Resolution     4/20/2020 

2020-09 Fulton County CDBG Cooperation Agreement   5/18/2020 

2020-10 Budget Adoption Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-11 Utility Credit Resolution      6/01/2020 

2020-12 Water, Sewer & Sanitation New Rates    7/20/2020 

2020-13 Georgia Greenspace Program      10/05/2020 

 

 

6.B.b

Packet Pg. 42



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8380  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:03 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Request to Set a Public Hearing for Consideration of a Rezoning at 2154 Rugby 

Ave 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To set a Public Hearing for consideration of a rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from 

R1 - Low Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District. 

 

REASON: To set a Public Hearing for consideration of a rezoning of 2154 Rugby Ave from R1 

- Low Density Residential to R2 - Medium Density Residential Zoning District. 

 

RECOMMENDATION: Staff recommends that the Public Hearing be set for November 16, 

2020.  

 

BACKGROUND:   The applicant is requesting both a rezoning of their property in order to 

subdivide the lot into two single family home lots. The lot was originally platted as three 50-foot 

lots in the original subdivision. The three lots were combined to construct the current home and 

lot was rezoned by the City to R1 during revisions to the zoning map.   

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A 

 

REVENUE TO CITY: Application Fee 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 2, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  Approval of this 

7.A

Packet Pg. 43



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8380)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:03 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

request would result in a public hearing being set for November 16, 2020.  

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

 

STAFF: Michelle Alexander 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2154RugbyAve_Application (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 10/21/2020 10:06 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/21/2020 1:30 PM 

 Inspections Pending  

 City Attorney's Office Completed 10/27/2020 3:06 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:17 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

7.A

Packet Pg. 44



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 45



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 46



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 47



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 48



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 49



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 50



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 51



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 52



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 53



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 54



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 55



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 56



7.A.a

Packet Pg. 57



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8414  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:27 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  FAA Building Lighting Controls Replacement Project 

 

 

PURPOSE:  City Council approval of the replacement of the lighting controls system in all 

three buildings located at the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regional Headquarters 

(1643 Columbia Avenue and 1701 Columbia Avenue). 

 

REASON:  Aside and apart from capital expenditure recommendations outlined via the current 

fiscal year proposed budget process, property management representatives for the United States 

Southern Regional Headquarters of the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) submitted a 

proposal to implement various lighting controls replacement.  Consideration involves the 

replacement of infrastructure systems that are well beyond useful life. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  City Council approval of the replacement of the lighting controls 

system at the Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) Regional Headquarters. 

 

BACKGROUND:  See attached cost breakdown. 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE:  N/A. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $140,680.00 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes.  This capital item was approved in the FY2020-2021 budget via 

financial support from the City’s FAA Fund. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 2, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  Federal Aviation 

Administration. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  None. 

8.A

Packet Pg. 58



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8414)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:27 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  None. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  None. 

 

STAFF:  Office of the City Manager 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 FAA Bldg Lighting Controls Back-Up Documentation (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/21/2020 1:59 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/21/2020 2:01 PM 

 Purchasing Completed 10/21/2020 2:07 PM 

 Finance Completed 10/28/2020 2:25 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:15 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

8.A

Packet Pg. 59



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 60



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 61



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 62



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 63



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 64



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 65



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 66



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 67



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 68



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 69



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 70



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 71



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 72



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 73



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 74



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 75



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 76



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 77



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 78



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 79



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 80



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 81



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 82



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 83



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 84



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 85



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 86



8.A.a

Packet Pg. 87



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8419  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:03 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michelle Alexander, City Planner 

 

RE:  Approval for Agreement with ARC to Update the Comprehensive Plan 

 

 

PURPOSE:   To consider approving the MOA to enlist the assistance of ARC in preparing the 

update to the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

REASON:  The Comprehensive Plan needs updating according to the DCA schedule.  

 

RECOMMENDATION: City Planner recommends approval. Hear presentation from Michelle 

Alexander on finalized agreement with ARC for the update to the Comprehensive Plan.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The plan serves to coordinate the planning of essentially all community 

growth functions - infrastructure, housing, economic development, transportation, land use, 

open space and recreation, etc. - into one document.  
 

COST TO CITY:  Cost will be determined by hours needed for completion. See the attached 

scope of work.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 2, 2020 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  N/A 

8.B

Packet Pg. 88



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8419)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:03 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

 

STAFF:  Planning  

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA - City of College Park 10.27.20 (PDF) 

 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA Attachment A - Scope of Work (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 10/22/2020 12:08 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/27/2020 5:21 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 10/28/2020 12:41 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 1:38 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

8.B

Packet Pg. 89



Page 1 of 4  

DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL COMPREHENSIVE PLAN 

AGREEMENT 

 

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into as of this  day of  , 20 

by and between the Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) of Atlanta, Georgia, and the City of 

College Park, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

WHEREAS, the Regional Commissions were created by the State of Georgia in order to assist 

local governments on a regional basis and to develop, promote, and assist in establishing 

coordinate and comprehensive planning in the state; and 

 

WHEREAS, as the Regional Commission for the 10-county Atlanta Region, ARC has been 

mandated to undertake certain regional responsibilities under the Georgia Planning Act of 1989 

(as amended), and does agree to perform prescribed services to local governments; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park is required to update its Local Comprehensive Plan 

on October 31, 2021, according to the schedule set by the Georgia Department of 

Community Affairs (DCA); and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park has requested assistance from ARC to update its Local 

Comprehensive Plan under the requirements set by the Minimum Standards and Procedures for 

Local Comprehensive Planning found in Chapter 110-12-1 of the DCA Rules, under the Georgia 

Planning Act (as amended); and 

 

WHEREAS, ARC and the City of College Park believe it is mutually beneficial of both parties 

that the City of College Park, as part of the ARC, has a Local Comprehensive Plan; and 

 

WHEREAS, ARC agrees to provide assistance for development of the City’s update of its Local 

Comprehensive Plan: 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 

contained, and for other good and valuable consideration, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

 

1. Duties of the ARC. In addition to those services outlined in Attachment A: Scope of Work, 

attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein, ARC agrees to perform the following 

services: 

 

a. Provide a project manager for the project and ensure that 

b. Attend Project Management Team meetings with local government staff. 

c. Update the existing Community Vision and/or Goals from the existing 

Comprehensive Plan. 

d. Complete an analysis of the Needs and Opportunities facing the community. 

e. Update the Land Use Element. 

f. Provide input on the new Five-Year Community Work Program developed by local 

government staff. 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 90



Page 2 of 4  

g. Provide input on the Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update developed 

by local government staff (only if the community already has an approved CIE) 

h. Review any adopted HUD Consolidated Plan, Local Comprehensive Transportation 

Plan, ARC’s Regional Transportation Plan/Transportation Improvement Program 

(RTP/TIP), and other plans as needed. 

i. Present at, attend, or support the two (2) required public hearings (one at kick-off and 

one prior to transmittal for regional and state review). 

j. Facilitate a maximum of three (3) Steering Committee meetings. 

k. Facilitate a maximum of one (1) public meeting. 

l. Provide an online public engagement portal and/or survey, hosted by ARC, to solicit 

plan input, if requested by the local government. 

m. Provide language for official public hearing notices, if requested by the local 

government. 

n. Provide advertisement and other public involvement materials, if requested. 

o. Prepare and present a final plan presentation. 

p. Complete any plan revisions requested by DCA following the regional and state 

review. 

q. Prepare the final plan document and other requested supporting materials to 

document community feedback. 

 
 

2. Duties of the City of College Park. In addition to those duties outlined in Attachment A: 

Scope of Work, the City of College Park agrees to perform the following duties: 

 

a. Provide a dedicated and responsive point of contact throughout the process, to 

coordinate with ARC staff and ensure that the project is moving forward in a timely 

manner. 

b. Participate as a team member on the Project Management Team. 

c. Complete a Report of Accomplishments showing the current status of each item in 

the Community Work Program from the existing Comprehensive Plan. 

d. Develop a new Five-Year Community Work Program, with ARC input. 

e. Update the Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update (only if the 

community already has an approved CIE), with ARC input. 

f. Provide ARC a list of Steering Committee members, which must include a member of 

the governing authority (elected official) and representative of the local economic 

development community. 

g. Provide a schedule for Steering Committee meetings, with ARC input. 

h. Promote public awareness and invitations to Steering Committee and public 

meetings. 

i. Provide locations for Steering Committee and public meetings that have heat/air 

conditioning, water, and electricity. 

j. Provide any food or beverages for Steering Committee and public meetings. 

k. Post and conduct public hearings as required by the City’s existing procedures. 

l. Provide timely notice to ARC of local government meetings that ARC staff should 

attend. 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 91



Page 3 of 4  

m. Provide ARC with submittal deadlines for relevant City boards and committees at the 

beginning of the process. 

n. Ensure that the following timelines are met, in order for ARC to guarantee that the 

City will meet its DCA-designated Plan Update deadline and maintain Qualified 

Local Government (QLG) status with DCA: 

1. Schedule a date for the First Required Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110- 

12-1-.04(1)(a) of the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local 

Comprehensive Planning, within thirty (30) days of the signing of this 

Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not have to occur within those 30 

days). 

2. Identify and confirm Steering Committee members within thirty (30) days of 

the signing of this Agreement. 

3. Schedule a date for the first Steering Committee meeting within thirty (30) 

days of the signing of this Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not 

have to occur within those 30 days). 

4. Schedule the Second Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-.04(1)(c) of 

the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, 

on a date that provides sufficient time for the City to transmit the final draft 

Plan Update to ARC to begin the regional and state review, no later than 

September 1, 2021. 

 

3. Time of Performance, Amendments, Modifications 
 

a. This Agreement shall become effective upon execution by both parties and 

remain in effect until the completion of the project or termination by of the 

parties as provided below. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, in 

no event shall the term of this Agreement exceed two (2) years from the 

effective date. 

 

b. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon sixty (60) days’ written notice to 

the other parties, provided that the party requesting termination has provided 

notice and sufficient opportunity for remedy. 

 

c. Either party may request changes to this Agreement at any time by written notice to 

the other party’s signatory of this Agreement. Such changes as are mutually agreed 

upon by and between the parties shall be incorporated in written amendments to this 

Agreement and executed in the same manner as this Agreement. This Agreement 

may only be modified by an instrument in writing executed by the City of College 

Park and ARC. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City of College Park and ARC 

acknowledge that this Agreement may be revised or refined from time to time during 

its term. The parties agree to cooperate with each other by executing such documents 

as may be necessary to evidence such mutually agreeable modifications and 

refinements. 

 

4. Rights in Documents, Materials, and Data Produced 
 

For the purposes of this Agreement, ‘data’ includes, but is not limited to, writings, sound 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 92



Page 4 of 4  

recordings, photographs, films, videotapes, or other graphic representations and works of 

a similar nature. The City of College Park and ARC shall have the right to use same 

without restriction or limitation and without compensation to the other parties of the 

Agreement. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereto executed this Agreement as of the date first 

above written. 

 
 

Atlanta Regional Commission (ARC) 
 

 

Attested, Assistant Secretary Douglas R. Hooker, Executive Director 

 

 

Witness: The City of College Park 
 

 

Municipal Clerk Hon. Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

Approved as to Form:  
 

 

City Attorney 

Approved: 
 

 

8.B.a

Packet Pg. 93



1 
 

Attachment A: 

ARC Comprehensive Plan Services Scope of Work 

Pursuant to the 2012 update to the Georgia Department of Community Affairs (DCA) Minimum 
Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning (Chapter 110-12-1), a Regional 
Commission is required to prepare a Basic Comprehensive Plan for a local government, upon 
request, during the community’s regular planning due date cycle. At no additional cost to the 
local government, ARC will produce/provide the following for local governments: 

• A Project Manager for the project 
• Revisions to the existing Community Vision or Goals from the existing Comprehensive 

Plan 
• An analysis of the Needs and Opportunities facing the community, using ARC resources, 

local data, and input from community stakeholders 
• An updated Land Use Element with Character Areas or standard future land use 

classifications 
• A review of any adopted HUD Consolidated Plan, Local Comprehensive Transportation 

Plan, and ARC’s Regional Transportation Plan/Transportation Improvement Program, 
and other plans as needed 

• Presentations/support/attendance at the two (2) required public hearings (one at kick-
off and one prior to transmittal for regional and state review) 

• A maximum of three (3) steering committee meetings facilitated by ARC staff, at no cost, 
at a location provided by the local government 

• A maximum of one (1) public meeting facilitated by ARC staff, at no cost, at a location 
provided by the local government 

• An online public engagement portal and/or survey hosted by ARC, if requested 
• Language for official public hearing notices, if requested 
• Advertisement and other public involvement materials to meet the above requirements 
• A final plan presentation 
• Any plan revisions required by DCA following the regional and state review 
• The final plan and other documents from the process 
• Assurance that the local government meets its DCA-designated Qualified Local 

Government (QLG) deadline if (a) the request for assistance is made to ARC in writing at 
least 12 months before the QLG deadline and (b) the first Steering Committee is held 
within 10 months of the QLG deadline.  

To ensure that the plan meets the needs of the local government and DCA’s requirements, the 
local government requesting this service will be responsible to produce/provide the following: 

• A dedicated and responsive point of contact throughout the process, to coordinate with 
ARC staff and ensure that the project is moving forward in a timely manner 

• A Report of Accomplishments showing the current status of each item in the Community 
Work Program from the existing Comprehensive Plan 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 94



2 
 

• A new Five-Year Community Work Program, with ARC input 
• A Capital Improvement Element (CIE) Annual Update (only if the community already has 

an approved CIE), with ARC input 
• A list of stakeholders for the required Steering Committee 
• A schedule for Steering Committee meetings, with ARC input 
• Public awareness and invitations to Steering Committee and public meetings 
• Locations for public meetings that have heat/air conditioning, water, and electricity 
• Any food or beverages for Steering Committee and public meetings 
• Posting of notices of public hearings as required by the community’s existing procedures 
• Timely notice to ARC of local government meetings that ARC staff should attend 
• Notice to ARC, at the beginning of the process, of submittal deadlines for relevant local 

government boards and committees 
• Assurance that the following timelines are met, in order for ARC to guarantee that the 

Local Government will meet its DCA-designated Plan Update deadline and maintain 
Qualified Local Government (QLG) status with DCA: 

o Schedule a date for the First Required Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-
.04(1)(a) of the Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive 
Planning, within 30 days of the signing of the Agreement (note that the meeting 
itself does not have to occur within those 30 days). 

o Identify and confirm Steering Committee members within 30 days of the signing 
of the Agreement. 

o Schedule a date for the first Steering Committee meeting within 30 days of the 
signing of the Agreement (note that the meeting itself does not have to occur 
within those 30 days). 

o Schedule the Second Public Hearing, as defined at Ch. 110-12-1-.04(1)(c) of the 
Minimum Standards and Procedures for Local Comprehensive Planning, on a 
date that provides sufficient time for the Local Government to transmit the final 
draft Plan Update to ARC to begin the regional and state review, no later than 60 
days before the QLG deadline. 

If the local government seeks to use consultants during the update, ARC will coordinate only 
with the primary local government contact and will only provide the items listed above to the 
local government. 

8.B.b

Packet Pg. 95



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8421  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:05 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Jackson Myers, Special Projects Administrator 

 

RE:  Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

 

 

The 2020 Southern Fulton Comprehensive Transportation Plan aims to provide residents, 

businesses, and visitors with a safe, connected, and reliable transportation system that provides 

access and mobility options to support economic growth and maintain community character. 

Final plan presentation by Keli Kemp, Southern Fulton Comprehensive Transportation Plan 

Project Manager, Modern Mobility Partner in the October 19, 2020 Workshop. The attached 

document was part of the Friday morning meeting with city staff to address all open issues. 

Those changes have been updated in the executive summery and appendixes. This is now up for 

Mayor and City Council approval of the plan.  

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Administrative Edits to SFCTP Project List_October 27 2020 (PDF) 

 College Park Project Maps & Lists_October 2020 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Jackson Myers Completed 10/23/2020 11:02 AM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 12:56 PM 

 Mike Mason Completed 10/28/2020 2:41 PM 

 Michelle Alexander Completed 10/28/2020 12:56 PM 

 Loretta Washington Completed 10/28/2020 1:30 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:16 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

8.C

Packet Pg. 96



Administrative Edits to SFCTP Project List 
October 27, 2020 

 

Page 1 of 1 
 

Over the course of the City Council meetings held in August-October 2020, a few projects were found 

to require minor edits. Most were corrections to the state/federal match percentage, and in a few 

cases the jurisdiction required correction. There is no impact on project maps or overall financial 

feasibility of the plan, and the total cost of the projects is reduced by 0.03%. Below is a summary of the 

edits to the project lists in the FINAL Executive Summary and Recommendations Technical Report: 
 

Project 
Jurisdiction(s) 

Affected 
Edit Cost Impact 

20 

Chattahoochee 

Hills, Palmetto, 

South Fulton 

Jurisdiction was incorrectly listed as 

South Fulton in the project list and was 

corrected to say Chattahoochee Hills 

and Palmetto, as shown on the map. 

Project cost was removed from 

South Fulton and divided 

proportionally (based on project 

length in each city) between 

Palmetto and Chattahoochee Hills. 

157 
College Park, East 

Point, Hapeville 

Jurisdiction was incorrectly listed as 

College Park, East Point, and Hapeville 

in the project list. The list was revised to 

say only East Point and Hapeville. 

Project cost was removed from 

College Park and divided 

proportionally (based on project 

length in each city) between East 

Point and Hapeville. 

1003 
Fairburn, Union 

City 

Jurisdiction was incorrectly listed as 

Fairburn in the project list and was 

corrected to say Union City, as shown 

on the project map. 

Local match portion of the project 

cost was removed from Fairburn 

and added to Union City. 

163 College Park 

Project description updated to: 

“College Park MARTA station area 

accessibility improvements. May 

include opening the station to through 

bike and pedestrian movements and 

ADA upgrades (e.g., due to stairs to E. 

Main St.)” 

No impact on cost. 

1044 

College Park, 

South Fulton, East 

Point 

Project limit was incorrectly listed in the 

"From" column of the project list as "I-

285" and was revised to match the 

project description ("Conley 

St/Convention Center Concourse"). 

Minor change to proportional cost 

share among College Park, East 

Point, Atlanta, and South Fulton. 

1548 
College Park, East 

Point, South Fulton 

Cost share was previously 100% local; 

should be 43.5% local. Was listed as 

100% in College Park but is now 

proportionally in College Park, East 

Point, South Fulton, and Atlanta. 

Corrected local share proportion 

among the cities. 

95, 96, 97, 

98, 99, 100, 

103, 104, 

163, 1505, 

1506,1507, 

1517, 1533, 

2000 

All jurisdictions Corrected state/federal cost share. 

No change to total cost or local 

share. 

 

196, 200, 

241, 1070, 

1137, 1555, 

2008 

College Park, East 

Point, Fairburn, 

Palmetto, South 

Fulton, Union City 

Cost share was previously 100% local 

and was corrected to 43.5% local. 
Reduced cities’ cost share. 

 

8.C.a

Packet Pg. 97



 

120  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

City of College Park: 5-Year Financially Feasible Projects by Type 

Figure 53: City of College Park: 5-Year Financially Feasible Projects by Type 

  

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 98



 

121  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

City of College Park: 10-Year Financially Feasible Projects by Type 

Figure 54: City of College Park: 10-Year Financially Feasible Projects by Type 

 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 99



 

122  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

City of College Park: Long-Term Projects by Type 

Figure 55: City of College Park: Long-Term Projects by Type 

 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 100



 

123  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

City of College Park Project List 

Table 13: College Park Project List 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

53 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks 
N/A    

Develop Signage, 

Landmarks, and 

Crosswalks for Walking 

Tour of Downtown/Historic 

College Park 

College Park $2,966 N/A $26,697 N/A N/A $29,663 $0 $29,663 $29,663 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

106 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks (in 

conjunction with 

planned/ 

programmed 

new bus shelter) 

SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  Sullivan Rd 

Midblock pedestrian 

crossing (in conjunction 

with 

planned/programmed 

new bus shelter) 

College Park $7,000 $0 $69,000 N/A $8,444 $84,444 $47,711 $36,733 $36,733 5 year 43.4 44.1 87.5 93 

107 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks (in 

conjunction with 

planned/ 

programmed 

new bus shelter) 

Sullivan Rd   Edison Dr 

Install crosswalks and 

sidewalks (in conjunction 

with 

planned/programmed 

new bus shelter) 

College Park $12,000 $58,000 $116,000 N/A $20,667 $206,667 $0 $206,667 $206,667 5 year 41.6 42.5 84.1 111 

108 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks (in 

conjunction with 

planned/ 

programmed 

new bus shelter) 

Sullivan Rd   Embarcadero 

Install crosswalk (in 

conjunction with 

planned/programmed 

new bus shelter) 

College Park $1,000 $0 $11,000 N/A $1,333 $13,333 $0 $13,333 $13,333 5 year 41.6 42.5 84.1 111 

170 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Bicycle lanes US 29/Main St 

East Point City 

Limits 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
 Install protected bike 

lanes. 
College Park $169,000 $844,000 $1,688,000 N/A $300,111 $3,001,111 $1,695,628 $1,305,483 $1,305,483 5 year 49.8 49.4 99.1 39 

194 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Pedestrian 

improvements 

SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  I-285 

Midblock pedestrian 

crossing 
College Park $6,000 $86,000 $58,000 N/A $6,000 $192,104 $108,539 $83,565 $83,565 5 year 44.8 44.3 89.2 78 

227 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Bicycle signal 

detection 
US 29/Main St 

John Wesley 

Ave. 
Harvard Ave.  

Bike signal detection near 

College Park MARTA 

station 

College Park $8,000 N/A $120,000 N/A $14,222 $142,224 $0 $142,224 $142,224 5 year 55.4 52.2 108.3 11 

1548 Other Scoping study 
Camp Creek 

Parkway/SR 6 

Chattahoochee 

River 
I-85  

Partner with the Fulton 

Industrial Boulevard CID 

and local jurisdictions to 

conduct a scoping study 

along Camp Creek 

Parkway (SR 6) from the 

Chattahoochee River to I-

85, with a focus on 

operations, capacity, and 

safety. 

College Park, East 

Point, South 

Fulton, Atlanta 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $1,000,000 $565,000 $435,000 $79,750 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

239 Other Study 
Southern Fulton 

Region 
   

Southern Fulton lighting 

assessment (note that 

lights on state routes must 

be maintained by cities, 

including interstates). Add 

(LED) lighting to heavily 

forested corridors, 

including South Fulton 

Parkway, Campbellton 

Fairburn Rd, SR 92, SR 56 

beyond Welcome All Rd, 

US 29. 

All jurisdictions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $250,000 $0 $250,000 $31,250 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

54 Other Study N/A    

Conduct Greenway Trails 

Plan, to include 

Connection to Atlanta 

BeltLine through Bike and 

Pedestrian Trails 

College Park N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $250,000 $0 $250,000 $250,000 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 101



 

124  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

196 Other Study 
SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  Godby Rd 

SR 279/Old National Hwy 

at Godby Rd.: Safety 

Study and Improvements 

College Park $100,000 $300,000 $500,000 N/A $100,000 $1,231,436 $695,761 $535,675 $535,675 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

241 Other Study 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

Atlanta City 

Limits 

Coweta 

County Limits 
 

US 29 corridor study for 

traffic operations, 

roadway capacity, 

bicycle and pedestrian 

facilities, access 

management, etc. US 29 

from City of Atlanta to 

Coweta County limits. 

College Park, East 

Point, Fairburn, 

Palmetto, South 

Fulton, Union City 

N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $500,000 $282,500 $217,500 $36,250 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

240 Other 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage 

Inventory 

Southern Fulton 

Region 
   

Conduct area 

wayfinding/signage 

inventory (expand off 

inventory from AACIDs). 

The inventory may also 

include needs assessment 

and recommendations for 

new/updated signage. 

All jurisdictions N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $150,000 $0 $150,000 $18,750 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

164 Other 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage Plan 

College Park 

MARTA station 
  E Main St Wayfinding Signage Plan College Park N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $50,000 $0 $50,000 $50,000 5 year 21.8 20.7 42.5 337 

922 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
US 29/Main St   Virginia Ave Bridge rehabilitation College Park $31,500 N/A $315,900 N/A $38,600 $386,000 $218,090 $167,910 $167,910 5 year 36.8 39.5 76.2 149 

1509 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Resurfacing     

Resurface roadways 

based on GDOT’s 

Pavement Management 

System prioritization system 

College Park N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A $49,710,375 $0 $49,710,375 $49,710,375 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

151 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Connected 

Vehicle 

Deployment 

    

Connected Vehicles 

Deployment Phase 1: 

Outfit traffic signals with 

connected vehicle 

infrastructure. Activate 

emergency vehicle 

preemption and transit 

signal priority applications. 

Will provide capabilities for 

EVP, TSP, and FSP. Phase 1 

provides connected 

vehicle signal 

communication upgrades, 

including all signals on 

SFCTP smart corridors, 

excluding those already 

upgraded or programmed 

for upgrade through CV1K 

initiative. 108 signalized 

intersections in total. 

College Park, East 

Point, Fairburn, 

Fulton County, 

Hapeville, 

Palmetto, South 

Fulton, Union City 

$118,800 N/A $1,069,200 N/A $108,000 $1,188,000 $671,220 $516,780 $14,355 5 year 64.8 59.8 120.1 1 

156 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Add 

communications 

at traffic signals 

with pedestrian 

activity 

Traffic signal 

locations with 

pedestrian 

pushbuttons 

   

Add communications to 

allow traffic signal data to 

measure pedestrian 

activity and convert the 

measurement into a 

measure of pedestrian 

exposure. Use pedestrian 

exposure to assess 

pedestrian crash rates 

more holistically at 

signalized intersections. 

All jurisdictions $40,000 N/A $360,000 N/A N/A $400,000 $0 $400,000 $57,143 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 102



 

125  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

216 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Signal 

monitoring, 

maintenance, 

and operations 

Southern Fulton 

Region 
   

Regional contract for 

signal monitoring, 

maintenance, and 

operations (RTOP “like” on 

non-state routes) 

All jurisdictions $786,000 N/A none N/A N/A $7,860,000 $0 $7,860,000 $844,463 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

225 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Signal upgrades 

Smart Corridors 

in Southern 

Fulton Region 

   

Reflective signal 

backplates on all 

identified smart corridors 

that do not already have 

them (most state routes 

already do). 58 

intersection locations 

assumed. 

All jurisdictions $6,960 N/A $62,640 N/A N/A $69,600 $0 $69,600 $8,213 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

1044 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Smart Corridor / 

ITS Technology 

Camp Creek 

Pkwy/SR 6 

Conley 

St/Convention 

Center 

Concourse 

Butner Rd SW  

Camp Creek Parkway (SR 

6) Advanced Dilemma-

Zone Detection System: 

Building upon the SR 6 

Truck Friendly Lanes 

project to the west of the 

Aerotropolis,  coordinate 

with GDOT RTOP Program 

to leverage connected 

signal technology along 

Camp Creek Parkway (SR 

6) from Butner Road to 

Conley Street/Convention 

Center Concourse to 

implement Advanced 

Dilemma-Zone Detection 

Systems to provide 

additional green signal 

time for trucks 

approaching signalized 

intersections. This should 

be developed as a pilot 

project and evaluated for 

potential application on 

other key truck routes, 

such as Old Dixie Road (US 

19/41/SR 3), Roosevelt 

Highway (US 29/SR 14), 

and Forest Parkway (SR 

331). 

College Park, 

South Fulton, East 

Point, Atlanta 

$2,100 N/A $18,900 N/A N/A $21,000 $11,865 $9,135 $3,045 5 year 47.9 44.4 89.6 76 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 103



 

126  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

1554 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage 

    

Directional and 

Wayfinding Signage to 

Key Destinations: Install 

advance pavement 

marking and overhead 

directional and 

wayfinding signage along 

key freight routes that 

direct drivers to interstate 

highways and key 

destinations like Hartsfield-

Jackson Atlanta 

International Airport and 

the Truckpass lot. 

Suggested locations 

include: Old Dixie Road 

north of Southpoint Drive; 

Old Dixie Road south of 

Conley Road; Forest 

Parkway (SR 331) east of 

Riverdale Road (SR 139); I-

85 approaching Riverdale 

Road (SR 139); Riverdale 

Road (SR 139) 

approaching Sullivan 

Road (to the north and 

south); South Fulton 

Parkway (SR 14) west of 

the I-85/I-285 interchange; 

and Roosevelt Highway 

(US 29/SR 14) approaching 

South Fulton Parkway (to 

the north and south). 

College Park, East 

Point, Hapeville, 

South Fulton 

$6,933 N/A $62,400 N/A N/A $69,333 $39,173 $30,160 $7,540 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

2000 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Connected 

Vehicle 

Deployment 

    

In conjunction with 

Connected Vehicles 

Deployment Phase 1 

(project #151), install 

vehicle transponders on 

fire vehicles 

All jurisdictions $0 N/A $456,500 N/A N/A $456,500 $0 $456,500 $44,000 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

2001 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Connected 

Vehicle 

Deployment 

    

Connected Vehicles 

Deployment Phase 2: 

Connected vehicle signal 

communication upgrades, 

including all signals on all 

roads, excluding those 

already upgraded or 

programmed for upgrade 

through CV1K initiative or 

through Connected 

Vehicles Deployment 

Phase 1. 83 signalized 

intersections in total. 

College Park, East 

Point, Fairburn, 

Fulton County, 

Hapeville, South 

Fulton, Union City 

$83,000 N/A $747,000 N/A $83,000 $913,000 $515,845 $397,155 $57,420 5 year 0.0 52.4 104.8 17 

45 Trail Multi-use trail Airport City 
Camp Creek 

Pkwy 
US 29/Main St  Multi-use off-road trail College Park $72,000 $362,000 $724,000 N/A $128,667 $1,286,667 $0 $1,286,667 $1,286,667 5 year 47.0 45.2 92.2 66 

46 Trail Multi-use trail Hershel Rd 
Washington 

Road 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
 Multi-use off-road trail College Park $73,000 $366,500 $733,000 N/A $130,278 $1,302,778 $0 $1,302,778 $1,302,778 5 year 41.3 40.1 81.5 121 

56 Trail Multi-use trail N/A    Parkway Trail Phase IV College Park $23,730 $71,191 $142,383 N/A N/A $237,305 $0 $237,305 $237,305 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 104



 

127  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

163 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bicycle & 

pedestrian 

access 

improvement 

College Park 

MARTA station 
  US 29/Main St 

College Park MARTA 

station area accessibility 

improvements. May 

include opening the 

station to through bike 

and pedestrian 

movements and ADA 

upgrades (e.g., due to 

stairs to E. Main St.) 

College Park $10,000 N/A $90,000 N/A N/A $100,000 $80,000 $20,000 $20,000 5 year 44.1 44.2 88.4 85 

215 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bus stop 

amenities 

Bus Stops in 

Southern Fulton 

Region 

   

Regional contract for bus 

stop maintenance (e.g., 

landscaping, and trash 

retrieval) and smart trash 

receptacles (MARTA 

Army) 

All jurisdictions $157,400 N/A none N/A N/A $1,574,000 $0 $1,574,000 $155,826 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

1505 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bus Shelter     

New bus shelter at all 

MARTA bus stops meeting 

ridership criteria that do 

not currently have a 

shelter (see stops 

identified). Include smart 

trash receptacle. 22 bus 

stop locations. 

All jurisdictions $55,660 $166,980 $333,960 N/A N/A $556,600 $445,280 $111,320 $10,130 5 year 0.0 55.8 111.6 3 

1506 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bus stop 

amenities 
    

Benches at all MARTA bus 

stops meeting ridership 

criteria that do not 

currently have a bench 

(see stops identified). 

Include smart trash 

receptacle. 44 bus stop 

locations. 

All jurisdictions $35,640 $106,920 $213,840 N/A N/A $356,400 $285,120 $71,280 $4,847 5 year 0.0 52.3 104.7 19 

1507 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bus stop 

amenities 
    

Benches at all MARTA bus 

stops approaching 

ridership criteria that do 

not currently have a 

bench (see stops 

identified). Include smart 

trash receptacle. 84 bus 

stop locations. 

All jurisdictions $68,040 $204,120 $408,240 N/A N/A $680,400 $544,320 $136,080 $9,662 5 year 0.0 55.8 111.6 3 

1517 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Bus stop 

amenities 
    

Benches at all MARTA bus 

stops not approaching 

ridership criteria that do 

not currently have a 

bench (see stops 

identified). Include smart 

trash receptacle. Funded 

by cities. 637 bus stop 

locations. 

All jurisdictions $515,970 $1,547,910 $3,095,820 N/A N/A $5,159,700 $4,127,760 $1,031,940 $108,539 5 year 0.0 59.3 118.5 2 

95 Transit Expansion 
High capacity/ 

rapid transit 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

College Park 

MARTA station 
Palmetto  Bus rapid transit 

College Park, 

Fairburn, 

Palmetto, South 

Fulton, Union City 

$6,735,000 $13,470,000 $24,695,000 N/A N/A $44,900,000 $35,920,000 $8,980,000 $1,526,600 5 year 56.6 53.7 107.7 12 

101 Transit Expansion 
New shuttle 

service 

Corporate 

Crescent 

Circulator 

International 

Terminal 

College Park 

MARTA station 
 Corporate Crescent 

Circulator shuttle system 

Atlanta, College 

Park, East Point, 

Hapeville 

$1,500,000 $3,000,000 $5,500,000 N/A N/A $10,000,000 $5,650,000 $2,000,000 $1,000,000 5 year 54.6 51.0 103.4 25 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 105



 

128  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

103 Transit Expansion Mobility district N/A    

Create a mobility-on-

demand service that 

supplements existing and 

future MARTA service. 

Focus in western part of 

Southern Fulton, not 

covered by existing transit. 

All jurisdictions $150,000 N/A $850,000 N/A N/A $1,000,000 $800,000 $200,000 $25,000 5 year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

16 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Bicycle lanes 

SR 139/ 

Riverdale Rd 

US 29/ Roosevelt 

Hwy 
Flat Shoals  4’ bike lanes striped on 

street 
College Park $132,518 $517,762 $1,433,637 N/A $141,749 $2,740,764 $1,548,532 $1,192,232 $1,192,232 10 Year 46.2 46.1 92.3 65 

1050 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Sidewalks 

Camp Creek 

Pkwy/SR 6 
Washington Rd 

Conventional 

Center 

Concourse 

 

Camp Creek Parkway (SR 

6) Sidewalk: Fill gaps in 

sidewalk along Camp 

Creek Parkway (SR 6) 

between Washington 

Road and Airport Drive. 

College Park, East 

Point 
$60,000 $180,000 $360,000 N/A N/A $600,000 $339,000 $261,000 $153,990 10 Year 48.3 45.1 93.2 60 

1054 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Sidewalks Sullivan Rd 

Old National 

Hwy/US 279 
Best Rd  

Sullivan Road Sidewalk: 

Install sidewalk along the 

north side of Sullivan Road 

between Old National 

Highway (SR 279) and Best 

Road. 

College Park $60,000 $180,000 $360,000 N/A N/A $600,000 $0 $600,000 $600,000 10 Year 41.3 39.8 81.1 126 

1055 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Sidewalks Best Rd Sullivan Rd W Point Ave  

Best Road Sidewalk: Install 

sidewalk along the east 

side of Best Road 

between W Point Avenue 

and Sullivan Road. 

College Park $80,000 $240,000 $480,000 N/A N/A $800,000 $0 $800,000 $800,000 10 Year 41.8 39.9 81.8 120 

1059 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 
Sidewalks 

Roosevelt 

Highway/US 29 
Ben Hill Rd 

Lee St 

Connector 
 

Roosevelt Highway (US 

29/SR 14) Sidewalk: Fill 

gaps in sidewalk along 

Roosevelt Highway 

between Ben Hill Road 

and Lee Street Connector, 

with focus on the area 

near Old National 

Highway (SR 279). 

Coordinate with GDOT PI 

0011845 US 29/SR 14 at 

Washington Road 

intersection improvement. 

College Park, 

South Fulton 
$250,000 $750,000 $1,500,000 N/A N/A $2,500,000 $1,412,500 $1,087,500 $674,250 10 Year 45.5 42.2 85.0 108 

1145 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Bicycle & 

pedestrian 

facilities 

Virginia 

Avenue 
   

Implement traffic calming 

and streetscaping 

including wider sidewalks 

and bicycle lanes; remove 

median. 

College Park, East 

Point, Hapeville 
$945,025 $4,144,000 $9,107,910 N/A $1,577,437 $15,774,372 $0 $15,774,372 $7,284,921 10 Year 54.2 51.7 106.2 15 

173 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Raised medians 
SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
Flat Shoals Rd Sullivan Rd  

Construct raised median 

from Flat Shoals Rd to 

Sullivan Rd. 

College Park, 

South Fulton 
$186,791 N/A $1,681,123 N/A $186,791 $1,867,914 $1,055,372 $812,543 $243,763 10 Year 41.4 37.9 77.8 138 

226 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Signal upgrades 

Freight 

Corridors in 

Southern Fulton 

Region 

   

On freight corridors, raise 

signal head height or add 

signal on side to increase 

visibility blocked by trucks. 

75 intersection locations 

assumed. 

All jurisdictions $75,000 N/A $675,000 N/A N/A $750,000 $0 $750,000 $88,500 10 Year N/A N/A N/A N/A 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 106



 

129  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

948 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Intersection 

improvements 

SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  Sullivan Rd 

Upgrade pedestrian 

landing; convert 

northbound left-turn and 

westbound left-turn signal 

phasing to Protected + 

Permissive and install left 

turn flashing yellow arrow 

signal heads; add 

channelized yield-

controlled eastbound right 

turn lane with raised 

concrete island; convert 

northbound right-turn lane 

to channelized yield-

controlled movement with 

raised concrete island; 

and either convert West 

Point Avenue to right-

in/right-out approach or 

relocate West Point 

Avenue to the east to 

mitigate vehicular 

conflicts. 

College Park $40,000 N/A $360,000 N/A N/A $400,000 $226,000 $174,000 $174,000 10 Year 44.5 45.0 89.5 77 

24 Trail Multi-use trail 

East Point, 

College Park, 

Hapeville, 

Forest Park, 

Airport City, 

GICC, 

Mountain View, 

Old National 

Hwy, Phoenix 

Blvd 

   

Multi-use trail connecting 

the downtowns and 

activity centers around 

the airport. Include link to 

Phoenix Trail. 

College Park, East 

Point, Hapeville 
$1,493,000 $7,465,500 $14,931,000 N/A $2,654,389 $26,543,889 $14,997,297 $11,546,592 $3,848,864 10 Year 57.7 54.0 109.5 7 

253 Trail Multi-use trail 
SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
US 29/Main St 

Piedmont 

Driving Club 
 Multi-use off-road trail 

Atlanta, College 

Park, East Point, 

South Fulton 

$484,000 $2,422,000 $4,844,000 N/A $861,111 $8,611,111 $4,865,278 $3,745,833 $1,307,521 10 Year 53.8 50.6 102.3 28 

97 Transit Expansion 
High capacity/ 

rapid transit 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 

College Park 

MARTA station 

SR 70/Fulton 

Industrial Blvd 
 Arterial rapid transit 

College Park, East 

Point, Fulton 

County, South 

Fulton 

$1,980,000 $3,960,000 $7,260,000 N/A N/A $13,200,000 $10,560,000 $2,640,000 $369,600 10 Year 56.2 53.6 108.4 10 

38 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

Atlanta City 

Limits 

Coweta 

County Limits 
 Multi-use off-road trail 

College Park, East 

Point, Fairburn, 

Palmetto, South 

Fulton, Union City 

$2,700,000 $9,367,000 $29,200,500 N/A $2,888,000 $54,374,653 $30,721,679 $23,652,974 $4,990,778 Long Term 56.9 53.7 107.7 13 

282 
Bicycle & 

Pedestrian 

Sidewalks & 

crosswalks 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

  Buffington Rd 
Install crosswalks and 

sidewalks 
College Park $12,000 $60,000 $120,000 N/A $21,333 $213,333 $120,533 $92,800 $92,800 Long Term 32.6 32.9 65.4 230 

895 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

  SR 14/South 

Fulton Pkwy 
Bridge rehabilitation College Park $138,900 N/A $1,389,900 N/A $169,867 $1,698,667 $959,747 $738,920 $738,920 Long Term 28.2 31.3 59.5 267 

918 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
I-285 Ramp I-285 I-85 South  Bridge rehabilitation College Park $209,400 N/A $2,092,500 N/A $255,767 $2,557,667 $1,445,082 $1,112,585 $1,112,585 Long Term 28.6 31.4 60.0 262 

919 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  CSX Railroad Bridge rehabilitation College Park $60,000 N/A $600,000 N/A $73,333 $733,333 $414,333 $319,000 $319,000 Long Term 26.8 29.8 56.7 291 

920 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
  Camp Creek Bridge rehabilitation College Park $16,500 N/A $164,100 N/A $20,067 $417,499 $235,887 $181,612 $181,612 Long Term 34.1 36.3 70.4 192 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 107



 

130  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

921 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
Herschel Rd   Camp Creek Bridge rehabilitation College Park $63,785 N/A $574,061 N/A N/A $637,846 $0 $637,846 $637,846 Long Term 31.3 33.4 64.7 237 

983 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

SR 14/South 

Fulton Pkwy 
  Buffington Rd Bridge rehabilitation College Park $69,900 N/A $698,700 N/A $85,400 $854,000 $482,510 $371,490 $371,490 Long Term 26.8 29.8 56.6 292 

984 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

  SR 139/Riverdale 

Rd 
Bridge rehabilitation College Park $162,000 N/A $1,621,500 N/A $198,167 $1,981,667 $1,119,642 $862,025 $862,025 Long Term 31.7 33.5 65.2 234 

987 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
I-85 North   

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 

(NBL) 

Bridge rehabilitation College Park $45,000 N/A $450,000 N/A $55,000 $550,000 $310,750 $239,250 $239,250 Long Term 24.1 27.9 52.0 318 

990 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
I-85 Ramp   Loop Rd Bridge rehabilitation College Park $72,900 N/A $729,600 N/A $89,167 $891,667 $503,792 $387,875 $387,875 Long Term 25.5 29.3 54.8 305 

991 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
  US 29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 
Bridge rehabilitation College Park $22,500 N/A $223,800 N/A $27,367 $273,667 $154,622 $119,045 $119,045 Long Term 33.0 35.0 68.0 216 

993 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
I-85 North   

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 

(SBL) 

Bridge rehabilitation College Park $52,200 N/A $521,100 N/A $63,700 $637,000 $359,905 $277,095 $277,095 Long Term 24.1 27.9 52.0 318 

1000 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 
I-85   I-85 Spur Conn Bridge rehabilitation College Park $134,100 N/A $1,342,500 N/A $164,067 $1,640,667 $926,977 $713,690 $713,690 Long Term 30.0 32.9 62.8 247 

1001 

Roadway Asset 

Management & 

Resiliency 

Bridge 

rehabilitation 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
  E Main St Bridge rehabilitation College Park $24,300 N/A $243,300 N/A $29,733 $297,333 $167,993 $129,340 $129,340 Long Term 24.1 27.9 52.0 318 

188 
Roadway 

Expansion 
Widening 

SR 6/Camp 

Creek Pkwy 
I-285 I-85  

Roadway widening from 4 

to 6 lanes. All road 

widening projects should 

include streetscape 

improvements, as well as 

pedestrian refuge areas, 

crosswalks, and flashing 

beacons, where possible. 

College Park, East 

Point 
$4,708,000 $0 $47,084,000 $121,000 $22,248,429 $74,161,429 $41,901,207 $32,260,221 $16,484,973 Long Term 52.3 51.5 103.4 24 

205 
Roadway 

Expansion 

Collector 

Distributer 

and/or new 

ramp 

SR 14/South 

Fulton Pkwy 
  Buffington Rd 

C/D and/or loop ramps for 

WB South Fulton Pkwy to 

Buffington Road 

College Park $1,000,000 $3,000,000 $6,000,000 N/A N/A $10,000,000 $5,650,000 $4,350,000 $4,350,000 Long Term 28.1 30.0 58.2 278 

210 
Roadway 

Expansion 

Alternate and 

parallel routes 

SR 14/South 

Fulton Pkwy 

SR 92/ 

Campbellton 

Fairburn Rd 

Welcome All 

Rd 
 

Alternate and parallel 

routes along South Fulton 

Parkway 

College Park, 

South Fulton, 

Union City 

$5,086,000 $20,344,400 $50,861,000 $632,500 $32,967,386 $109,891,286 $62,088,576 $47,802,709 $0 Long Term 37.2 36.5 73.6 164 

285 
Roadway 

Expansion 

New roadway 

connection 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

  
Consolidated 

Rental Car 

Center 

US 29 - Improved access 

to Consolidated Rental 

Car Center (Contract) 

from local street network 

College Park $62,000 $247,200 $618,000 N/A $291,429 $971,429 $548,857 $422,571 $422,571 Long Term 28.8 28.6 57.4 280 

1041 
Roadway 

Expansion 
Widening 

Roosevelt 

Highway/US 29 
Welcome All Rd Washington Rd  

Widen Roosevelt Highway 

(US 29/SR 14) from two to 

four lanes from S. Fulton 

Parkway to Washington 

Road, tying into the 

proposed roundabout at 

Washington Road. All road 

widening projects should 

include streetscape 

improvements, as well as 

pedestrian refuge areas, 

crosswalks, and flashing 

beacons, where possible. 

College Park, 

South Fulton 
$780,000 $2,340,000 $4,680,000 N/A N/A $7,800,000 $4,407,000 $3,393,000 $407,160 Long Term 43.4 43.5 87.2 94 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 108



 

131  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

1060 
Roadway 

Expansion 

New ramp/ 

connection 
New Ramp 

Myrtle 

St/Columbia 

Ave 

I-85  New ramp from I-85 SB to 

Myrtle St/Columbia Ave 
College Park $2,000,000 $6,000,000 $12,000,000 N/A N/A $20,000,000 $11,300,000 $8,700,000 $8,700,000 Long Term 28.3 29.5 57.7 279 

152 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Railroad crossing 

event tracking 

Railroad signals 

where there is 

an at grade 

crossing with 

nearby traffic 

signal: 

Welcome All 

Rd, Virginia 

Ave, Rugby Rd, 

Buffington Rd, 

Lesley Dr, 

Harvard Ave 

   

Railroad crossing event 

broadcasting at 6 

locations: CSX Railroad at 

Welcome All Rd, Virginia 

Ave, Rugby Rd, Buffington 

Rd, Lesley Dr, Harvard 

Ave. At each location, 

add communications to 

traffic signal system to 

predict train arrivals and 

train event durations, and 

install connected vehicle 

infrastructure and 

associated 

communications 

equipment to assist with 

broadcasting train arrival 

and event duration 

information to emergency 

vehicles and motorists 

approaching the 

highway-rail crossing. 

Using traffic signal system 

data from ATSPM, develop 

analytics to predict train 

arrivals and train event 

durations and make 

information available to 

emergency vehicle 

dispatch centers; track 

railroad activity over time 

to understand traffic 

impacts; evaluate driver 

behavior and risk 

associate with train 

events; and monitor 

critical equipment related 

to highway-rail 

intersection operations. 

College Park, East 

Point, Hapeville 
$44,000 N/A $396,000 N/A N/A $440,000 $248,600 $191,400 $127,600 Long Term 0.0 29.1 58.3 277 

171 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Parking US 29/Main St Princeton Ave 
South of John 

Wesley Ave 
 

Convert existing 

conventional angle 

parking in downtown 

College Park to back-in 

angle parking 

College Park $26,667 N/A $240,000 N/A $26,667 $266,667 $150,667 $116,000 $116,000 Long Term 23.7 20.9 44.7 336 

176 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Roadside 

barrier/ guardrail 

SR 14/South 

Fulton Pkwy 
Rivertown Rd 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

 

Install roadside 

barrier/guardrail at 

locations where 

obstructions are located 

within the clear zone 

Chattahoochee 

Hills, College Park, 

South Fulton, 

Union City 

$672,903 N/A $6,056,128 N/A N/A $6,729,031 $3,801,903 $2,927,129 $204,899 Long Term 32.6 29.8 59.4 269 

192 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Interchange 

improvement 

SR 279/Old 

National Hwy 
  I-285 Interchange improvement College Park $100,000 N/A $2,000,000 N/A $210,000 $2,844,616 $1,607,208 $1,237,408 $1,237,408 Long Term 35.7 35.5 71.2 183 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 109



 

132  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

229 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Electric vehicle 

charging 
N/A    

Electric vehicle 

charging/smart streetlights 

for on-street parking in 

downtown College Park. 

Three charging spots. 

College Park $6,600 $19,800 $39,600 N/A N/A $66,000 $0 $66,000 $66,000 Long Term 37.1 35.4 72.6 176 

232 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage 

N/A    CIDs wayfinding locations 

Atlanta, College 

Park, East Point, 

Hapeville, South 

Fulton 

$400,000 N/A $4,800,000 N/A N/A $6,055,657 $0 $6,055,657 $1,513,914 Long Term 41.1 36.4 75.0 159 

233 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Loading Zones N/A    
Designate loading zones 

for trucks and TNCs in 

downtown College Park 

College Park $1,000 $3,000 $6,000 N/A N/A $10,000 $0 $10,000 $10,000 Long Term 30.1 28.4 58.5 276 

287 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Intersection 

improvements 

US 

29/Roosevelt 

Hwy 

  Buffington Rd Intersection improvement College Park $75,000 $225,000 $450,000 N/A N/A $750,000 $423,750 $326,250 $326,250 Long Term 31.8 33.4 65.2 235 

947 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Intersection 

improvements 

Global 

Gateway Conn 
  SR 139/Riverdale 

Rd 

Upgrade pavement 

markings and install raised 

pavement markers; 

upgrade signal 

equipment, signal heads, 

and wiring; install 

directional signage and 

pavement markings to 

direct vehicles to SR 139, 

US 29, and I-285; retrofit 

curb radii. 

College Park $50,000 N/A $450,000 N/A N/A $500,000 $282,500 $217,500 $217,500 Long Term 35.0 36.4 71.4 181 

1038 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Signal 

installation 
Riverdale Rd   Embassy Dr New Signal College Park $23,000 N/A $234,000 N/A $28,556 $285,556 $0 $285,556 $285,556 Long Term 30.9 29.4 60.3 260 

1057 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage 

Herschel Rd Roosevelt Hwy 
South Fulton 

Pkwy 
 

Herschel Road Truck 

Prohibition Signage: Per 

Sec. 19-25.1 of the City of 

College Park Code of 

Ordinances, install truck 

prohibition signs on 

southbound Herschel 

Avenue at its intersection 

with Camp Creek Parkway 

(SR 6) and on northbound 

Herschel Avenue at its 

intersection with Old 

National Highway (SR 279). 

College Park $400 N/A $3,600 N/A N/A $4,000 $0 $4,000 $4,000 Long Term 26.9 24.3 51.2 325 

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 110



 

133  Recommendations Technical Report  

 

Project 

ID 
Project Type Project Subtype Road Name From To Cross Street Description Jurisdiction PE Cost ROW Cost CST Cost 

Fiber Cost 

(Widenings 

Only) 

Contingency 

Cost 

Total Cost 

Estimate 

State/ Federal 

Match 

Total Local 

Match 

College Park 

Local Share 
Timeframe 

College 

Park 

Score 

Regional 

Score 

Final 

Score 

Final 

Ranking 

1058 

Roadway 

Transportation 

System 

Management & 

Operation 

Wayfinding/ 

Directional 

Signage 

Riverdale Rd Herschel Rd 
Global 

Gateway Conn 
 

Riverdale Road (SR 139) 

Truck Prohibition Signage: 

Per Sec. 19-25.1 of the City 

of College Park Code of 

Ordinances, install truck 

prohibition signs on 

westbound Riverdale 

Road (SR 139) at its 

intersection with Global 

Gateway Connector and 

on eastbound Riverdale 

Road (SR 139) at its 

intersection with Herschel 

Road. 

College Park $400 N/A $3,600 N/A N/A $4,000 $2,260 $1,740 $1,740 Long Term 29.0 26.2 55.2 304 

23 Trail Multi-use trail Loop Rd 
SR 139/Riverdale 

Rd 

SR 

139/Riverdale 

Rd 

 

15-mile trail that would 

circle Hartsfield-Jackson 

Atlanta International 

Airport. Include link to 

Phoenix Trail. 

Atlanta, College 

Park, Hapeville 
$762,667 $3,812,000 $7,624,000 N/A $1,355,407 $13,554,074 $7,658,052 $5,896,022 $2,948,011 Long Term 49.7 47.2 95.7 47 

25 Trail Multi-use trail 

East Point, 

College Park, 

South Fulton, 

Flat Shoals Rd, 

Forest Park, 

Mountain View, 

Hapeville, City 

of Atlanta 

   

The Outer Loop multi-use 

trail will connect the 

AeroATL Greenway to 

other greenway and 

bike/ped networks in the 

region. 

Atlanta, College 

Park, East Point, 

Hapeville, South 

Fulton 

$2,282,400 $11,412,400 $22,824,800 N/A $4,057,733 $40,577,333 $22,926,193 $17,651,140 $4,412,785 Long Term 57.7 54.0 108.9 9 

43 Trail Multi-use trail 
East Main 

Street 
GICC City Boundary  Multi-use off-road trail College Park $168,000 $376,000 $752,000 N/A $144,000 $1,440,000 $813,600 $626,400 $626,400 Long Term 39.4 39.5 78.9 136 

166 

Transit Asset 

Management 

and System 

Upgrades 

Parking 
College Park 

MARTA station 
  E Main St 

Provide parking deck 

(consider Automated 

Parking Systems) at 

College Park station 

parking lot and reduce 

surface parking. 

College Park $957,917 N/A $8,708,333 N/A $4,142,679 $13,808,929 $0 $13,808,929 $13,808,929 Long Term 12.7 11.9 24.6 342 

104 Transit Expansion 

Intermodal 

transportation 

center 

N/A    
Construct an Intermodal 

Transit Centers west of the 

airport 

College Park $7,500,000 $15,000,000 $27,500,000 N/A N/A $50,000,000 $40,000,000 $10,000,000 $10,000,000 Long Term 36.2 37.4 73.6 165 

Total $47,054,473 $112,649,683 $328,762,772 $753,500 $75,974,051 $637,635,694 $331,791,615 $305,844,079 $153,603,847      

8.C.b

Packet Pg. 111



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8432  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:36 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Michael Hicks, Chief Information Officer 

 

RE:  Email License Payment for End Users 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To provide staff with a more robust email platform that delivers enhanced features 

and functionality. Please see attached document: 

 

E-1 will be for web email users only (150) 

E-3 will be for desktop clients email users (350) 

 

REASON:  To renew end user license for Microsoft 365. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To approve license quote for 2020. 

 

BACKGROUND: Hosted email solution that will allow us to have email "in the cloud" opposed 

to an on premise email server.   We are simply renewing the license. 

 

YEARS OF SERVICE:  N/A. 

 

COST TO CITY:  $90,513.00 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:   Yes.  Account #:  100-1535-54-7630 

 

This is a budgeted item that is divided among all departments. I have also attached the previous 

quote from last year indicating what the 3 year agreement per year. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE:  November 2, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A 

 

8.D

Packet Pg. 112



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8432)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:36 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

AFFECTED AGENCIES: N/A 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS: N/A  

 

STAFF:  Chief Information Officer 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City of College Park Option 1 -0365 (PDF) 

 Microsoft Renewal (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Michael Hicks Completed 10/27/2020 8:50 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:24 PM 

 Purchasing Completed 10/28/2020 9:50 PM 

 Finance Pending  

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/29/2020 2:48 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

8.D

Packet Pg. 113



Date 4/2/19
Account Manager

for VSL Specialist Dan Field

Channel Price Sheet Month

Unless otherwise noted, All Quotes expire upon current month's end

Microsoft Part # Description Level Quantity Price Extended Price Extended Price Extended
AAA-11894 Office 365 Gov E3 D 375 223.74$           83,902.50$          223.74$           83,902.50$         223.74$           83,902.50$     
U4S-00002 Office 365 Gov E1 D 125 81.36$             10,170.00$          81.36$             10,170.00$         81.36$             10,170.00$     

Year 1 Total 94,072.50$          Year 2 Total 94,072.50$         Year 3 Total 94,072.50$     

Three Year Total 282,217.50$        

Terms and Conditions of sales and services projects are governed by the terms at: 

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

Terms & Conditions

Year 3Year 1 Year 2

Notes

Annual Payment
Customer to make three annual payments to CDW•G

CDW Government, LLC
Microsoft Enterprise 6.6 Agreement Pricing

Enterprise Quote

City of College Park

8.D.a

Packet Pg. 114



Page 1 of 1

QUOTE CONFIRMATION

DEAR MICHAEL SUBLETT,

Thank you for considering CDW•G for your computing needs. The details of your quote are below. Click 

here to convert your quote to an order.

ACCOUNT MANAGER NOTES:

Quote is valid for 30 days.

QUOTE # QUOTE DATE QUOTE REFERENCE CUSTOMER # GRAND TOTAL

LRWB837 10/19/2020 EA RENEWAL 6212698 $90,513.00

QUOTE DETAILS

ITEM QTY CDW# UNIT PRICE EXT. PRICE

MS EA O365 E3 GCC P/USER 350 3753337 $223.74 $78,309.00

Mfg. Part#: AAA-11894-12-SLG

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: State of Georgia Software Microsoft Enterprise 

(99999-SPD-SPD0000060-0004)

MS EA O365 E1 GCC P/USER 150 3587696 $81.36 $12,204.00

Mfg. Part#: U4S-00002-12-SLG

Electronic distribution - NO MEDIA

Contract: State of Georgia Software Microsoft Enterprise 

(99999-SPD-SPD0000060-0004)

PURCHASER BILLING INFO SUBTOTAL

$90,513.00

Billing Address:

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK

ACCTS PAYABLE

PO BOX 87137

COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337-0137

Phone: (404) 669-3756

Payment Terms: Net 30 Days-Govt State/Local

SHIPPING

$0.00

SALES TAX

$0.00

GRAND TOTAL

$90,513.00

DELIVER TO Please remit payments to:

Shipping Address:

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK

MICHAEL SUBLETT

3667 MAIN ST

COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337-2699

Shipping Method: ELECTRONIC DISTRIBUTION

CDW Government

75 Remittance Drive

Suite 1515

Chicago, IL 60675-1515

Need Assistance? CDW•G SALES CONTACT INFORMATION

Trenton Kirchmeier | (877) 325-8220 | trenkir@cdwg.com

This quote is subject to CDW's Terms and Conditions of Sales and Service Projects at

http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx

For more information, contact a CDW account manager

© 2020 CDW•G LLC, 200 N. Milwaukee Avenue, Vernon Hills, IL 60061 | 800.808.4239

8.D.b

Packet Pg. 115

http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=LRWB837
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/quotes/QuoteDetails.aspx?qn=LRWB837
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3753337
http://www.cdwg.com/shop/products/default.aspx?EDC=3587696
http://www.cdwg.com/content/terms-conditions/product-sales.aspx


   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8426  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:25 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Policy Guidance Regarding Contracts for Special Events 

 

 

As committed during the October 5, 2020 Regular meeting dialogue relative to special events 

permitting and authorization processes, I've asked City Attorney Winston Denmark to compile 

the attached memorandum that summarizes legal analysis and current abilities respectively. 

 

As referenced, this includes specific authorities enjoyed by both the governing body and the 

Office of the City Manager. Of course, the Office of the City Manager's abilities explicitly 

includes the $10,000 threshold authority in the context of approving special event permits and 

related commitments. However, given the City's ownership and operation of the Georgia 

International Convention Center and the Gateway Center Arena @ College Park, revisions to 

the City's respective ordinance will need to be made to support the Executive Director's ability 

to continue effective administration of activities and events at the facility (those that specifically 

involve transactions in excess of $1,000).  

 

Direction is therefore currently being offered to formally offer policy revisions for Mayor and 

City Council review and consideration during the November 2, 2020 Regular meeting. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City of College Park Contracting Polices_FD Document (PDF) 

 CP Contracting Authority Ordinance (DOCX) 

 Exhibit A- College Park Purchasing Policy 2020 (clean) (DOCX) 

 College Park Purchasing Policy (redline) (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/27/2020 5:17 PM 

10.A

Packet Pg. 116



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8426)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:25 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/27/2020 5:23 PM 

 Mercedes Miller Completed 10/27/2020 5:43 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 10/28/2020 12:00 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:15 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

10.A

Packet Pg. 117



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 118



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 119



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 120



10.A.a

Packet Pg. 121



STATE OF GEORGIA 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 

ORDINANCE NO. 2020-___ 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES, CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, 1 

GEORGIA, BY ADDING CHAPTER 2 (ADMINISTRATION), ARTICLE II (MAYOR AND 2 

COUNCIL), SECTION 2-28 (AUTHORITY TO CONTRACT); TO AMEND THE CITY’S 3 

PURCHASING POLICY; TO PROVIDE FOR SEVERABILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR 4 

CODIFICATION; TO PROVIDE AN ADOPTION AND EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR 5 

OTHER LAWFUL PURPOSES. 6 

  WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the City of College Park, Georgia 7 

(the “City”) is the Mayor and Council thereof; and 8 

WHEREAS, the City of College Park is authorized by O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3 to adopt 9 

ordinances relating to its property, affairs and local government; and 10 

WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have determined that it is appropriate to add said 11 

sections of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Park to be consistent with state law and 12 

amend the City’s Purchasing Policy to further protect the public health, safety, and welfare of the 13 

citizens of the City. 14 

 NOW THEREFORE, BE IT AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR 15 

AND COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, and by the authority thereof: 16 

Section 1.  Chapter 2 (Administration), Article II (Mayor and Council), Sec 2-28 17 

(Authority to Contract) of the Code of Ordinances of the City of College Park, Georgia, is hereby 18 

added and is to read as follows: 19 

“Sec. 2-28. – Authority to Contract  20 

Mayor and Council as governing authority of the City shall have the sole authority to execute 21 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 122



contracts on behalf of the City with private persons, firms, corporations, business entities, and 22 
other government agencies subject to any stated exceptions in the City Charter, City Code of 23 
Ordinances, or the City Purchasing Policy. Said Purchasing Policy may be amended by the 24 

governing authority from time to time by ordinance or resolution.”  25 

Section 2. In accordance with Section 1 above, the City’s Purchasing Policy is hereby 26 

amended as provided in Exhibit “A” attached hereto and incorporated by reference herein.  27 

Section 3.  The preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 28 

incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 29 

 Section 4.  (a) It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Mayor and Council that all 30 

sections, paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Ordinance are or were, upon their 31 

enactment, believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 32 

 (b) It is hereby declared to be the intent of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 33 

allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is 34 

severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.  It is 35 

hereby further declared to be the intent of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 36 

allowed by law, no section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is mutually 37 

dependent upon any other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 38 

 (c) In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Ordinance 39 

shall, for any reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable 40 

by the valid judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of 41 

the Mayor and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the 42 

greatest extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any 43 

of the remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or sections of the Ordinance and that, to 44 

the greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 45 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 123



sections of the Ordinance shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and 46 

effect. 47 

 Section 5.  All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby expressly 48 

repealed.  49 

 Section 6.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless 50 

otherwise specified herein.  51 

  

SO ORDAINED this ______ day of _______________, 2020.  

 

 

       CITY OF COLLEGE PARK, GEORGIA 
 

 

 

 ________________________________                                                                  

       Bianca Motley Broom, Mayor 

 

 

ATTEST:                                                               

 

 

 

       

Shavala Moore, City Clerk 

 

 

 

 

 

 

APPROVED BY: 

 

 

 

       

City Attorney 

  

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 124



EXHIBIT “A” 

(REVISED PURCHASING POLICY) 

10.A.b

Packet Pg. 125



 1 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 

PURCHASING DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

  

POLICY NO. 

 

TITLE OF POLICY/PROCEDURE 

 

PAGE NO. 

     

    12-1 

 

INTRODUCTION 

 

2 

 

    12-2 DIRECTIVES 2 

 

12-3 PROCEDURES 2 -3 

 

12-4 PROCUREMENT METHODS 3 - 4 

 

12-5 APPROVAL LEVELS/RESPONSIBILITIES 4 -5 

 

12-6 CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE OF 

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS 

7-12 

 

 

12-7 COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT/DIVERSITY POLICY 12-13 

 

12-8 SEALED BID OPENING PROCEDURES 13 

 

12-9 CONSTRUCTION PROJECT BIDDING 14 

 

12-10 FORMAL SEALED BIDS 14-15 

 

12-11 COMPETITIVE SEALED RFP 15-16 

 

12-12 PUBLIC NOTICE POSTINGS 16-17 

 

12-13 CLARIFICATIONS, DISCUSSIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS 17-19 

 

12-14 OTHER TYPES OF PROCUREMENT 19-21 

 

12-15 MISCELLANEOUS 21-22 

 

12-16 OFFEROR RESPONSIBILITY, SUSPENSION OR 

DEBARMENT 

22-24 

 

 

12-17 PROTEST 24 

 

12-18 CAUSE FOR DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 24-25 

 

   

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 126



 2 

 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK  

ADMINISTRATIVE PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 

 

12-1 : INTRODUCTION: 

 

This policy sets forth the legal authority and responsibility for the procurement of goods 

and services for the City of College Park as approved by the Mayor/Council. This policy 

sets forth guidelines for governing the conduct of Purchasing personnel and those with 

official responsibility to function or participate in any procurement transaction for using 

department(s). 

12-2 : DIRECTIVES: 

 

Compliance with this Policy is required, however, in College Park's sole discretion; no 

proceeding under this Policy will be voided because of a minor technical failure of 

compliance that College Park determines does not harm the substantive rights of College 

Park or any other party or otherwise adversely affects the integrity of College Park's 

procurement process. 

12-3 : PROCEDURES: 

1. To ensure that procedures exist to authorize the purchase of goods and services on 

behalf of all departments and to adhere to the requirements of the City of College 

Park Purchasing Manual and any other applicable administrative policies and 

procedures. 

2. To ensure that contact is first made with the Purchasing Department before any 

meetings, fact finding efforts, consultant studies or discussions are conducted with 

vendors concerning issues related to potential non-routine purchases exceeding 

$10,000.00 whether they are related to existing or new goods or services purchased. 

All interested vendors shall be given the opportunity to participate in purchasing 

activities of the City of College Park. Commitments shall not be made to vendors that 

may be inappropriate; decisions on potential sole sources must not be formulated 

without canvassing the entire vendor community; and vendors must not be provided 

information that gives them a competitive advantage over others. NOTE: Assistance 

provided by a vendor does not warrant a preference or any obligation for award of a 

bid/contract. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 127



 3 

 

  

3. Requisitions must never be split for the purpose of circumventing competitive 

requirements. 

4. An employee making unauthorized purchases will be held personally liable for the 

cost of the purchases.  

5. Employees involved in any aspect of a purchasing decision are forbidden to solicit or 

accept money, gifts, meals or entertainment from vendors. Employees shall conduct 

themselves in a manner that avoids the appearance of impropriety. Reference Policy 

No. 12-6- Conflict of Interest and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions. 

6. Advertising or promotional literature stating that the city or their respective 

employees endorse a vendor's product or services is prohibited, unless approved by 

the Mayor and Council. 

7. Unless otherwise required by law, information received from vendors, to include 

pricing, will not be divulged to other vendors until a decision to award is made. 

8. The Purchasing Department serves as a strategic partner by supporting the city 

departments as they perform their respective missions by providing effective and 

efficient purchasing services. 

9. Purchasing activities will be administered in accordance with the City of College 

Park Purchasing Manual and applicable administrative policies and procedures. 

 

12-4 : PROCUREMENT METHODS: 

 

The City of College Park shall use the following methods of Procurement: 

 

1. RFP: A "request for proposal" is a formal solicitation that seeks to leverage the 

creativity and knowledge of business organizations in order to provide a solution to 

a procurement need. The RFP solicits technical and sealed price proposals from 

prospective vendors and seeks to obtain the best value for the city. The RFP does not 

use the cost of the project as the single determining factor, but rather uses a 

combination of lowest cost plus best proposed solution to determine the award. The 

city may use an RFP where the objective of the solution is to identify a vendor who 

can offer the best possible solution to the procurement at the most reasonable cost .  

2. RFQ: A "request for quotation" is a formal solicitation method that includes a well- 

defined specification or scope of work and usually contains all contractual terms and 

conditions. Bidder exceptions to any of the RFQ specifications may be used as a 

basis for disqualification. The RFQ solicits sealed price quotations or bids from 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 128



 4 

 

prospective vendors and seeks to obtain price quotes from the lowest priced 

responsive and responsible bidder provided no contract award shall be made to the 

bidder with the lowest cost if the city determines the low cost bidder cannot perform 

the contract requirements. The City of College Park will use an RFQ if the project 

lends itself to the creation of a clear and accurate statement of work and the objective 

of the solicitation is to identify a vendor who can provide the required specifications 

at the lowest possible cost. 

3. RFQC: A "request for qualified contractors" is used when the city is attempting 

to find offers with qualifications to produce the product or service requested. 

Each vendor is judged on its ability to meet or surpass the required qualifications 

set forth in the RFQC documents. This form of solicitation may, but does not 

always, culminate in a contract award. This may be used as a prerequisite to 

determine eligibility to respond to a RFP or RFQ. 

4. RFI: A "request for information" is a method for soliciting information from 

vendors who have knowledge or information about a product or service. This 

method is not intended to result in a contract award. It is designed to allow for 

the collection of information that will then be used to determine if an RFQ or RFP 

solicitation is required. 

5. Formal Sealed Bids: A "formal sealed bid" is used to procure goods and or services 

not normally sought with an RFP, RFQ, etc. 

 See dollar limits under Approval Levels/Responsibilities below. 

12-5 : APPROVAL LEVELS /RESPONSIBILITIES: 

 

The following dollar amounts and approvals apply to all city departments as per the date 

issued for this policy and procedure manual. This is subject to change as deemed 

necessary by the Mayor/Council. 

1. Small purchases may be made up to $999.99 without bids. A purchase order is not 

necessary unless the vendor requires a PO. In the event a PO is required, the 

requesting department must provide a requisition to the Purchasing Department for 

processing. This must be approved by the Purchasing Department and the 

Accounting Department. The City Manager's approval is not required. 

2. Purchases from $1,000.00 to $9,999.99 will require a purchase order and three (3) 

quotes. The quotes must be attached to the electronic requisition. If the requesting 

department cannot find a third quote, the purchasing department can assist to obtain 

another quote. The Purchasing Department, Accounting Department and the City 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 129



 5 

 

Manager's Office shall approve the purchase. Quotes may be obtained by fax and/or 

e-mail for purchases up to $9,999.99. Purchases above $10,000.00 requires Council 

approval. 

3. Purchases from $10,000.00 and above will require a sealed bid process. The 

specifications/scope of work, etc. shall be generated by the requesting department. 

If more than one (1) department is affected by the project, the final draft must be 

signed off by each department acknowledging their approval before the instructions 

to the bidder or other bid documents can be applied to the packet. 

a. Bid opening/Pre-Bid opening dates will be determined by the Purchasing 

Department as to the availability of their calendar. The Department Head may 

request a date for the opening. The Purchasing Department will work with 

the requesting department to arrange the opening date as close as possible to 

his/her request. 

b. Bid documents prepared by a consultant must be approved by the City 

Manager's Office and/or the City Attorney prior to the bid process. 

4. "Capital Outlay" items that are under $10,000.00 will not be required to go before 

Mayor and Council for approval. All items over $10,000.00 must go before Mayor 

and Council for approval subject to exceptions in this Purchasing Policy. 

5. The Director of the Georgia International Convention Center (GICC) and Gateway 

Arena is authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the City related to these 

facilities without the specific approval of Mayor and Council provided that the 

contracts are a business necessity and, based on exigent circumstances, it would be 

impractical to delay contracting until the next regularly scheduled of Mayor and City 

Council. If the Director in his or her sole discretion determines that the conditions 

stated in this section exist, the following additional steps shall be taken: 

a. The Director shall provide written notification to the City Manager of 

the business necessity and exigent circumstances which require the 

expedited contract before the contract is executed; and 

b. The Director shall bring the executed contract to the next regular 

meeting of Mayor and Council for ratification. 

6. An item that is being changed to a different item than what was budgeted must go 

before the Mayor/Council for approval. 

7. "State Contract" items may be processed without competitive bidding as 

approved by Mayor and Council. However, if an item is available on the State 

Contract, the Mayor and Council, City Manager and/or the Purchasing Manager 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 130



 6 

 

can/shall have the option of acquiring other bids if they feel the item(s) can be 

purchased at a lower cost to the city. A requisition is still required and "State 

Contract" shall appear on the requisition. 

8. Vehicles, equipment, etc. in need of repairs that exceed $1,000.00 shall have the 

City Manager's approval prior to any and all work/repairs being completed. This 

approval shall be made available by e-mail or writing document from the 

Department Director to the City Manager. Once the City Manager has given the 

approval, by either e-mail or signed document, the Purchasing Department shall 

be provided a copy for their file. The requesting department shall provide a 

requisition through the normal channel to secure a purchase order. A note shall 

be made on the requisition of such prior approval as well as unit number, 

building, etc. requiring repairs. 

9. All requisitions for computers, printers, etc. shall include a quote number obtained 

from the IT Department. The quote number shall appear on the requisition. No 

requisition will be processed by the Purchasing Department without this number. 

10. Items that are approved by the Mayor/Council as an "Agenda Item" shall be noted 

as such on the requisition when entered by the user department. It shall be noted in 

the "Resolution Field" on the requisition, and shall show the date and item 

number pertaining to the agenda. Requisitions received by the Purchasing 

Department without the information mentioned under this section "Approval 

Levels/Responsibilities" will be returned to the requesting department with 

comments as to why the requisition has been returned. 

11. "Over Budget" amounts on requisitions will be reconciled between the requesting 

department and the Finance/Accounting Department. The Purchasing Department 

will not be responsible for account numbers within the user department. 

12. The requesting department shall provide to the Purchasing Department all 

specifications, scope of work, etc. for the material(s), equipment or service(s) being 

requested for all items requiring an RFP or RFQ. The Purchasing Department will 

assist in any way with the requesting department(s) in the gathering of this 

information upon request. The following shall apply: 

a. Should more than one department be involved in any part or phase of the 

project other than the originator, then that department(s) shall also have input 

into the specifications/requirements before the Purchasing Department 

proceeds with the bidding process. 

b. All department(s) with any input or involved in the project in any way shall be 

required to sign off on the final specifications/scope of work copy before a bid 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 131



 7 

 

is processed. Any department(s) with any input into this project will receive a 

complete set of documents for their files. 

 

12-6 : CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN 

CONTRIBUTIONS: 

Every person, business or entity involved in the procurement process must adhere to a high 

standard of ethics. Each will be bound by the City Code of Ethics and this Section. Whenever 

this Section conflicts with the City Code of Ethics, the City Code of Ethics shall control. For 

the purposes of this section, the term “City Employee” means any person employed by the 

City of College Park, and the term “City Official” means any elected or appointed official of 

the City or of an agency, authority or instrumentality of the City. 

 

1. Employee Conflict of Interest. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 

Official to transact any business or participate directly or indirectly in a procurement 

contract when the City Employee or City Official knows:  

a. The City Employee or City Official  or immediate family of such has a substantial 

interest pertaining to the procurement contract, except that the purchase of goods 

and services from businesses which a member of the city council or other City 

Employee has a substantial interest is authorized as per O.C.G.A. § 36-1-14, or 

the procurement contract is awarded pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 45-10-22 and § 45-

10-24, or the transaction is excepted from said restrictions by O.C.G.A. § 45-10-

25, interpreting such statutes as if they were applicable to a municipality. 

b. Any other person, business or organization with whom the City Employee, City 

Official or immediate family of such is negotiating or has an arrangement 

concerning prospective employment is involved in the procurement contract.  

c. A City Employee, City Official or any immediate family of such who holds a 

substantial interest in a disclosed blind trust shall not be deemed to have a conflict 

of interest with regard to matters pertaining to that substantial interest. 

d. All City Employees and City Officials will be asked to sign a disclosure 

document indicating his or her compliance with the City Code of Ethics Policy. 

e. The terms “immediate family” and “substantial interest” shall have the meaning 

given to such terms in the City Code of Ethics. 

 

2. Gratuities, Rebates or Kickbacks 

a. Gratuities and other benefits. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 

Official to directly or indirectly solicit, demand, receive, accept or agree to 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 132



 8 

 

receive any gratuity, reward, offer of employment, services or things of value 

from any person, business or entity in connection with any award, decision, 

approval, disapproval, recommendation or preparation of any part of a program 

requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or 

procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other 

advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, 

determination, claim or controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any 

program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or 

proposal. 

 

It shall further be unethical for any person, business or entity to offer, give or 

agree to give or offer to give any City Employee or City Official any gratuity, 

reward, offer of employment, services or things of value with the purpose of 

influencing any award, decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation or 

preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, 

influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering 

of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any 

proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy, 

or other particular matter pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or 

subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal.   

i. A “thing of value” shall not include: 

a. Any gift with a value less than one hundred dollars 

($100.00); 

b. Food or beverage consumed at a single meal or event; 

c. An award, plaque, certificate, memento or similar item 

given in recognition of the recipient's civic, charitable, 

political, professional or public service; 

d. Promotional items generally distributed to the general 

public or to public officers;  

e. Rebates normally or routinely offered to customers in the 

ordinary course of business of such person, business or 

entity for the purchase of their goods and services are 

acceptable and are the property of the City; and 

f. Educational events, materials and meals as described in 

subparagraph (ii). 

ii. Educational events. Nothing in this section shall preclude a City 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 133



 9 

 

Employee or City Official from attending seminars, courses, 

lectures, briefings or similar functions at any person, business or 

entity’s facility or at any other place if any such seminar, course, 

lecture, briefing or similar function is for the purpose of 

furnishing the City Official, City Employee or agent with 

knowledge and information relative to the person, business or 

entity’s products or services and is one which the city manager 

determines would be of benefit to the City. In connection with 

any such seminar, course, lecture, briefing or similar function, 

nothing shall preclude the City Employee or City Official from 

receiving meals or educational materials and business related 

items of not more than nominal value from a person, business or 

entity. However, no City Employee or City Official shall accept 

or receive free travel or lodging for less than the value thereof 

from a person, business or entity. 

b. Kickbacks and rebates. It shall be unethical for any payment, gratuity or offer of 

employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the 

prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, 

as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. 

 

3. Disclosure of Campaign Finance Contributions. All vendors/contractors who do 

business with the City for purchases from ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00)  and  above, 

which require a sealed bid process under the terms of the City of College Park’s 

Purchasing Policies and Procedures, shall be required to file a written campaign 

contribution disclosure form with the city manager naming the City Official(s) to whom 

and when the campaign contribution was made, to identify the dollar amount and to 

provide a description of each campaign contribution.    

 

a. Except as provided in subsection (e) of O.C.G.A. § 21-5-34, no contributions to 

bring about the nomination or election of a candidate for any office shall be made 

or accepted except directly to or by a candidate or such candidate's campaign 

committee which is organized for the purpose of bringing about the nomination 

or election of any such candidate; and no contributions to bring about the recall 

of a public officer or to oppose the recall of a public officer or to bring about the 

approval or rejection by the voters of a proposed constitutional amendment, state-

wide referendum or proposed question at the state, municipal or county level shall 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 134



 10 

 

be made or accepted except directly to or by a campaign committee organized for 

that purpose. 

 

b. Unless otherwise reported individually, where separate contributions of less than 

one hundred dollars ($100.00) are knowingly received from a common source, 

such contributions shall be aggregated for reporting purposes. For purposes of 

fulfilling such aggregation requirement, members of the family, members of the 

same firm or partnership or employees of the same person as defined in paragraph 

(19) of O.C.G.A. § 21-5-3, shall be considered to be a common source; provided, 

however, that the purchase of tickets for not more than twenty-five dollars 

($25.00) each and for attendance at a fundraising event by members of the family, 

members of the same firm or partnership or employees of the same person shall 

not be considered to be contributions from a common source except to the extent 

that tickets are purchased as a block. 

 

c. For each year a vendor/contractor is under contract and engaged in business with 

the City, it shall be required to file a campaign contribution disclosure form to 

the city manager.  

 

d. All vendors/contractors shall file the campaign contributions disclosure form to 

the city manager prior to or along with submitting a proposal in the bid process 

for purchases from ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) and above.  

 

4. Prohibition against Contingent Fees. It shall be unethical for any person to be retained, 

or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a contract upon any agreement or understanding 

for a contingency fee, except for agreements with manufacturer representatives, or 

agents, including, but not limited to, commercial services sales agents engaged in the 

business of soliciting contracts on behalf of vendors. A “contingency fee” as used in this 

subsection C means any commission, percentage, brokerage or other fee that is 

contingent upon the success that a person has in securing a city contract.  

 

5. Use of Confidential Information. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 

Official to knowingly disclose or use confidential information for actual or anticipated 

personal gain or for the actual or anticipated personal gain of any other person. 

 

6. Unauthorized Purchases. No purchases of goods and services shall be made in the name 

of the City or one of its departments, except such as is required for official use by the 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 135



 11 

 

City or one of its departments.  Purchases in the name of the City or a department for 

personal use by an individual or for other than official use are prohibited, and no City 

funds will be expended or advanced therefore. 

 

7. Penalties and Sanctions 

a. Legal or disciplinary action by city council. The city council may take 

appropriate legal and/or disciplinary actions pursuant to the City Code of Ethics 

against any City Employee, City Official or other person in violation of these 

ethical standards. 

b. Legal or disciplinary action by city manager. The city manager is authorized to 

take any appropriate legal and/or disciplinary actions, including dismissal, of any 

City Employee violating this City Code of Ethics Policy. 

c. Administrative penalties for employees. The city manager may impose any one 

or more of the following penalties or sanctions on a City Employee for violations 

of the ethical standards in this Section as appropriate to the situation, subject to 

the Personnel Manual or other appropriate appeals procedures:  

i. Oral or written warnings or reprimands; 

ii. Suspensions with or without pay for specified periods of time; or 

iii. Termination of employment. 

d. Administrative penalties for outside contractors/vendors. The City may impose 

any one or more of the following penalties or sanctions on a vendor or other 

person or organization for violations of these ethical standards:  

i. Written warnings or reprimands;  

ii. Termination of contracts; or  

iii. Debarment or suspension. 

  

8. Disclaimer of Responsibility for Improper Purchasing, The City may disclaim 

responsibility and liability for any purchase, expenditure or agreement for expenditure 

arising from any procurement made in its name, or in the name of any governmental 

body under its authority, by an unauthorized person or any person acting outside this 

policy or the authorization or delegation as provided in this policy. The expense of any 

such disclaimed transaction will become the personal liability of the individual who acted 

improperly. 

 

9. Vendor Contact during Open Solicitations. Persons seeking an award of a City 

contract may not initiate or continue any verbal or written communications regarding a 

solicitation with any City Official, City Employee or other City representative other than 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 136



 12 

 

the purchasing agent named in the solicitation between the date of the issuance of the 

solicitation and the date of the final contract award.  The city manager or designee will 

review violations.  If determined that such communication has compromised the 

competitive process, the offer submitted by the individual, firm or business may be 

disqualified from consideration for award. 

 

 

12·7: COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT/DIVERSITY INITIATIVE POLICY: 

 

1. Purchase or acquisitions made by the City of College Park shall be made through 

competitive bidding or competitive proposal unless expressly exempted from 

this requirement by other provision of this policy or by express authorization 

by the City Manager or the Mayor/Council. The following are hereby declared 

exempt: 

a. Emergency purchases 

b. Acquisition or leasing of real property 

c. Purchases of less than $10,000.00 

d. Personal or professional services 

e. Sole source purchases or acquisitions. 

2. The City of College Park may purchase off of other governmental contracts if 

such contracts are open to purchase by public authorities. As such, competitive 

bidding procedures do not apply or may be satisfied by the competitive process 

that was followed to award such governmental contract. The city has the 

discretion to enter into an inter-governmental agreement if the items to be 

acquired are available from these contracts. The bidding process has already 

been completed. 

3. This policy shall also set forth the procedures for increasing opportunities for 

procurement and contract activities among Minority-Owned Businesses (MOB), 

African American Business Enterprise (AABE), Hispanic Business Enterprise 

(HBE), Female Business Enterprise (FBE), Asian Business Enterprise (ABE) and 

Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) located within/out-side the city 

limits of College Park Georgia. It is strongly encouraged to seek price quotations 

from the above various Minority vendors when procuring goods and services for 

dollar values under $10,000.00. For dollar amounts above $10,000.00 (sealed bids), 

a vendor questionnaire will be included in every bid packet. This questionnaire will 

be completed by the vendor and returned in the bid response and become part of the 

proposal. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 137



 13 

 

4. Local Preference may be given to businesses that have a business location within the 

geographic boundaries of the City of College Park as long as all requirements of the 

bid have been met. Should a local vendor submit a bid proposal that is equal to a 

non-local vendor, then the local vendor's bid shall be recommended for approval 

provided all requirements of the bid proposal/process has been met. 

 

The term business location means that the business has a staffed, fixed, physical 

place of business located within City of College Park City Limits and has had the 

same for a least one (1) year prior to the date of the business' submission of its 

proposal or bid, as applicable and has had held a valid business license from the 

City of College Park. 

 

In order to receive local preference, the proposer must provide the following criteria 

and provide supporting documentation as required. 

• Copy of Occupational Tax Certificate (Business License) from the City of 

College Park. 

• Copy of a lease or rental agreement located in the city limits of City of 

College Park. 

 

12-8 : 

SEALED BID OPENING PROCEDURES: 

 

1. Sealed bids will be received in the Purchasing Department on or before the 

assigned date and time as advertised. Bids received in any other department 

(unless otherwise stated in the bid documents) will not be accepted. 

2. The requesting department shall have a department representative present 

at each bid opening. 

3. Bids will be opened and read aloud for all parties present. 

4. Bids shall be made available for vendor review after the official opening 

is completed and under the supervision of the Purchasing Department or 

otherwise designated City staff. 

5. A tabulation sheet may be made available for bidders 10 days after the bid opening. 

6. The requesting department shall retain the bids for their review and/or 

recommendation. The Purchasing Department will assist the department in 

making a recommendation if necessary. 

7. Once a recommendation has been made of the successful bidder, the Department 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 138



 14 

 

Head shall prepare an "Agenda Memorandum" to the City Manager's Office 

requesting this item be placed on the next available Mayor/Council Agenda if 

applicable. 

8. The Purchasing Department will add an Agenda Cover Memo to the requesting 

Department(s) "Agenda Memorandum" if required by the City Manager’s 

Office. 

12-9 : CONSTRUCTION PROJECT BIDDING: 

 

All College Park contracts for the construction of any roads/bridges or a system of 

roads/bridges and tunnels or construction of buildings, structures, parking areas on such 

roads/bridges or tunnels shall be let to a reliable bidder submitting the lowest sealed bid 

upon plans and specifications approved by involved City Departments and/or by the 

Georgia Department of Transportation. The procedures for letting such bids shall conform 

to those prescribed for GDOT in Georgia Code Sections 32-2-64 through 32-2-72. 

 

Reference "Public Notice Postings" for dollar limits and time frames.  

 

 

12-10: FORMAL SEALED BIDS: 

 

1. ALL purchases involving expenditures of $10,000.00 or more will be made by 

sealed competitive bids or proposals. The City of College Park will require 

all sealed bids to be submitted to the Purchasing Department as stated in its 

General Instructions to the Bidder. Faxed or e-mail bids will not be 

considered. No sealed bid will be accepted after the due date and closing time. 

These bids will be returned to the sender. 

2. Bid evaluation and awards will be made as follows: 

a. Evaluation of Bids = the contract shall be awarded to the lowest, responsive and 

responsible bidder whose bid meets the requirements and specifications 

contained in the proposal. An award will be made to one (1) bidder unless stated 

in the bid proposal. 

b. Acceptability Requirements = a product acceptability evaluation may be 

conducted to determine if a bidder's product is acceptable as set forth in the bid 

proposal. Any bidder's bid that does not meet the acceptability requirements shall 

be rejected as nonresponsive. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 139



 15 

 

c. Alternate Bids = an alternate bid may be considered for an award if the product 

meets the specifications and all requirements of the proposal unless otherwise 

stated in the proposal. 

d. Single Bid = If only one responsible bid is received to a proposal, an award 

may be made to the single bidder if the city determines in writing that the price 

submitted is fair and reasonable. However, it is the practice of the city to NOT 

open a single bid received if for any reason the Purchasing Department feels 

that more bids can be obtained. Should this occur the Purchasing Department 

will extend the bid opening date, contact vendors that did not respond in an 

effort to obtain additional bids? 

e. Tie Bids = A tie can exist when two (2) or more bidders offer identical prices, 

products that meets all specifications, terms and conditions. In such a situation, 

the city shall consider the following methods to resolve the tie. 

i. Past performance of the vendor 

ii. Best delivery date 

iii.  Closes proximity to delivery site 

 

12-11 : COMPETITIVE SEALED RFP: 

 

1. The RFP should be used when the needed goods/services does not lend itself 

to the creation of a clear and accurate list of specifications or statement of work 

and the objective of the solicitation is to identify the vendor who can  offer  the  

best possible solution at the most reasonable cost. The RFP seeks to identify 

the best value for the city by using a combination of technical and cost factors 

to evaluate vendor's proposals. 

2. Proposals received by the RFP closing date and time will be evaluated in 

accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the General Instructions. 

During the evaluation stage, the city may elect to request clarification and/or 

conduct one or more rounds of discussions or negotiations to solicit 

improvements to technical and/or cost proposal. 

a. General Evaluation = the city shall be bound by the terms of the RFP as 

well as the established evaluation criteria. No changes to the evaluation 

criteria may be made after the closing date and time. If a technical or 

cost proposal fails to meet a mandatory requirement specified in the 

RFP, the city will determine if the deviation is material. A material 

deviation will be cause for rejection of the proposal. An immaterial 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 140



 16 

 

deviation will be processed as if no deviation had occurred. The city 

shall have the right to reject any and all proposals submitted in response 

to the RFP, to reject any portion thereof, or to waive any irregularity or 

administrative requirements. 

b. Administrative Review = the issuing officer may conduct a preliminary 

review of the received proposals to determine which technical 

proposals should be submitted. The administrative review should 

eliminate the following proposals any proposal submitted by a vendor 

who is currently suspended or debarred by the city or DOAS and any 

proposals which are missing required documents, signatures or any 

other item required by the RFP to be submitted with the proposal. 

c. Oral Presentation and Site Visits = the city may conduct site visits 

and/or request offerors make oral presentations as permitted by the 

RFP. If a vendor does not attend a mandatory site meeting, then the 

vendor's bid/proposal may be disqualified from consideration. 

d. Cost = the city may utilize lowest cost, lowest total cost, total cost of 

ownership or greatest savings to determine the best price proposal. The 

vendor deemed to have the most competitive cost proposal overall, as 

determined by the city will receive the award. 

e. Contract Negotiations = In the event that the city permitted vendors to 

submit exceptions to the city proposed contract and the vendor(s) 

identified for contract award have submitted contract exceptions, such 

contract exceptions must be resolved prior to contract execution. In the 

event that the city is unable to reach agreement as to contract terms with 

a vendor, the vendor will be ineligible for contract award and the city 

may award to the next best ranked vendor. 

f. Contract Award = The contract award, if any, shall be made to the 

responsible vendor whose proposal conforms to the RFP and is 

determined to be the most advantageous to the city utilizing the 

established evaluation criteria. The contract file shall contain the basis 

on which the award is made. 

 

12-12 : PUBLIC NOTICE POSTINGS: 

 

The following are guidelines as to where and how postings will apply: 

 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 141



 17 

 

1. All competitive solicitations of $10,000.00 or more shall be posted at a minimum 

of two (2) of the following: the College Park website, City's legal organ (South 

Fulton Neighbor) or posted in the foyer of the City Hall Complex. 

2. College Park, at its discretion, may also elect to conduct additional public 

advertisement through other newspaper or publication with statewide 

ci rculat ion.  

3. The following guidelines will be generally followed by College Park 

Purchasing Department when posting competitive solicitations: 

A. $9,999.99 - $99,999.99 = Minimum Two (2) Weeks. 

B. $100,000.00 and above = Minimum Four (4) Weeks 

With the exception of construction bids, the City Manager may approve the 

posting of a competitive solicitation for a period of time less than the guidelines 

stated above when sufficient evidence justifying the reduced posting time period 

has been established. 

4. In addition to the provisions above, the following procurements require public 

notice on the Georgia Procurement Registry (“GPR”).  

A. The City shall advertise all bid or proposal opportunities for goods, 

services, or both that are valued at $100,000.00 or more in the GPR for a 

minimum of four (4) weeks prior to the date set for opening bids/proposals. 

Each advertisement shall include such details and specifications as will 

enable the public to know the extent and character of the bid or proposal 

opportunity. See O.C.G.A. § 36-80-27. 

 

B. The City shall advertise all contract opportunities for public works 

construction that are valued at $100,000.00 or more in the GPR for at least 

four continuous weeks  prior to the opening of the sealed bids or proposals, 

unless otherwise provided by O.C.G.A. § 36-91-20. 

12-13 : CLARIFICATIONS, DISCUSSIONS and NEGOTIATIONS: 

 

Clarifications, Discussions and Negotiations may be conducted on any City of College 

Park procurement in accordance with the following: 

1. Clarifications: During the procurement process, the City of College Park may 

seek clarifications with any offeror at any time. 

2. Discussions: The City of College Park may conduct discussions collectively or 

one on one with offerors who are deemed qualified based on criteria set forth in 

the solicitation document. The City of College Park may engage in one or more 

rounds of discussions for the purpose of: 

a. Gaining a better understanding of offeror’s proposal solution. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 142



 18 

 

b. Communicating College Park's needs or concerns, 

c. Communicating revisions and/or best and final offers for technical 

and/or cost proposals. 

In conducting discussions, there shall be no disclosure to an offeror of any 

information contained in competing offeror’s proposals (technical or price) 

except the disclosure of information derived from the proposals may be 

disclosed as follows: If the solicitation document contains a provision notifying 

offerors that the City of College Park may use a process of allowing multiple 

revisions to price proposals to establish the final price proposal, College Park is 

authorized to disclose information derived from (but not contained in) the 

proposals to competing offerors such as overall rankings for the purpose of 

soliciting ongoing revisions to price proposals. 

3. Negotiations: The City of College Park may conduct negotiations with offerors who 

are deemed qualified and reasonable for award based on criteria set forth in the 

solicitation document. College Park may engage in one or more rounds of 

negotiations. In conducting negotiations, there shall be no disclosure to an offeror of 

any information contained in competing offerors’ proposals (technical or price) except 

the disclosure of information derived from the proposals may be disclosed as follows: 

If the solicitation document contains a provision notifying offerors that College Park 

may use a process of allowing multiple revisions to establish the final price proposal, 

College Park is authorized to disclose information derived from (but not contained in) 

the proposal to competing offerors such as overall rankings for the purpose of 

soliciting ongoing revisions to price proposals. 

 

The City of College Park identifies which offerors shall participate in the 

Negotiations in one (1) of the following ways: 

a) Identify in the solicitation document the methodology that will be 

used to identify offerors that may participate in Negotiations. This 

may include, but not necessarily be limited to, a methodology that 

establishes a competitive range based on offerors rankings 

following proposal evaluations. Identify in an addendum to the 

solicitation document the methodology that will be used to identify 

offerors that may participate in Negotiations. 

b) Negotiate with all responsive responsible offerors following 

bid/proposal evaluations. Identified offerors will be notified in writing 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 143



 19 

 

that College Park is initiating Negotiations; the general purpose and 

scope of the Negotiations; the anticipated schedule for the Negotiations; 

the procedures to be followed for those Negotiations. This information 

may be provided in a single or separate document. College Park may 

issue additional information and/or instructions to offerors participating 

in Negotiations as needed. Negotiations may be completed after a single 

round, or be done in several rounds as determined by College Park 

negotiation team. After the negotiations, participating offerors may be 

asked to submit supplemental proposals defining the revisions that are 

a result of negotiations. Any request for supplemental proposals will be 

directed in writing to all offerors participating in the negotiations and 

will provide details concerning the format and due date for the 

supplemental proposals. Colleges Park may in its sole discretion, 

terminate negotiations and/or the solicitation at any time. 

 

4. Negotiations in Lieu of New Procurement: If after evaluation and 

obtaining clarification of a bid or proposal College Park determines that 

a bid or proposal is unreasonable or unacceptable, or is noncompetitive, 

or low bid proposal exceeds available funds, College Park will determine 

in writing whether time or other circumstances will permit the delay 

required to resolicit competitive bids or proposals. If College Park 

determines that the circumstances are such that the procurement cannot 

be delayed, a contract may be negotiated provided that each responsible 

bidder or offeror who submitted a bid or proposal under the original 

solicitation is notified of the determination and is given a reasonable 

opportunity to negotiate. In case where the bid/proposals received are 

noncompetitive or the low bid proposal exceeds available funds, the 

negotiated prices shall be lower than the lowest rejected bid/proposal of 

any responsible bidder/offeror under the original solicitation. 

 

12·14: OTHER TYPES OF PROCUREMENT: 

 

1. Emergency Purchases: Emergency circumstances exist where normal purchasing 

procedures cannot be utilized without extremely detrimental effects upon the 

operation of College Park and or College Park Customers. The requisition/purchase 

order should provide documentation as to the circumstance surrounding the 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 144



 20 

 

emergency and should clearly state "Emergency Purchase" on the face of the purchase 

order or on the requisition provided by the user department. The City Manager must 

approve all emergency purchases. 

2. Personal Services: Personal services for a specific individual or individuals 

shall not be governed by this policy. 

3. Acquisition or Lease of Real Property: Because of the unique nature of land, the 

acquisition or lease of real property shall not be governed by this policy. 

4. Professional Services: College Park shall acquire professional services in 

accordance with the procurement and public notice requirements set forth in Chapter 

22 of Title 50 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 

5. Sole Source: 

a. Definition: Sole source acquisition means a contract for the purchase of 

supplies and/or services that is entered into after soliciting and negotiating 

with only one source. Sole source acquisition shall not include any of the 

following, however College Park may acquire goods or services through these 

sources: 

i. Purchases from existing College Park, DOAS, or other statewide 

contracts. 

ii. Approved "piggybacking" purchases. 

iii. Contracts for services performed by non-profit entities. 

iv. Intergovernmental agreements. 

v. Purchases which either by policy, statute or other regulation, are 

exempt from competitive solicitation. 

vi. Any contract resulting from a competitive solicitation conducted 

in accordance with the provisions of this policy even if only one 

responsive and responsible bid/proposal is received. 

b. Policy Statement: Sole source acquisitions are prohibited unless College 

Park establishes justification why the needed supplies and/or services should 

not be procured through open competition Examples in which a sole source 

acquisition could be acceptable are: 

i. When only the proposed source can furnish the services because of 

its previous State government or College Park experience and having 

an alternative source duplicating these capabilities would result in 

excessive cost to College Park. 

ii. When only one supplier can satisfy the technical requirements 

because of unique technical competence or expertise. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 145



 21 

 

iii. The item does not satisfy the requirements for Sole Source but the 

use of any other manufacturer's product would result in excessive 

cost to College Park. 

iv. When only one source possesses patents or exclusive rights to 

manufacture or to furnish the item or service. 

v. Other extenuating circumstances or considerations include, as 

applicable, adverse impacts on College Park of not using the 

proposed source, and other considerations not previously stated. 

c. Process: The Authorized Purchasing Officer must complete the following 

steps prior to finalizing a sole source acquisition. 

i. Conduct a market research to determine the appropriateness of a sole 

source acquisition. Research must be conducted to determine if other 

service providers exist and can satisfy procurement requirements. 

Research resources can include: Thomas Register, Industry 

Organizations, Internet searches, Consultant reviews, Request for 

Information, Advertisement or Industrial Publications. 

12-15 : MISCELLANEOUS: 

 

1. Cancellation of RFQ's/RFP's: An RFQ or RFP or other solicitation may be 

canceled or any and all bids may be rejected in whole or in part as may be 

specified in the solicitation and which is in the best interest of College Park. 

Further, if at any time it is found that the integrity of the process has been 

compromised or that errors have occurred, the solicitation may be canceled. 

2. Rejection of Bids/Proposal: College Park reserves the right to reject any 

and all bids/proposals submitted in response to any solicitation document, to 

reject any portion thereof, or to waive any irregularity or administrative 

requirement. 

3. Examine Records: College Park shall have the right to examine, inspect 

and audit the records of bidder/proposer as they pertain to their contract with 

College Park for a period of three (3) years after the termination of their 

contract with College Park. 

4. Right to Inspect Plant: By submitting a bid or proposal to College Park, the 

bidder/offeror agrees to permit College Park, the right of inspection at the 

bidder's/offeror’s plant/warehouse. Upon request, the bidder/offeror shall 

provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of 

College Park's appointed representative in the performance of such inspection. 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 146



 22 

 

5. Compliance with Federal Requirements: Where the procurement involves the 

expenditure of federal funds, College Park bidders and proposers shall comply 

with federal law and authorized regulations which apply to the procurement as 

required within any/all grants. 

6. Confidentiality: Unless otherwise required by law, all information and 

documentation relative to development of a contractual document for a 

proposed procurement shall be deemed confidential in nature. Such material 

shall remain confidential until successful completion or cancellation of the 

applicable procurement process. All proposals or bids received shall be 

deemed confidential in nature until successful completion or cancellation of 

the applicable procurement process. After a notice of award is posted, all 

material in the file, except information exempted by state or federal law from 

disclosure, shall be open to interested persons during normal office hours 

and may be hand copied or copies shall be furnished in accordance with the 

Georgia Open Records Act or the Federal Freedom of Information Act as 

applicable. 

 

12-16: OFFEROR RESPONSIBILITY, SUSPENSION or DEBARMENT: 

 

Purchases shall be made from and contracts shall be awarded to responsible offerors. 

 

1. Responsibility Generally Presumed: College Park may base its belief that an 

offeror is responsible on responses provided on the offeror’s "Statement of 

Responsibility Certification Form" (where such a form is used) and/or based on 

an offeror's responses to the requirements of the solicitation document. In order 

for an offeror to be deemed no responsible, the contracting officer must make 

an affirmative determination of no responsibility. 

2. Investigations: College Park shall have the right, but not the obligation, to conduct 

investigations and other forms of due diligence into any offeror's (or potential 

offeror's) responsibility status at any time and for any reason. 

3. Factors Affecting Responsibility: Areas affecting an offeror's responsibility may 

include, but are not limited to one or more of the following criteria: 

a. Whether offeror has adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or 

the ability to obtain them. This includes, but not limited to, the ability to 

obtain required bonds (if any) and insurance from sureties and insurance 

companies authorized to do business in Georgia. 

b. Whether offeror is able to comply with the contract requirements, 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 147



 23 

 

considering the firm's other business obligations. 

c. Whether offeror is registered to do business in the State of Georgia and is 

listed as "Active/Compliance" with the Office of the Georgia Secretary of 

State. 

d. Whether offeror is not presently debarred or suspended from bidding by any 

Federal or State governmental entity. 

e. Whether offeror has, within a three year period preceding the applicable 

solicitation document, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 

against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 

with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State 

or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of 

Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 

forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 

statements, or receiving stolen property. 

f. Whether offeror is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 

civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with 

commission of any of the offenses enumerated above. 

g. Whether offeror has had a contract terminated for default in the last 3 years. 

h. Whether offeror is currently under investigation for any possible breach of 

contract, or fraud or allegations of criminal activity related to the types of 

goods and/or services requested within the solicitation document. And if yes, 

the circumstances, nature and magnitude of such investigation shall be 

considered in any possible no responsibility determinat ion. 

i. Whether offeror has a satisfactory performance record. 

j. Whether offeror has a satisfactory record on integrity and business ethics. 

k. Whether offeror has satisfactory organization, experience, accounting and 

operational controls and managerial and technical skills. 

4. Failure to provide Information: Offeror's failure to provide information 

specifically requested by the contracting officer may be grounds for a 

determination of no responsibility. 

5. False certification or Information: False certification or information may be 

grounds for a non-responsibility determination and/or debarment. 

6. Determination of Non-Responsibility Required: If an offer or who otherwise would 

have been awarded a contract is found non-responsible, a determination of non-

responsibility setting forth the reason for the finding of non-responsibility shall be 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 148



 24 

 

prepared by the contracting officer. Notice to the non-responsible offer or shall be 

mailed no later than two (2) business days after the determination of non-

responsibility is made and must inform the offer or of the right to protest the 

determination. Any dispute of a non- responsibility determination must be made via 

a protest filed in strict accordance with the College Park's Protest Policy. 

 

12-17: PROTEST: 

 

An Interested Party desiring to protest, challenge or otherwise pursue a claim against any 

aspect of College Park procurement must comply with College Park's Protest Policy. 

 

12-18: CAUSES for DEBARMENT or SUSPENSION: 

 

College Park may debar a vendor/contractor for any of the causes listed as follows: 

1. Violation of contract provisions of a character which is regarded to be so serious as 

to justify debarment action. 

2. In College Park's opinion, the vendor's/contractor action amount to: 

a. A deliberate failure without good cause to perform in accordance with the 

specifications or within the time limit provided in the contract. 

b. A recent record of failure to perform or of unsatisfactory 

performance in accordance with the terms of one or more contracts. 

3. Conviction under state or federal status of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 

falsification or destruction of records, receiving stolen property, or other offense 

indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty which currently, 

seriously and directly affects responsibility as a state vendor. 

4. Conviction under state or federal antitrust statutes arising out of the submission of 

bids or proposal. 

5. Conviction of commission of a criminal offense as an incident to obtaining or 

attempting to obtain a public or private contract, or subcontract, or in the 

performance in the contract or subcontract. 

6. Any other cause as serious and compelling as to affect responsibility as a city 

vendor, including debarment by another government entity. 

7. Any violations of the provisions which govern Conflict of Interest. 

 

 

 

ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL:

 _____

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 149



 25 

 

____________________ 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE:

 _____

________________________________ 

 

 

10.A.c

Packet Pg. 150



[0037-1291/307364/1] 1 
 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
PURCHASING DEPARTMENT ADMINISTRATIVE POLICIES AND PROCEDURES  

 
TABLE OF CONTENTS 
  
POLICY NO. 

 
TITLE OF POLICY/PROCEDURE 

 
PAGE NO. 

     
    12-1 

 
INTRODUCTION 

 
2 

 
    12-2 DIRECTIVES 2 

 
12-3 PROCEDURES 2 -3 

 
12-4 PROCUREMENT METHODS 3 - 4 

 
12-5 APPROVAL LEVELS/RESPONSIBILITIES 4 -5 

 
12-6 CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE OF 

CAMPAIGN CONTRIBUTIONS 
7-12 
 
 

12-7 COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT/DIVERSITY POLICY 12-13 
 

12-8 SEALED BID OPENING PROCEDURES 13 
 

12-9 CONSTRUCTION PROJECT BIDDING 14 
 

12-10 FORMAL SEALED BIDS 14-15 
 

12-11 COMPETITIVE SEALED RFP 15-16 
 

12-12 PUBLIC NOTICE POSTINGS 16-17 
 

12-13 CLARIFICATIONS, DISCUSSIONS AND NEGOTIATIONS 17-19 
 

12-14 OTHER TYPES OF PROCUREMENT 19-21 
 

12-15 MISCELLANEOUS 21-22 
 

12-16 OFFEROR RESPONSIBILITY, SUSPENSION OR 
DEBARMENT 

22-24 
 
 

12-17 PROTEST 24 
 

12-18 CAUSE FOR DEBARMENT OR SUSPENSION 24-25 
 

   

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 151



[0037-1291/307364/1] 2 
 

CITY OF COLLEGE PARK  
ADMINISTRATIVE PURCHASING POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 

12-1 : INTRODUCTION: 
 

This policy sets forth the legal authority and responsibility for the procurement of goods 
and services for the City of College Park as approved by the Mayor/Council. This policy 
sets forth guidelines for governing the conduct of Purchasing personnel and those with 
official responsibility to function or participate in any procurement transaction for using 
department(s). 

12-2 : DIRECTIVES: 
 

Compliance with this Policy is required, however, in College Park's sole discretion; no 
proceeding under this Policy will be voided because of a minor technical failure of 
compliance that College Park determines does not harm the substantive rights of College 
Park or any other party or otherwise adversely affects the integrity of College Park's 
procurement process. 

12-3 : PROCEDURES: 
1. To ensure that procedures exist to authorize the purchase of goods and services on 

behalf of all departments and to adhere to the requirements of the City of College 
Park Purchasing Manual and any other applicable administrative policies and 
procedures. 

2. To ensure that contact is first made with the Purchasing Department before any 
meetings, fact finding efforts, consultant studies or discussions are conducted with 
vendors concerning issues related to potential non-routine purchases exceeding 
$10,000.00 whether they are related to existing or new goods or services purchased. 
All interested vendors shall be given the opportunity to participate in purchasing 
activities of the City of College Park. Commitments shall not be made to vendors that 
may be inappropriate; decisions on potential sole sources must not be formulated 
without canvassing the entire vendor community; and vendors must not be provided 
information that gives them a competitive advantage over others. NOTE: Assistance 
provided by a vendor does not warrant a preference or any obligation for award of a 
bid/contract. 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 152



[0037-1291/307364/1] 3 
 

  

3. Requisitions must never be split for the purpose of circumventing competitive 
requirements. 

4. An employee making unauthorized purchases will be held personally liable for the 
cost of the purchases.  

5. Employees involved in any aspect of a purchasing decision are forbidden to solicit or 
accept money, gifts, meals or entertainment from vendors. Employees shall conduct 
themselves in a manner that avoids the appearance of impropriety. Reference Policy 
No. 12-6- Conflict of Interest and Disclosure of Campaign Contributions. 

6. Advertising or promotional literature stating that the city or their respective 
employees endorse a vendor's product or services is prohibited, unless approved by 
the Mayor and Council. 

7. Unless otherwise required by law, information received from vendors, to include 
pricing, will not be divulged to other vendors until a decision to award is made. 

8. The Purchasing Department serves as a strategic partner by supporting the city 
departments as they perform their respective missions by providing effective and 
efficient purchasing services. 

9. Purchasing activities will be administered in accordance with the City of College 
Park Purchasing Manual and applicable administrative policies and procedures. 

 

12-4 : PROCUREMENT METHODS: 
 
The City of College Park shall use the following methods of Procurement: 

 
1. RFP: A "request for proposal" is a formal solicitation that seeks to leverage the 

creativity and knowledge of business organizations in order to provide a solution to 
a procurement need. The RFP solicits technical and sealed price proposals from 
prospective vendors and seeks to obtain the best value for the city. The RFP does not 
use the cost of the project as the single determining factor, but rather uses a 
combination of lowest cost plus best proposed solution to determine the award. The 
city may use an RFP where the objective of the solution is to identify a vendor who 
can offer the best possible solution to the procurement at the most reasonable cost .  

2. RFQ: A "request for quotation" is a formal solicitation method that includes a well- 
defined specification or scope of work and usually contains all contractual terms and 
conditions. Bidder exceptions to any of the RFQ specifications may be used as a 
basis for disqualification. The RFQ solicits sealed price quotations or bids from 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 153



[0037-1291/307364/1] 4 
 

prospective vendors and seeks to obtain price quotes from the lowest priced 
responsive and responsible bidder provided no contract award shall be made to the 
bidder with the lowest cost if the city determines the low cost bidder cannot perform 
the contract requirements. The City of College Park will use an RFQ if the project 
lends itself to the creation of a clear and accurate statement of work and the objective 
of the solicitation is to identify a vendor who can provide the required specifications 
at the lowest possible cost. 

3. RFQC: A "request for qualified contractors" is used when the city is attempting 
to find offers with qualifications to produce the product or service requested. 
Each vendor is judged on its ability to meet or surpass the required qualifications 
set forth in the RFQC documents. This form of solicitation may, but does not 
always, culminate in a contract award. This may be used as a prerequisite to 
determine eligibility to respond to a RFP or RFQ. 

4. RFI: A "request for information" is a method for soliciting information from 
vendors who have knowledge or information about a product or service. This 
method is not intended to result in a contract award. It is designed to allow for 
the collection of information that will then be used to determine if an RFQ or RFP 
solicitation is required. 

5. Formal Sealed Bids: A "formal sealed bid" is used to procure goods and or services 
not normally sought with an RFP, RFQ, etc. 
• See dollar limits under Approval Levels/Responsibilities below. 

12-5 : APPROVAL LEVELS /RESPONSIBILITIES: 
 
The following dollar amounts and approvals apply to all city departments as per the date 
issued for this policy and procedure manual. This is subject to change as deemed 
necessary by the Mayor/Council. 

1. Small purchases may be made up to $999.99 without bids. A purchase order is not 
necessary unless the vendor requires a PO. In the event a PO is required, the 
requesting department must provide a requisition to the Purchasing Department for 
processing. This must be approved by the Purchasing Department and the 
Accounting Department. The City Manager's approval is not required. 

2. Purchases from $1,000.00 to $9,999.99 will require a purchase order and three (3) 
quotes. The quotes must be attached to the electronic requisition. If the requesting 
department cannot find a third quote, the purchasing department can assist to obtain 
another quote. The Purchasing Department, Accounting Department and the City 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 154



[0037-1291/307364/1] 5 
 

Manager's Office shall approve the purchase. Quotes may be obtained by fax and/or 
e-mail for purchases up to $9,999.99. Purchases above $10,000.00 requires Council 
approval. 

3. Purchases from $10,000.00 and above will require a sealed bid process. The 
specifications/scope of work, etc. shall be generated by the requesting department. 
If more than one (1) department is affected by the project, the final draft must be 
signed off by each department acknowledging their approval before the instructions 
to the bidder or other bid documents can be applied to the packet. 

a. Bid opening/Pre-Bid opening dates will be determined by the Purchasing 
Department as to the availability of their calendar. The Department Head may 
request a date for the opening. The Purchasing Department will work with 
the requesting department to arrange the opening date as close as possible to 
his/her request. 

b. Bid documents prepared by a consultant must be approved by the City 
Manager's Office and/or the City Attorney prior to the bid process. 

4. "Capital Outlay" items that are under $10,000.00 will not be required to go before 
Mayor and Council for approval. All items over $10,000.00 must go before Mayor 
and Council for approval subject to exceptions in this Purchasing Policy. 

5. The Director of the Georgia International Convention Center (GICC) and Gateway 
Arena is authorized to enter into contracts on behalf of the City related to these 
facilities without the specific approval of Mayor and Council provided that the 
contracts are a business necessity and, based on exigent circumstances, it would be 
impractical to delay contracting until the next regularly scheduled of Mayor and City 
Council. If the Director in his or her sole discretion determines that the conditions 
stated in this section exist, the following additional steps shall be taken: 

a. The Director shall provide written notification to the City Manager of 
the business necessity and exigent circumstances which require the 
expedited contract before the contract is executed; and. 

b. The Director shall bring the executed contract to the next regular 
meeting of Mayor and Council for ratification. 

6.  
7.6. A

n item that is being changed to a different item than what was budgeted must go 
before the Mayor/Council for approval. 

8.7. "

Formatted: Font: 12 pt

Formatted: List Paragraph, Numbered + Level: 1 +
Numbering Style: a, b, c, … + Start at: 1 + Alignment: Left +
Aligned at:  1.25" + Indent at:  1.5"

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.53",  No bullets or numbering

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 155



[0037-1291/307364/1] 6 
 

State Contract" items may be processed without competitive bidding as 
approved by Mayor and Council. However, if an item is available on the State 
Contract, the Mayor and Council, City Manager and/or the Purchasing Manager 
can/shall have the option of acquiring other bids if they feel the item(s) can be 
purchased at a lower cost to the city. A requisition is still required and "State 
Contract" shall appear on the requisition. 

9.8. V
ehicles, equipment, etc. in need of repairs that exceed $1,000.00 shall have the 
City Manager's approval prior to any and all work/repairs being completed. This 
approval shall be made available by e-mail or writing document from the 
Department Director to the City Manager. Once the City Manager has given the 
approval, by either e-mail or signed document, the Purchasing Department shall 
be provided a copy for their file. The requesting department shall provide a 
requisition through the normal channel to secure a purchase order. A note shall 
be made on the requisition of such prior approval as well as unit number, 
building, etc. requiring repairs. 

10.9. A
ll requisitions for computers, printers, etc. shall include a quote number obtained 
from the IT Department. The quote number shall appear on the requisition. No 
requisition will be processed by the Purchasing Department without this number. 

11.10. I
tems that are approved by the Mayor/Council as an "Agenda Item" shall be noted 
as such on the requisition when entered by the user department. It shall be noted in 
the "Resolution Field" on the requisition, and shall show the date and item 
number pertaining to the agenda. Requisitions received by the Purchasing 
Department without the information mentioned under this section "Approval 
Levels/Responsibilities" will be returned to the requesting department with 
comments as to why the requisition has been returned. 

12.11. "
Over Budget" amounts on requisitions will be reconciled between the requesting 
department and the Finance/Accounting Department. The Purchasing Department 
will not be responsible for account numbers within the user department. 

13.12. T
he requesting department shall provide to the Purchasing Department all 
specifications, scope of work, etc. for the material(s), equipment or service(s) being 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 156



[0037-1291/307364/1] 7 
 

requested for all items requiring an RFP or RFQ. The Purchasing Department will 
assist in any way with the requesting department(s) in the gathering of this 
information upon request. The following shall apply: 
a. Should more than one department be involved in any part or phase of the 

project other than the originator, then that department(s) shall also have input 
into the specifications/requirements before the Purchasing Department 
proceeds with the bidding process. 

b. All department(s) with any input or involved in the project in any way shall be 
required to sign off on the final specifications/scope of work copy before a bid 
is processed. Any department(s) with any input into this project will receive a 
complete set of documents for their files. 
 

12-6 : CONFLICT OF INTEREST AND DISCLOSURE OF CAMPAIGN 
CONTRIBUTIONS: 
Every person, business or entity involved in the procurement process must adhere to a high 
standard of ethics. Each will be bound by the City Code of Ethics and this Section. Whenever 
this Section conflicts with the City Code of Ethics, the City Code of Ethics shall control. For 
the purposes of this section, the term “City Employee” means any person employed by the 
City of College Park, and the term “City Official” means any elected or appointed official of 
the City or of an agency, authority or instrumentality of the City. 
 
1. Employee Conflict of Interest. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 

Official to transact any business or participate directly or indirectly in a procurement 
contract when the City Employee or City Official knows:  

a. The City Employee or City Official  or immediate family of such has a substantial 
interest pertaining to the procurement contract, except that the purchase of goods 
and services from businesses which a member of the city council or other City 
Employee has a substantial interest is authorized as per O.C.G.A. § 36-1-14, or 
the procurement contract is awarded pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 45-10-22 and § 45-
10-24, or the transaction is excepted from said restrictions by O.C.G.A. § 45-10-
25, interpreting such statutes as if they were applicable to a municipality. 

b. Any other person, business or organization with whom the City Employee, City 
Official or immediate family of such is negotiating or has an arrangement 
concerning prospective employment is involved in the procurement contract.  

c. A City Employee, City Official or any immediate family of such who holds a 
substantial interest in a disclosed blind trust shall not be deemed to have a conflict 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 157



[0037-1291/307364/1] 8 
 

of interest with regard to matters pertaining to that substantial interest. 
d. All City Employees and City Officials will be asked to sign a disclosure 

document indicating his or her compliance with the City Code of Ethics Policy. 
e. The terms “immediate family” and “substantial interest” shall have the meaning 

given to such terms in the City Code of Ethics. 
 

2. Gratuities, Rebates or Kickbacks 
a. Gratuities and other benefits. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 

Official to directly or indirectly solicit, demand, receive, accept or agree to 
receive any gratuity, reward, offer of employment, services or things of value 
from any person, business or entity in connection with any award, decision, 
approval, disapproval, recommendation or preparation of any part of a program 
requirement or a purchase request, influencing the content of any specification or 
procurement standard, rendering of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other 
advisory capacity in any proceeding or application, request for ruling, 
determination, claim or controversy, or other particular matter, pertaining to any 
program requirement or a contract or subcontract, or to any solicitation or 
proposal. 
 
It shall further be unethical for any person, business or entity to offer, give or 
agree to give or offer to give any City Employee or City Official any gratuity, 
reward, offer of employment, services or things of value with the purpose of 
influencing any award, decision, approval, disapproval, recommendation or 
preparation of any part of a program requirement or a purchase request, 
influencing the content of any specification or procurement standard, rendering 
of advice, investigation, auditing or in any other advisory capacity in any 
proceeding or application, request for ruling, determination, claim or controversy, 
or other particular matter pertaining to any program requirement or a contract or 
subcontract, or to any solicitation or proposal.   

i. A “thing of value” shall not include: 
a. Any gift with a value less than one hundred dollars 

($100.00); 
b. Food or beverage consumed at a single meal or event; 
c. An award, plaque, certificate, memento or similar item 

given in recognition of the recipient's civic, charitable, 
political, professional or public service; 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 158



[0037-1291/307364/1] 9 
 

d. Promotional items generally distributed to the general 
public or to public officers;  

e. Rebates normally or routinely offered to customers in the 
ordinary course of business of such person, business or 
entity for the purchase of their goods and services are 
acceptable and are the property of the City; and 

f. Educational events, materials and meals as described in 
subparagraph (ii). 

ii. Educational events. Nothing in this section shall preclude a City 
Employee or City Official from attending seminars, courses, 
lectures, briefings or similar functions at any person, business or 
entity’s facility or at any other place if any such seminar, course, 
lecture, briefing or similar function is for the purpose of 
furnishing the City Official, City Employee or agent with 
knowledge and information relative to the person, business or 
entity’s products or services and is one which the city manager 
determines would be of benefit to the City. In connection with 
any such seminar, course, lecture, briefing or similar function, 
nothing shall preclude the City Employee or City Official from 
receiving meals or educational materials and business related 
items of not more than nominal value from a person, business or 
entity. However, no City Employee or City Official shall accept 
or receive free travel or lodging for less than the value thereof 
from a person, business or entity. 

b. Kickbacks and rebates. It shall be unethical for any payment, gratuity or offer of 
employment to be made by or on behalf of a subcontractor under a contract to the 
prime contractor or higher tier subcontractor or any person associated therewith, 
as an inducement for the award of a subcontract or order. 

 
3. Disclosure of Campaign Finance Contributions. All vendors/contractors who do 

business with the City for purchases from ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00)  and  above, 
which require a sealed bid process under the terms of the City of College Park’s 
Purchasing Policies and Procedures, shall be required to file a written campaign 
contribution disclosure form with the city manager naming the City Official(s) to whom 
and when the campaign contribution was made, to identify the dollar amount and to 
provide a description of each campaign contribution.    

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 159



[0037-1291/307364/1] 10 
 

 
a. Except as provided in subsection (e) of O.C.G.A. § 21-5-34, no contributions to 

bring about the nomination or election of a candidate for any office shall be made 
or accepted except directly to or by a candidate or such candidate's campaign 
committee which is organized for the purpose of bringing about the nomination 
or election of any such candidate; and no contributions to bring about the recall 
of a public officer or to oppose the recall of a public officer or to bring about the 
approval or rejection by the voters of a proposed constitutional amendment, state-
wide referendum or proposed question at the state, municipal or county level shall 
be made or accepted except directly to or by a campaign committee organized for 
that purpose. 

 
b. Unless otherwise reported individually, where separate contributions of less than 

one hundred dollars ($100.00) are knowingly received from a common source, 
such contributions shall be aggregated for reporting purposes. For purposes of 
fulfilling such aggregation requirement, members of the family, members of the 
same firm or partnership or employees of the same person as defined in paragraph 
(19) of O.C.G.A. § 21-5-3, shall be considered to be a common source; provided, 
however, that the purchase of tickets for not more than twenty-five dollars 
($25.00) each and for attendance at a fundraising event by members of the family, 
members of the same firm or partnership or employees of the same person shall 
not be considered to be contributions from a common source except to the extent 
that tickets are purchased as a block. 

 
c. For each year a vendor/contractor is under contract and engaged in business with 

the City, it shall be required to file a campaign contribution disclosure form to 
the city manager.  

 
d. All vendors/contractors shall file the campaign contributions disclosure form to 

the city manager prior to or along with submitting a proposal in the bid process 
for purchases from ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00) and above.  

 
4. Prohibition against Contingent Fees. It shall be unethical for any person to be retained, 

or to retain a person, to solicit or secure a contract upon any agreement or understanding 
for a contingency fee, except for agreements with manufacturer representatives, or 
agents, including, but not limited to, commercial services sales agents engaged in the 
business of soliciting contracts on behalf of vendors. A “contingency fee” as used in this 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 160



[0037-1291/307364/1] 11 
 

subsection C means any commission, percentage, brokerage or other fee that is 
contingent upon the success that a person has in securing a city contract.  
 

5. Use of Confidential Information. It shall be unethical for any City Employee or City 
Official to knowingly disclose or use confidential information for actual or anticipated 
personal gain or for the actual or anticipated personal gain of any other person. 
 

6. Unauthorized Purchases. No purchases of goods and services shall be made in the name 
of the City or one of its departments, except such as is required for official use by the 
City or one of its departments.  Purchases in the name of the City or a department for 
personal use by an individual or for other than official use are prohibited, and no City 
funds will be expended or advanced therefore. 
 

7. Penalties and Sanctions 
a. Legal or disciplinary action by city council. The city council may take 

appropriate legal and/or disciplinary actions pursuant to the City Code of Ethics 
against any City Employee, City Official or other person in violation of these 
ethical standards. 

b. Legal or disciplinary action by city manager. The city manager is authorized to 
take any appropriate legal and/or disciplinary actions, including dismissal, of any 
City Employee violating this City Code of Ethics Policy. 

c. Administrative penalties for employees. The city manager may impose any one 
or more of the following penalties or sanctions on a City Employee for violations 
of the ethical standards in this Section as appropriate to the situation, subject to 
the Personnel Manual or other appropriate appeals procedures:  

i. Oral or written warnings or reprimands; 
ii. Suspensions with or without pay for specified periods of time; or 
iii. Termination of employment. 

d. Administrative penalties for outside contractors/vendors. The City may impose 
any one or more of the following penalties or sanctions on a vendor or other 
person or organization for violations of these ethical standards:  

i. Written warnings or reprimands;  
ii. Termination of contracts; or  
iii. Debarment or suspension. 

  
8. Disclaimer of Responsibility for Improper Purchasing, The City may disclaim 

responsibility and liability for any purchase, expenditure or agreement for expenditure 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 161



[0037-1291/307364/1] 12 
 

arising from any procurement made in its name, or in the name of any governmental 
body under its authority, by an unauthorized person or any person acting outside this 
policy or the authorization or delegation as provided in this policy. The expense of any 
such disclaimed transaction will become the personal liability of the individual who acted 
improperly. 
 

9. Vendor Contact during Open Solicitations. Persons seeking an award of a City 
contract may not initiate or continue any verbal or written communications regarding a 
solicitation with any City Official, City Employee or other City representative other than 
the purchasing agent named in the solicitation between the date of the issuance of the 
solicitation and the date of the final contract award.  The city manager or designee will 
review violations.  If determined that such communication has compromised the 
competitive process, the offer submitted by the individual, firm or business may be 
disqualified from consideration for award. 

 
 
12·7: COMPETITIVE PROCUREMENT/DIVERSITY INITIATIVE POLICY: 

 
1. Purchase or acquisitions made by the City of College Park shall be made through 

competitive bidding or competitive proposal unless expressly exempted from 
this requirement by other provision of this policy or by express authorization 
by the City Manager or the Mayor/Council. The following are hereby declared 
exempt: 

a. Emergency purchases 
b. Acquisition or leasing of real property 
c. Purchases of less than $10,000.00 
d. Personal or professional services 
e. Sole source purchases or acquisitions. 

2. The City of College Park may purchase off of other governmental contracts if 
such contracts are open to purchase by public authorities. As such, competitive 
bidding procedures do not apply or may be satisfied by the competitive process 
that was followed to award such governmental contract. The city has the 
discretion to enter into an inter-governmental agreement if the items to be 
acquired are available from these contracts. The bidding process has already 
been completed. 

3. This policy shall also set forth the procedures for increasing opportunities for 
procurement and contract activities among Minority-Owned Businesses (MOB), 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 162



[0037-1291/307364/1] 13 
 

African American Business Enterprise (AABE), Hispanic Business Enterprise 
(HBE), Female Business Enterprise (FBE), Asian Business Enterprise (ABE) and 
Native American Business Enterprise (NABE) located within/out-side the city 
limits of College Park Georgia. It is strongly encouraged to seek price quotations 
from the above various Minority vendors when procuring goods and services for 
dollar values under $10,000.00. For dollar amounts above $10,000.00 (sealed bids), 
a vendor questionnaire will be included in every bid packet. This questionnaire will 
be completed by the vendor and returned in the bid response and become part of the 
proposal. 

4. Local Preference may be given to businesses that have a business location within the 
geographic boundaries of the City of College Park as long as all requirements of the 
bid have been met. Should a local vendor submit a bid proposal that is equal to a 
non-local vendor, then the local vendor's bid shall be recommended for approval 
provided all requirements of the bid proposal/process has been met. 

 
The term business location means that the business has a staffed, fixed, physical 
place of business located within City of College Park City Limits and has had the 
same for a least one (1) year prior to the date of the business' submission of its 
proposal or bid, as applicable and has had held a valid business license from the 
City of College Park. 

 
In order to receive local preference, the proposer must provide the following criteria 
and provide supporting documentation as required. 

• Copy of Occupational Tax Certificate (Business License) from the City of 
College Park. 

• Copy of a lease or rental agreement located in the city limits of City of 
College Park. 

 

12-8 : 
SEALED BID OPENING PROCEDURES: 

 
1. Sealed bids will be received in the Purchasing Department on or before the 

assigned date and time as advertised. Bids received in any other department 
(unless otherwise stated in the bid documents) will not be accepted. 

2. The requesting department shall have a department representative present 
at each bid opening. 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 163



[0037-1291/307364/1] 14 
 

3. Bids will be opened and read aloud for all parties present. 
4. Bids shall be made available for vendor review after the official opening 

is completed and under the supervision of the Purchasing Department or 
otherwise designated City staff. 

5. A tabulation sheet may be made available for bidders 10 days after the bid opening. 
6. The requesting department shall retain the bids for their review and/or 

recommendation. The Purchasing Department will assist the department in 
making a recommendation if necessary. 

7. Once a recommendation has been made of the successful bidder, the Department 
Head shall prepare an "Agenda Memorandum" to the City Manager's Office 
requesting this item be placed on the next available Mayor/Council Agenda if 
applicable. 

8. The Purchasing Department will add an Agenda Cover Memo to the requesting 
Department(s) "Agenda Memorandum" if required by the City Manager’s 
Office. 

12-9 : CONSTRUCTION PROJECT BIDDING: 
 

All College Park contracts for the construction of any roads/bridges or a system of 
roads/bridges and tunnels or construction of buildings, structures, parking areas on such 
roads/bridges or tunnels shall be let to a reliable bidder submitting the lowest sealed bid 
upon plans and specifications approved by involved City Departments and/or by the 
Georgia Department of Transportation. The procedures for letting such bids shall conform 
to those prescribed for GDOT in Georgia Code Sections 32-2-64 through 32-2-72. 

 
Reference "Public Notice Postings" for dollar limits and time frames.  
 

 
12-10: FORMAL SEALED BIDS: 
 

1. ALL purchases involving expenditures of $10,000.00 or more will be made by 
sealed competitive bids or proposals. The City of College Park will require 
all sealed bids to be submitted to the Purchasing Department as stated in its 
General Instructions to the Bidder. Faxed or e-mail bids will not be 
considered. No sealed bid will be accepted after the due date and closing time. 
These bids will be returned to the sender. 

2. Bid evaluation and awards will be made as follows: 
a. Evaluation of Bids = the contract shall be awarded to the lowest, responsive and 

responsible bidder whose bid meets the requirements and specifications 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 164



[0037-1291/307364/1] 15 
 

contained in the proposal. An award will be made to one (1) bidder unless stated 
in the bid proposal. 

b. Acceptability Requirements = a product acceptability evaluation may be 
conducted to determine if a bidder's product is acceptable as set forth in the bid 
proposal. Any bidder's bid that does not meet the acceptability requirements shall 
be rejected as nonresponsive. 

c. Alternate Bids = an alternate bid may be considered for an award if the product 
meets the specifications and all requirements of the proposal unless otherwise 
stated in the proposal. 

d. Single Bid = If only one responsible bid is received to a proposal, an award 
may be made to the single bidder if the city determines in writing that the price 
submitted is fair and reasonable. However, it is the practice of the city to NOT 
open a single bid received if for any reason the Purchasing Department feels 
that more bids can be obtained. Should this occur the Purchasing Department 
will extend the bid opening date, contact vendors that did not respond in an 
effort to obtain additional bids? 

e. Tie Bids = A tie can exist when two (2) or more bidders offer identical prices, 
products that meets all specifications, terms and conditions. In such a situation, 
the city shall consider the following methods to resolve the tie. 

i. Past performance of the vendor 
ii. Best delivery date 
iii.  Closes proximity to delivery site 
 

12-11 : COMPETITIVE SEALED RFP: 
 

1. The RFP should be used when the needed goods/services does not lend itself 
to the creation of a clear and accurate list of specifications or statement of work 
and the objective of the solicitation is to identify the vendor who can  offer  the  
best possible solution at the most reasonable cost. The RFP seeks to identify 
the best value for the city by using a combination of technical and cost factors 
to evaluate vendor's proposals. 

2. Proposals received by the RFP closing date and time will be evaluated in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the General Instructions. 
During the evaluation stage, the city may elect to request clarification and/or 
conduct one or more rounds of discussions or negotiations to solicit 
improvements to technical and/or cost proposal. 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 165



[0037-1291/307364/1] 16 
 

a. General Evaluation = the city shall be bound by the terms of the RFP as 

well as the established evaluation criteria. No changes to the evaluation 

criteria may be made after the closing date and time. If a technical or 

cost proposal fails to meet a mandatory requirement specified in the 

RFP, the city will determine if the deviation is material. A material 

deviation will be cause for rejection of the proposal. An immaterial 

deviation will be processed as if no deviation had occurred. The city 

shall have the right to reject any and all proposals submitted in response 

to the RFP, to reject any portion thereof, or to waive any irregularity or 

administrative requirements. 

b. Administrative Review = the issuing officer may conduct a preliminary 
review of the received proposals to determine which technical 
proposals should be submitted. The administrative review should 
eliminate the following proposals any proposal submitted by a vendor 
who is currently suspended or debarred by the city or DOAS and any 
proposals which are missing required documents, signatures or any 
other item required by the RFP to be submitted with the proposal. 

c. Oral Presentation and Site Visits = the city may conduct site visits 
and/or request offerors make oral presentations as permitted by the 
RFP. If a vendor does not attend a mandatory site meeting, then the 
vendor's bid/proposal may be disqualified from consideration. 

d. Cost = the city may utilize lowest cost, lowest total cost, total cost of 
ownership or greatest savings to determine the best price proposal. The 
vendor deemed to have the most competitive cost proposal overall, as 
determined by the city will receive the award. 

e. Contract Negotiations = In the event that the city permitted vendors to 
submit exceptions to the city proposed contract and the vendor(s) 
identified for contract award have submitted contract exceptions, such 
contract exceptions must be resolved prior to contract execution. In the 
event that the city is unable to reach agreement as to contract terms with 
a vendor, the vendor will be ineligible for contract award and the city 
may award to the next best ranked vendor. 

f. Contract Award = The contract award, if any, shall be made to the 
responsible vendor whose proposal conforms to the RFP and is 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 166



[0037-1291/307364/1] 17 
 

determined to be the most advantageous to the city utilizing the 
established evaluation criteria. The contract file shall contain the basis 
on which the award is made. 

 
12-12 : PUBLIC NOTICE POSTINGS: 

 
The following are guidelines as to where and how postings will apply: 

 
1. All competitive solicitations of $10,000.00 or more shall be posted at a minimum 

of two (2) of the following: the College Park website, City's legal organ (South 
Fulton Neighbor) or posted in the foyer of the City Hall Complex. 

2. College Park, at its discretion, may also elect to conduct additional public 
advertisement through other newspaper or publication with statewide 
ci rculat ion. 

3. The following guidelines will be generally followed by College Park 
Purchasing Department when posting competitive solicitations: 

A. $9,999.99 - $99,999.99 = Minimum Two (2) Weeks. 
B. $100,000.00 and above = Minimum Four (4) Weeks 

With the exception of construction bids, the City Manager may approve the 
posting of a competitive solicitation for a period of time less than the guidelines 
stated above when sufficient evidence justifying the reduced posting time period 
has been established. 

4. In addition to the provisions above, the following procurements require public 
notice on the Georgia Procurement Registry (“GPR”).  

A. The City shall advertise all bid or proposal opportunities for goods, 
services, or both that are valued at $100,000.00 or more in the GPR for a 
minimum of four (4) weeks prior to the date set for opening bids/proposals. 
Each advertisement shall include such details and specifications as will 
enable the public to know the extent and character of the bid or proposal 
opportunity. See O.C.G.A. § 36-80-27. 

 
B. The City shall advertise all contract opportunities for public works 

construction that are valued at $100,000.00 or more in the GPR for at least 
four continuous weeks  prior to the opening of the sealed bids or proposals, 
unless otherwise provided by O.C.G.A. § 36-91-20. 

12-13 : CLARIFICATIONS, DISCUSSIONS and NEGOTIATIONS: 
 
Clarifications, Discussions and Negotiations may be conducted on any City of College 
Park procurement in accordance with the following: 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 167



[0037-1291/307364/1] 18 
 

1. Clarifications: During the procurement process, the City of College Park may 
seek clarifications with any offeror at any time. 

2. Discussions: The City of College Park may conduct discussions collectively or 
one on one with offerors who are deemed qualified based on criteria set forth in 
the solicitation document. The City of College Park may engage in one or more 
rounds of discussions for the purpose of: 

a. Gaining a better understanding of offeror’s proposal solution. 
b. Communicating College Park's needs or concerns, 
c. Communicating revisions and/or best and final offers for technical 

and/or cost proposals. 
In conducting discussions, there shall be no disclosure to an offeror of any 
information contained in competing offeror’s proposals (technical or price) 
except the disclosure of information derived from the proposals may be 
disclosed as follows: If the solicitation document contains a provision notifying 
offerors that the City of College Park may use a process of allowing multiple 
revisions to price proposals to establish the final price proposal, College Park is 
authorized to disclose information derived from (but not contained in) the 
proposals to competing offerors such as overall rankings for the purpose of 
soliciting ongoing revisions to price proposals. 

3. Negotiations: The City of College Park may conduct negotiations with offerors who 
are deemed qualified and reasonable for award based on criteria set forth in the 
solicitation document. College Park may engage in one or more rounds of 
negotiations. In conducting negotiations, there shall be no disclosure to an offeror of 
any information contained in competing offerors’ proposals (technical or price) except 
the disclosure of information derived from the proposals may be disclosed as follows: 
If the solicitation document contains a provision notifying offerors that College Park 
may use a process of allowing multiple revisions to establish the final price proposal, 
College Park is authorized to disclose information derived from (but not contained in) 
the proposal to competing offerors such as overall rankings for the purpose of 
soliciting ongoing revisions to price proposals. 
 
The City of College Park identifies which offerors shall participate in the 
Negotiations in one (1) of the following ways: 

a) Identify in the solicitation document the methodology that will be 
used to identify offerors that may participate in Negotiations. This 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 168



[0037-1291/307364/1] 19 
 

may include, but not necessarily be limited to, a methodology that 
establishes a competitive range based on offerors rankings 
following proposal evaluations. Identify in an addendum to the 
solicitation document the methodology that will be used to identify 
offerors that may participate in Negotiations. 

b) Negotiate with all responsive responsible offerors following 
bid/proposal evaluations. Identified offerors will be notified in writing 
that College Park is initiating Negotiations; the general purpose and 
scope of the Negotiations; the anticipated schedule for the Negotiations; 
the procedures to be followed for those Negotiations. This information 
may be provided in a single or separate document. College Park may 
issue additional information and/or instructions to offerors participating 
in Negotiations as needed. Negotiations may be completed after a single 
round, or be done in several rounds as determined by College Park 
negotiation team. After the negotiations, participating offerors may be 
asked to submit supplemental proposals defining the revisions that are 
a result of negotiations. Any request for supplemental proposals will be 
directed in writing to all offerors participating in the negotiations and 
will provide details concerning the format and due date for the 
supplemental proposals. Colleges Park may in its sole discretion, 
terminate negotiations and/or the solicitation at any time. 

 
4. Negotiations in Lieu of New Procurement: If after evaluation and 

obtaining clarification of a bid or proposal College Park determines that 
a bid or proposal is unreasonable or unacceptable, or is noncompetitive, 
or low bid proposal exceeds available funds, College Park will determine 
in writing whether time or other circumstances will permit the delay 
required to resolicit competitive bids or proposals. If College Park 
determines that the circumstances are such that the procurement cannot 
be delayed, a contract may be negotiated provided that each responsible 
bidder or offeror who submitted a bid or proposal under the original 
solicitation is notified of the determination and is given a reasonable 
opportunity to negotiate. In case where the bid/proposals received are 
noncompetitive or the low bid proposal exceeds available funds, the 
negotiated prices shall be lower than the lowest rejected bid/proposal of 
any responsible bidder/offeror under the original solicitation. 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 169



[0037-1291/307364/1] 20 
 

 
12·14: OTHER TYPES OF PROCUREMENT: 

 
1. Emergency Purchases: Emergency circumstances exist where normal purchasing 

procedures cannot be utilized without extremely detrimental effects upon the 
operation of College Park and or College Park Customers. The requisition/purchase 
order should provide documentation as to the circumstance surrounding the 
emergency and should clearly state "Emergency Purchase" on the face of the purchase 
order or on the requisition provided by the user department. The City Manager must 
approve all emergency purchases. 

2. Personal Services: Personal services for a specific individual or individuals 
shall not be governed by this policy. 

3. Acquisition or Lease of Real Property: Because of the unique nature of land, the 
acquisition or lease of real property shall not be governed by this policy. 

4. Professional Services: College Park shall acquire professional services in 
accordance with the procurement and public notice requirements set forth in Chapter 
22 of Title 50 of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated. 

5. Sole Source: 

a. Definition: Sole source acquisition means a contract for the purchase of 
supplies and/or services that is entered into after soliciting and negotiating 
with only one source. Sole source acquisition shall not include any of the 
following, however College Park may acquire goods or services through these 
sources: 

i. Purchases from existing College Park, DOAS, or other statewide 
contracts. 

ii. Approved "piggybacking" purchases. 
iii. Contracts for services performed by non-profit entities. 
iv. Intergovernmental agreements. 
v. Purchases which either by policy, statute or other regulation, are 

exempt from competitive solicitation. 
vi. Any contract resulting from a competitive solicitation conducted 

in accordance with the provisions of this policy even if only one 
responsive and responsible bid/proposal is received. 

b. Policy Statement: Sole source acquisitions are prohibited unless College 
Park establishes justification why the needed supplies and/or services should 
not be procured through open competition Examples in which a sole source 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 170



[0037-1291/307364/1] 21 
 

acquisition could be acceptable are: 
i. When only the proposed source can furnish the services because of 

its previous State government or College Park experience and having 
an alternative source duplicating these capabilities would result in 
excessive cost to College Park. 

ii. When only one supplier can satisfy the technical requirements 
because of unique technical competence or expertise. 

iii. The item does not satisfy the requirements for Sole Source but the 
use of any other manufacturer's product would result in excessive 
cost to College Park. 

iv. When only one source possesses patents or exclusive rights to 
manufacture or to furnish the item or service. 

v. Other extenuating circumstances or considerations include, as 
applicable, adverse impacts on College Park of not using the 
proposed source, and other considerations not previously stated. 

c. Process: The Authorized Purchasing Officer must complete the following 
steps prior to finalizing a sole source acquisition. 

i. Conduct a market research to determine the appropriateness of a sole 
source acquisition. Research must be conducted to determine if other 
service providers exist and can satisfy procurement requirements. 
Research resources can include: Thomas Register, Industry 
Organizations, Internet searches, Consultant reviews, Request for 
Information, Advertisement or Industrial Publications. 

12-15 : MISCELLANEOUS: 
 

1. Cancellation of RFQ's/RFP's: An RFQ or RFP or other solicitation may be 
canceled or any and all bids may be rejected in whole or in part as may be 
specified in the solicitation and which is in the best interest of College Park. 
Further, if at any time it is found that the integrity of the process has been 
compromised or that errors have occurred, the solicitation may be canceled. 

2. Rejection of Bids/Proposal: College Park reserves the right to reject any 
and all bids/proposals submitted in response to any solicitation document, to 
reject any portion thereof, or to waive any irregularity or administrative 
requirement. 

3. Examine Records: College Park shall have the right to examine, inspect 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 171



[0037-1291/307364/1] 22 
 

and audit the records of bidder/proposer as they pertain to their contract with 
College Park for a period of three (3) years after the termination of their 
contract with College Park. 

4. Right to Inspect Plant: By submitting a bid or proposal to College Park, the 
bidder/offeror agrees to permit College Park, the right of inspection at the 
bidder's/offeror’s plant/warehouse. Upon request, the bidder/offeror shall 
provide all reasonable facilities and assistance for the safety and convenience of 
College Park's appointed representative in the performance of such inspection. 

5. Compliance with Federal Requirements: Where the procurement involves the 
expenditure of federal funds, College Park bidders and proposers shall comply 
with federal law and authorized regulations which apply to the procurement as 
required within any/all grants. 

6. Confidentiality: Unless otherwise required by law, all information and 
documentation relative to development of a contractual document for a 
proposed procurement shall be deemed confidential in nature. Such material 
shall remain confidential until successful completion or cancellation of the 
applicable procurement process. All proposals or bids received shall be 
deemed confidential in nature until successful completion or cancellation of 
the applicable procurement process. After a notice of award is posted, all 
material in the file, except information exempted by state or federal law from 
disclosure, shall be open to interested persons during normal office hours 
and may be hand copied or copies shall be furnished in accordance with the 
Georgia Open Records Act or the Federal Freedom of Information Act as 
applicable. 

 
12-16: OFFEROR RESPONSIBILITY, SUSPENSION or DEBARMENT: 

 
Purchases shall be made from and contracts shall be awarded to responsible offerors. 

 
1. Responsibility Generally Presumed: College Park may base its belief that an 

offeror is responsible on responses provided on the offeror’s "Statement of 
Responsibility Certification Form" (where such a form is used) and/or based on 
an offeror's responses to the requirements of the solicitation document. In order 
for an offeror to be deemed no responsible, the contracting officer must make 
an affirmative determination of no responsibility. 

2. Investigations: College Park shall have the right, but not the obligation, to conduct 
investigations and other forms of due diligence into any offeror's (or potential 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 172



[0037-1291/307364/1] 23 
 

offeror's) responsibility status at any time and for any reason. 
3. Factors Affecting Responsibility: Areas affecting an offeror's responsibility may 

include, but are not limited to one or more of the following criteria: 
a. Whether offeror has adequate financial resources to perform the contract, or 

the ability to obtain them. This includes, but not limited to, the ability to 
obtain required bonds (if any) and insurance from sureties and insurance 
companies authorized to do business in Georgia. 

b. Whether offeror is able to comply with the contract requirements, 
considering the firm's other business obligations. 

c. Whether offeror is registered to do business in the State of Georgia and is 
listed as "Active/Compliance" with the Office of the Georgia Secretary of 
State. 

d. Whether offeror is not presently debarred or suspended from bidding by any 
Federal or State governmental entity. 

e. Whether offeror has, within a three year period preceding the applicable 
solicitation document, been convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered 
against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection 
with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of 
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, 
forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making false 
statements, or receiving stolen property. 

f. Whether offeror is presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or 
civilly charged by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with 
commission of any of the offenses enumerated above. 

g. Whether offeror has had a contract terminated for default in the last 3 years. 
h. Whether offeror is currently under investigation for any possible breach of 

contract, or fraud or allegations of criminal activity related to the types of 
goods and/or services requested within the solicitation document. And if yes, 
the circumstances, nature and magnitude of such investigation shall be 
considered in any possible no responsibility determinat ion. 

i. Whether offeror has a satisfactory performance record. 
j. Whether offeror has a satisfactory record on integrity and business ethics. 
k. Whether offeror has satisfactory organization, experience, accounting and 

operational controls and managerial and technical skills. 
4. Failure to provide Information: Offeror's failure to provide information 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 173



[0037-1291/307364/1] 24 
 

specifically requested by the contracting officer may be grounds for a 
determination of no responsibility. 

5. False certification or Information: False certification or information may be 
grounds for a non-responsibility determination and/or debarment. 

6. Determination of Non-Responsibility Required: If an offer or who otherwise would 
have been awarded a contract is found non-responsible, a determination of non-
responsibility setting forth the reason for the finding of non-responsibility shall be 
prepared by the contracting officer. Notice to the non-responsible offer or shall be 
mailed no later than two (2) business days after the determination of non-
responsibility is made and must inform the offer or of the right to protest the 
determination. Any dispute of a non- responsibility determination must be made via 
a protest filed in strict accordance with the College Park's Protest Policy. 

 
12-17: PROTEST: 
 
An Interested Party desiring to protest, challenge or otherwise pursue a claim against any 
aspect of College Park procurement must comply with College Park's Protest Policy. 

 
12-18: CAUSES for DEBARMENT or SUSPENSION: 
 
College Park may debar a vendor/contractor for any of the causes listed as follows: 

1. Violation of contract provisions of a character which is regarded to be so serious as 
to justify debarment action. 

2. In College Park's opinion, the vendor's/contractor action amount to: 

a. A deliberate failure without good cause to perform in accordance with the 
specifications or within the time limit provided in the contract. 

b. A recent record of failure to perform or of unsatisfactory 
performance in accordance with the terms of one or more contracts. 

3. Conviction under state or federal status of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, 
falsification or destruction of records, receiving stolen property, or other offense 
indicating a lack of business integrity or business honesty which currently, 
seriously and directly affects responsibility as a state vendor. 

4. Conviction under state or federal antitrust statutes arising out of the submission of 
bids or proposal. 

5. Conviction of commission of a criminal offense as an incident to obtaining or 
attempting to obtain a public or private contract, or subcontract, or in the 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 174



[0037-1291/307364/1] 25 
 

performance in the contract or subcontract. 
6. Any other cause as serious and compelling as to affect responsibility as a city 

vendor, including debarment by another government entity. 
7. Any violations of the provisions which govern Conflict of Interest. 

 
 
 
ADOPTED BY CITY COUNCIL:
 _____
____________________ 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:
 _____
________________________________ 
 
 

10.A.d

Packet Pg. 175



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8427  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:28 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

FROM: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

RE:  Considerations Regarding Term Limits 

 

 

Purpose:  Considerations regarding term limits. 

 

Based on dialogue during the October 19, 2020 Regular Session meeting regarding term limits 

for elected officials, this matter has been added to the agenda. 

 

Thank you. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 City Charter Term Limits and Procedures to Amend (memo) (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/27/2020 5:18 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/27/2020 5:22 PM 

 City Attorney's Office Completed 10/28/2020 11:33 AM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 1:38 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

10.B

Packet Pg. 176



 
 

 

PARTNERS 
WINSTON A. DENMARK  
STEVEN M. FINCHER  
EMILIA C. WALKER 
 

 ASSOCIATES 
 VALORRI C. JONES 
 LEONID M. FELGIN 

 DANIELLE M. MATRICARDI 
 MICHAEL J. HUENING                                                               

 ZALAK N. RAVAL 
                                                                 ALIAYAH J. BAAITH 

MAX CHANG 
  

WRITER’S LINE 
770.692.2039 
dmatricardi@fincherdenmark.com 

 
 

M E M O R A N D U M 
 
TO:   Mayor and Council of the City of College Park 
FROM:  Fincher Denmark LLC 
BY:  Danielle Matricardi 
DATE:  October 27, 2020 
SUBJECT: Amendments to the Term Limits of Elected City Officials 
 

I. INTRODUCTION 
 

This memorandum discusses the current term limits for City officials as provided in the City’s 
Charter and outlines the procedures to amend said term limits, should the City decide to do so.  

 
II. CITY CHARTER 

 
Section 5-8 (Same—Election by ward; terms of office) of the City’s Charter governs the 

term limits for the mayor and city council members. It states as follows: 
 
Effective January 1, 1992, the four (4) councilmembers of said city shall consist of one 
councilmember each from the first, second, third, and fourth wards of said city. 
Councilmembers elected for a four-year term in the general city election held in October, 
1989, for then existing wards two and five shall continue to hold office through December 
31, 1993, and shall be designated as the successor councilmembers from wards two and 
four, respectively. Thereafter, the terms of office for councilmembers from wards two 
and four shall be four years. In the general election held in November, 1991, there shall 
be elected a mayor and two councilmembers designated to represent wards one and three, 
respectively. The mayor and each of the two councilmembers from wards one and 
three shall be elected for a term of four years, and thereafter their term of office shall 
be four years.  
 

The General Assembly has made several amendments to this section over the years. However, the 
terms for elected officials were last amended in 1966, which increased the terms from two (2) 
years to four (4) years (Ga. L. 1966, p. 2757, § 2).  

100 Hartsfield Centre Pkwy,  
Ste. 400, Atlanta, GA 30354 

T. 770.478.9950 |F. 770.478.9950 
www.fincherdenmark.com 

 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 177

mailto:dmatricardi@fincherdenmark.com


III. CHARTER AMENDMENTS 
 

City charters can only be changed through (1) a Local Act or (2) a “Home Rule” charter 
amendment. A local act is a law passed by the Georgia General Assembly that only affects one or 
more specific local governments. Local acts may affect the city’s composition, form of 
government, or procedures for electing its governing authority. A Home Rule charter amendment 
does not need the approval of the general assembly so long as the amendments are not inconsistent 
with state and federal laws. O.C.G.A. § 36-35-3.  
 

The General Assembly specifically prohibits cities from adopting home rule amendments 
that: (1) affect the composition and form of the municipal governing authority; (2) affect the 
procedure for election and appointment of elected officials and the continuance in office and 
limitation thereon for such officials; (3) actions defining any criminal offense that is defined by 
state law; (4) actions adopting any form of taxation beyond what is authorized by state law; (5) 
actions affecting the exercise of the power of eminent domain; (6) actions expanding the power of 
regulation over any business activity regulated by the Public Service Commission beyond what is 
authorized by state law; (7) actions affecting the jurisdiction of any court; and (8) actions changing 
charter provisions relating to the establishment and operations of an independent school system. 
O.C.G.A. § 36-35-6(a).  
 

IV. CONCLUSION 
 

Should the City desire to change the current four (4) year term limits for its elected officials, 
the General Assembly would need to pass a local act amending the term limits included in Charter 
Section 5-8. A local act is required, because the City is prohibited under O.C.G.A. § 36-35-6(a)(1) 
from passing a home rule ordinance that affects the continuance in office and limitation thereon 
for members of the governing authority.   

 
 

  
 
 
 

10.B.a

Packet Pg. 178



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8428  

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:08 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 28, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update 

 

 

REASON:  To provide Mayor and Council with the names, addresses, and outstanding balances 

of the top ten delinquent property tax payers as well as a brief update on collection efforts. 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To proceed with established policies and procedures to ensure 

collection of these accounts.  To escalate the collection process as appropriate to minimize the 

loss of revenue.  

 

BACKGROUND:  The City of College Park contracts with GTS (Government Tax Services) to 

facilitate the collection of delinquent accounts to the extent necessary.  Past collection efforts 

have included GTS providing assistance with filing liens and assisting with tax sales.     

 

COST TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  None.  

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  Varies with each situation.  

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING:  November 2, 2020 

 

OR RESOLUTION:  N/A 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS:  Aggressive collection efforts to full 

extent of the law. 

 

STAFF:  Philip Latona, Property Tax Accountant 

 

 

12.A

Packet Pg. 179



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8428)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/28/2020 2:08 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020 (PDF) 

 Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020 - 2018 (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 10/28/2020 1:19 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/28/2020 2:08 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/28/2020 3:15 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

12.A

Packet Pg. 180



 

Lien Taxpayer Name Property Address Business Name If Known Amount District  - Tax Type Additional Comments Tax Years

Filed
ATA Investments 
Various Investors 5271 W Fayetteville Rd  $       10,947.64 Clayton - Real 

10/7/20   - Email correspondence with principal investors - Working 
with local representative of ownership group to facilitate 
payments,and informing of delinquency fees as they approach.  
Latest spreadsheet of outstanding balances by owner and unit 
number was sent.  Working on final transfer.  2019

Filed Aveum Investments 2227 & 2245 Godby Rd  $         5,250.45 Fulton - Real 
9/10/20 Spoke with bankruptcy trustee - Filed claim with 
Northern District of Georgia US Bankruptcy Court   2019

Filed Simply Books Hartsfield Atrium The Hudson Group  $         2,660.51 Clayton - Personal
10/23/20 Correspondence from contact at Hudson Group - 
invoice was submitted for payment 2019

Filed Dover Cylinder Head 2539 Sullivan Rd  $         2,141.71 Fulton - Personal

9/9/20 Possible Business Closure.  Located a non-business 
mailing address  of principal owner out of state- mailing 
statement 2019

Filed Uncle Maddio's Pizza Hartsfield Conc T DNCTHS Atlanta Partners JV  $         1,672.59 Clayton - Personal 10/8/20 Emailed contact found on Bus License module 2019

Hohwald Warren A 2152 W Lyle Rd  $         1,470.37 Fulton - Real
Due 10/17/20 - Spoke with owner, referred to County Tax 
Assessor's Office - Removal of Homestead Exemption 2017-2019

Filed DJ Paradise Chicken 4601 Welcome All Rd  $         1,335.06 Fulton - Personal
Researching business - Real Estate falls under City of South 
Fulton 2019

Filed Advantage OPCO LLC 2200 Rental Car Center  $         1,094.03 Fulton - Personal
Chp 11 filing 5/29/20 - under Advanatage Holdco ET AL- 
claim info provided Legal counsel 2019

Filed Smith Lauren Medlock 3307 Myrtle St  $         1,000.00 Fulton - Real
NSF payment - Been in contact with owner - working 
withing with Envision to collect 2019

Filed Tabb Andrew 5165 Hanover St  $            654.83 Clayton - Real 10/8/20 Found new mailing address - resent statement 2019

 $       28,227.19 

Y Represents Lien filed against account. 
NA Signifies account has not met statutory requirement for lien to be filed

Inactive Acount - off active list - candidates to write-off
Level Concrete Co. 2560 West Point Avenue Proximity of Metro Mustang  $       24,622.34 Fulton - Personal Property Corporation dissolved 5/16/2008 2000-2003
Western Pacific Airline 39,223.87 13K Base Ad Valorem Chapter 11 - February 1998
Vanguard Airlines Airline 9,235.65 Public Utility Digest - ClaytonCeased Operations July 29, 2002
PSINet Inc 11,813.34         Fulton - Personal Property
Larry Jones 0 Camp Creek Pkwy 10,381.34         Fulton - Real way 1992-2014
F H Kilgore 0 Camp Creek Pkwy             5,944.45 Fulton - Real Parcel Mapping discrepancy 1992-2014

City of College Park
Department of Finance & Accounting 

Top Ten Delinquent Property Tax Accounts
As of October 26,  2020

12.A.a

Packet Pg. 181



 

Lien Taxpayer Name Property Address Business Name If Known Amount District  - Tax Type Additional Comments Tax Years

Y Zenga Store Hartsfield/Concourse A  $         1,292.61 Clayton - Personal
10/23/20 Correspondence from contact at Hudson Group - 
invoice was submitted for payment 2018

Y
Smart Moves Investments 
LLC 2879 Windsor Forrest Ct  $         1,351.10 Fulton - Real 

Identified Owner - he is a  First Transferee Foreclosure -
ownership confirmed /working account.  10/23/20  Working 
with Tax Sale consultants found owners address 2018-2019

City of College Park
Department of Finance & Accounting 

Top Ten Delinquent Property Tax Accounts
As of October 26,  2020

12.A.b

Packet Pg. 182



   CITY OF COLLEGE PARK 
 

 P.O. BOX 87137 ∙ COLLEGE PARK, GA 30337 ∙ 404.767.1537 
 
 
 

  

 REG SESSION AGENDA REQUEST DOC ID: 8429  

Updated: 10/29/2020 2:20 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 1 

 

 

DATE: October 29, 2020 

 

TO:  The Honorable Mayor and Members of City Council 

 

THROUGH: Terrence R. Moore, City Manager 

 

FROM: Althea Philord-Bradley, Director of Finance & Accounting 

 

RE:  Top 10 Delinquent Customers 

 

 

PURPOSE:  To update Mayor/Council regarding Top 10 delinquent customers, commercial and 

residential.  

 

REASON:  To keep updated on Top 10 commercial and residential accounts to ensure the 

accounts balances are current.  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  To deliver information to Mayor/Council by Customer Service team. 

 

BACKGROUND:  Each council meeting we deliver data that indicates who the Top 10 

customers are based on balances owed, length of time unpaid. 

 

COST TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

BUDGETED ITEM:  N/A. 

 

REVENUE TO CITY:  N/A. 

 

CITY COUNCIL HEARING DATE: November 2, 2020. 

 

CONSIDERATION BY OTHER GOVERNMENT ENTITIES:  N/A. 

 

AFFECTED AGENCIES:  N/A. 

 

RELATIONSHIP TO EXISTING ORDINANCE OR RESOLUTION:  N/A. 

 

REQUIRED CHANGES TO WORK PROGRAMS: N/A. 

 

STAFF: Customer Service Manager  

12.B

Packet Pg. 183



Reg Session Agenda Request (ID # 8429)  Meeting of November 2, 2020 

Updated: 10/29/2020 2:20 PM by Rosyline Robinson  Page 2 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 Top Ten Report 102720 - Redacted (PDF) 

 October 2020 Cut-on report 102720 - Redacted (PDF) 

 RF Aging 102620 Redacted (PDF) 

 CF Aging 102620 Redacted (PDF) 

 RC Aging 102620 Redacted (PDF) 

 CC  Aging 102720 Redacted (PDF) 

 

Review: 

 Althea Philord-Bradley Completed 10/28/2020 5:28 PM 

 Rosyline Robinson Completed 10/29/2020 2:26 PM 

 Terrence R. Moore Completed 10/29/2020 2:48 PM 

 Mayor & City Council Pending 11/02/2020 7:30 PM 

12.B

Packet Pg. 184



City of College Park

TOP TEN  UTILITY CUSTOMER OUTSTANDING  BALANCES

10/27/2020

Prepared By Kymberli Johnson 

Business

Prior 

Adjustments

Payment 

Plan Liens BUSINESS  NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $18,110.03 $712.58 $1,431.35 $20,253.96 Yes 90days Account Active 

n/a No No $10,564.11 $379.76 $408.60 $11,352.47 Yes 60days Account Disconnected

n/a No No $4,624.23 $290.87 $84.90 $7,651.97 Yes 60days Account Active 

o 

Apartments

Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens APARTMENT NAME ADDRESS Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

n/a No No $0.00 $606.49 $4,972.27 $5,578.76 Yes 45 days Water Account Active 

n/a No No $76.00 $500.72 $4,573.88 $5,150.60 Yes 45 days Water Account Active 

n/a No No $0.00 $56.66 $4,730.47 $4,786.99 Yes 45days Water Account Active 

n/a No No $0.00 $1,673.61 $2,331.86 $4,005.47 Yes 45 days Water Account Active 

Residential
Prior 

Adjustment

Payment 

Plan Liens CUSTOMER NAME Account # Power

Water & 

Sewer

Storm Water & 

Sanitation Total Unpaid

CUT OFF 

LETTER 

AGE OF 

DEBT Notes or Status

No No No $331.07 $3,995.32 $246.26 $4,572.65 Yes 180 days
Account Active Customer is a 
Senior

No No No $1,818.55 $940.93 $272.99 $3,032.47 Yes 90
Account Active Customer has a 
medical letter on file 

No No No $1,386.71 $1,209.73 $249.87 $2,846.31 Yes 90 days Account Active 

TOTALS $36,910.70 $10,366.67 $19,302.45 $66,579.82
NULL Signifies that Lien has not been  filed due to legal statue (not property owner)

* Represents Lien filed against account

N/A Signifies account Lien has not been  filed

yes Signifies account received prior billing adjustment

N/A Signifies account that has not received prior billing adjustment

12.B.a

Packet Pg. 185



October 2020 Reconnects

Customer's 

Account #

Occupant 

code Customer's Name

Date Work-

orders were 

created 

Balance Due @ 

Cut-Off  

Amount paid @ 

Cut-on  

Prepared by 

K.Johnson Grand Totals 53,690.23$       38,852.34$     

10/27/2020 5,398.07$                  5,398.07$                

10/27/2020 1,695.60$                  2,000.00$                

10/27/2020 3,102.30$                  3,102.30$                

10/26/2020 2,463.65$                  1,000.00$                

10/26/2020 2,015.37$                  1,000.00$                

10/26/2020 460.87$                     460.87$                   

10/26/2020 3,341.20$                  3,341.20$                

10/23/2020 2,558.49$                  1,520.00$                

10/20/2020 1,931.67$                  702.00$                   

10/20/2020 2,632.09$                  1,000.00$                

10/20/2020 3,286.16$                  1,500.00$                

10/20/2020 1,782.54$                  1,394.76$                

10/20/2020 7,724.90$                  4,766.65$                

10/15/2020 584.25$                     584.25$                   

10/15/2020 767.40$                     195.00$                   

10/14/2020 715.60$                     715.60$                   

10/12/2020 521.76$                     521.76$                   

10/9/2020 544.36$                     544.36$                   

10/9/2020 1,829.66$                  1,364.00$                

10/7/2020 1,046.09$                  435.00$                   

10/5/2020 1,436.61$                  1,111.58$                

10/2/2020 1,990.91$                  2,000.00$                

10/2/2020 946.46$                     -$                          

10/2/2020 672.75$                     672.75$                   

10/2/2020 613.81$                     613.81$                   

10/2/2020 1,016.90$                  500.00$                   

10/2/2020 646.67$                     590.00$                   

10/2/2020 754.40$                     754.40$                   

10/1/2020 705.71$                     560.00$                   

10/1/2020 503.98$                     503.98$                   

Grand Totals: 53,690.23$                38,852.34$              

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 186



12.B.b

Packet Pg. 187



September/October 2020 Reconnects

Customer's 

Account #

Occupant 

code Customer's Name

Date Work-

orders were 

created 

Balance Due @ 

Cut-Off  

Amount paid @ 

Cut-on  

Prepared by 

K.Johnson Grand Totals 15,297.32$       11,666.49$     

Page 2 Grand Totals: -$                           -$                         

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 188



page*1

Remaining  Balance  

14,837.89$       

-$                            

(304.40)$                     

-$                            

1,463.65$                   

1,015.37$                   

-$                            

-$                            

1,038.49$                   

1,229.67$                   

1,632.09$                   

1,786.16$                   

387.78$                      

2,958.25$                   

-$                            

572.40$                      

-$                            

-$                            

-$                            

465.66$                      

611.09$                      

325.03$                      

(9.09)$                         

946.46$                      

-$                            

-$                            

516.90$                      

56.67$                        

-$                            

145.71$                      

-$                            

14,837.89$                

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 189



12.B.b

Packet Pg. 190



page*2

Remaining  Balance  

3,630.83$          

-$                            

12.B.b

Packet Pg. 191



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 10/26/2020 09:00:13 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 1 
 
                                            225.81 195.78 21.63 1698.24 2141.46 02/04/2019 47.81 
  267.92 176.96 158.38 508.41 1111.67 02/29/2020 315.00 T 
  421.01 309.89 192.83 307.56 1231.29 07/10/2020 280.00 T 
 578.26 499.36 340.93 155.76 1574.31 09/28/2020 500.00 T 
  583.46 431.44 432.48 0.00 1447.38 08/26/2020 300.00 O 
 204.80 323.75 364.47 459.15 1352.17 
 915.15 668.56 390.66 0.00 1974.37 08/10/2020 941.89 
  344.12 239.52 149.86 510.19 1243.69 08/10/2020 400.00 T 
 580.19 327.15 266.52 399.16 1573.02 08/21/2020 149.58 T 
  426.71 246.69 245.37 324.47 1243.24 08/12/2020 569.84 T 
  534.39 337.15 237.77 123.99 1233.30 07/29/2020 100.00 O 
                                        674.40 514.85 327.33 0.00 1516.58 06/29/2020 124.44 O 
 618.89 438.62 341.25 234.14 1632.90 10/01/2020 575.39 
  3757.42 1537.43 1347.51 12.35 6654.71 09/30/2020 500.00 T 
  738.66 449.33 209.86 0.00 1397.85 10/20/2020 25.07 T 
  1497.30 927.11 726.67 248.70 3399.78 08/19/2020 1800.00 
 1536.18 934.01 586.14 0.00 3056.33 09/09/2020 T 
 508.68 416.16 307.06 322.88 1554.78 07/17/2020 265.00 O 
  500.41 333.59 264.37 85.21 1183.58 09/04/2020 500.00 
  444.16 324.35 210.27 444.66 1423.44 05/05/2020 
 406.44 373.06 264.51 1656.40 2700.41 08/10/2020 100.00 T 
  843.46 535.77 355.08 435.67 2169.98 08/28/2020 395.50 T 
                                              392.25 285.71 229.85 702.54 1610.35 10/01/2020 500.00 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

23 Subtotals for Cycle 001 17000.07 10826.24 7970.80 8629.48 44426.59 
 
 

Cycle: 8 
 
 417.79 1181.02 204.84 0.00 1803.65 08/10/2020 530.64 O 
  384.94 542.15 325.55 234.31 1486.95 09/29/2020 500.00 
  525.40 545.31 439.04 195.96 1705.71 10/13/2020 70.00 T 
                                           632.10 566.39 249.32 560.74 2008.55 09/08/2020 400.00 O 
                                                          550.57 633.47 321.53 404.83 1910.40 09/30/2020 300.00 T 
 163.29 297.39 238.23 978.67 1677.58 07/19/2020 65.00 T 
                                                          257.49 395.01 260.08 543.94 1456.52 08/10/2020 700.00 T 
 543.46 321.04 181.39 0.00 1045.89 09/30/2020 482.00 T 
  87.99 329.45 700.13 0.00 1117.57 09/29/2020 464.00 T 
 388.56 423.08 277.82 606.14 1695.60 09/30/2020 200.00 T 
 203.64 359.30 275.16 310.65 1148.75 09/29/2020 100.00 
  393.31 481.64 164.84 0.00 1039.79 10/05/2020 323.24 O 
                                           339.65 560.21 173.90 0.00 1073.76 09/30/2020 733.90 
  150.79 111.19 69.64 875.04 1206.66 10/09/2020 200.00 T 
 153.21 275.30 149.67 456.79 1034.97 04/16/2020 109.70 T 
  610.93 570.57 0.00 0.00 1181.50 09/29/2020 92.00 T 
  364.46 485.80 197.67 0.00 1047.93 09/23/2020 150.00 T 
  249.15 346.15 280.82 277.48 1153.60 08/11/2020 300.00 T 
  214.75 325.33 218.11 245.98 1004.17 T 
  286.16 400.73 258.65 471.04 1416.58 06/15/2020 200.00 T 
                                                          250.65 289.81 241.54 1095.29 1877.29 10/01/2020 175.00 
  282.23 479.32 312.67 287.89 1362.11 06/22/2020 56.09 T 
 

12.B.c

Packet Pg. 192



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 10/26/2020 09:00:40 Page: 2 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
====================================================================================================================================  
  191.01 305.27 112.13 486.53 1094.94 02/21/2020 131.19 T 
 373.30 359.03 259.75 523.21 1515.29 08/14/2020 300.00 T 
  184.29 302.38 159.34 412.07 1058.08 06/29/2020 100.00 T 
  104.73 136.66 124.97 926.45 1292.81 09/10/2020 100.00 T 
 224.58 351.61 225.08 210.12 1011.39 09/29/2020 25.00 T 
  143.21 110.13 108.66 659.65 1021.65 10/05/2020 75.00 T 
 241.94 322.08 218.74 234.39 1017.15 07/05/2020 261.00 T 
  284.86 346.76 280.99 178.82 1091.43 10/19/2020 200.00 O 
    240.39 410.59 289.91 395.32 1336.21 06/05/2020 188.29 O 
                     41.08 70.98 114.80 1250.78 1477.64 02/06/2020 608.92 
  296.22 441.86 249.29 340.93 1328.30 09/29/2020 441.86 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

33 Subtotals for Cycle 008 9776.13 13077.01 7684.26 13163.02 43700.42 
 
 
Cycle: 15 
  21.56 129.59 48.01 1020.47 1219.63 01/10/2020 200.00 T 
                                                          308.64 257.38 155.86 625.98 1347.86 08/11/2020 178.76 T 
 291.93 229.00 148.74 494.93 1164.60 08/13/2020 200.00 T 
 387.74 314.04 404.21 909.38 2015.37 09/28/2020 250.00 T 
 253.41 336.48 159.50 358.50 1107.89 T 
 222.59 217.21 182.78 584.01 1206.59 08/31/2020 37.00 T 
  280.47 258.69 139.37 509.89 1188.42 08/13/2020 500.00 T 
  353.35 342.63 247.08 254.84 1197.90 06/08/2020 422.49 T 
  361.38 407.04 252.00 214.92 1235.34 06/23/2020 294.41 T 
  21.56 76.36 61.04 849.99 1008.95 01/27/2020 100.00 T 
  21.56 334.22 225.55 673.23 1254.56 02/14/2020 368.11 T 
 274.73 590.34 379.03 1551.48 2795.58 02/04/2020 238.00 T 
 203.56 468.99 258.65 1081.58 2012.78 01/07/2020 115.00 T 
  21.92 155.14 111.35 795.08 1083.49 T 
 6775.67 1014.21 0.00 0.00 7789.88 10/01/2020 4683.39 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

15 Subtotals for Cycle 015 9800.07 5131.32 2773.17 9924.28 27628.84 

========================================================== 
71 Grand Totals 36576.27 18428.23 115755.85 

29034.57 31716.78 
 
 
 
 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 

                                                 Minimum Balance: 1000.00 
                                                 A/R Block 1:30 
                                                 A/R Block 2:60 
                                                 A/R Block 3:90 

 

Filter: 

(category = ’RF’ AND end_date IS NULL)  

============= 

12.B.c

Packet Pg. 193



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 10/26/2020 08:57:15 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 1 
 
  3534.19 2217.00 648.39 0.00 6399.58 10/20/2020 3151.97 
 37892.61 22515.87 17689.19 0.00 78097.67 09/09/2020 20102.52 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

2 Subtotals for Cycle 001 41426.80 24732.87 18337.58 0.00 84497.25 
 
 
Cycle: 8 
 
 3925.21 4952.98 2474.28 0.00 11352.47 10/19/2020 3425.21 
 389.11 439.74 350.49 0.00 1179.34 08/05/2020 937.91 O 
                                        1138.07 1285.31 40.27 0.00 2463.65 09/25/2020 1000.00 T 
 677.19 780.92 19.10 0.00 1477.21 08/31/2020 250.00 T 
 1246.65 1194.04 831.79 1221.24 4493.72 05/20/2020 2270.69 
 292.28 265.70 61.63 1917.51 2537.12 12/13/2019 109.00 T 
 67.14 79.87 84.89 1053.94 1285.84 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

7 Subtotals for Cycle 008 7735.65 8998.56 3862.45 4192.69 24789.35 

Cycle: 15 

 447.12 311.59 223.56 433.20 1415.47 06/03/2020 204.10 
 0.00 752.46 417.00 97.21 1266.67 10/01/2020 2423.42 O 
 163.38 1119.55 514.21 0.00 1797.14 10/01/2020 5747.41 O 
  43.45 155.83 77.40 967.92 1244.60 01/24/2020 251.64 T 
 1369.50 1008.18 0.00 0.00 2377.68 10/07/2020 791.82 T 
  1199.36 716.66 641.56 424.38 2981.96 09/28/2020 520.00 T 
 722.11 393.62 152.96 645.96 1914.65 10/20/2020 T 
 

------------------------------------------------------- 

7 Subtotals for Cycle 015 3944.92 4457.89 2026.69 2568.67 12998.17 

Cycle: 21 

 68.00 34.00 34.00 1156.10 1292.10 10/13/2020 50.00 O 

------------------------------------------------------- 

1 Subtotals for Cycle 021 68.00 34.00 34.00 1156.10 1292.10 

========================================================== 
17 Grand Totals 53175.37 24260.72 123576.87 

38223.32 7917.46 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
                                                  
                                               Minimum Balance:1000.00 
                                               A/R Block 1:30 
                                                A/R Block 2:60 
                                               A/R Block 3:90 

Filter 

(category = ’CF’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

 

12.B.d

Packet Pg. 194



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 10/26/2020 09:19:47 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 

Cycle: 15 

 899.35 517.14 357.20 642.80 2416.49 08/27/2020 303.53 T 
 21.60 308.25 192.57 662.93 1185.35 04/17/2020 225.09 T 
 917.14 565.85 421.91 1534.19 3439.09 08/28/2020 496.00 T 
 

------------------------------------------------------- 

3 Subtotals for Cycle 015 1838.09 1391.24 971.68 2839.92 7040.93 

 
========================================================== 

3 Grand Totals 1838.09 971.68 7040.93 
1391.24 2839.92 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
 
                                                 Minimum Balance: 1000.00 
                                                 A/R Block 1:30 
                                                 A/R Block 2:60 
                                                 A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’RC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

12.B.e

Packet Pg. 195



City of College Park A / R A G I N G 10/27/2020 23:44:56 Page: 1 

--- Last Payment --- 
Cyc Rte Account Name Home Phone 0 to 30 31 to 60 61 to 90 Over 91 Total Date Amount 
==================================================================================================================================== 
Cycle: 15 
 
 8925.10 429.51 0.00 0.00 9354.61 10/14/2020 4274.69 O 
  1133.60 653.10 0.00 0.00 1786.70 09/14/2020 156.13 T 
 77.82 148.79 66.96 712.60 1006.17 12/16/2019 291.49 T 

------------------------------------------------------- 

3 Subtotals for Cycle 015 10136.52 1231.40 66.96 712.60 12147.48 
 

========================================================== 

 
3 Grand Totals 10136.52 66.96 12147.48 

1231.40 712.60 

 

 

SELECTION CRITERIA 
                                         
 
                                                 Minimum Balance: 1000.00 
                                                 A/R Block 1:30 
                                                 A/R Block 2:60 
                                                 A/R Block 3:90 

Filter: 

(category = ’CC’ AND end_date IS NULL) 

================= 

12.B.f

Packet Pg. 196


	Full Agenda
	1. Opening Ceremonies
	A. Pledge Of Allegiance
	B. Invocation

	2. Additions, Deletions, Amendments, or Changes to the Agenda
	3. Presentation of Minutes of City Council
	A. 8405 : Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	Printout: 8405 : Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	a. RS101920

	B. 8404 : Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	Printout: 8404 : Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	a. WSS101920


	4. Proclamations, Resolutions, Plaques, and Announcements
	A. 8416 : Presentation of Proclamation - Pastor Marjorie Dent
	Printout: 8416 : Presentation of Proclamation - Pastor Marjorie Dent
	a. Marjorie Dent Proclamation

	B. 8417 : Proclamation for Outstanding Achievement for Jerisha Bronson
	Printout: 8417 : Proclamation for Outstanding Achievement for Jerisha Bronson
	a. Jerisha Bronson Proclamation
	b. Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America
	c. Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America picture 2

	C. 8434 : Clayton County Community Engagement Initiative Update
	Printout: 8434 : Clayton County Community Engagement Initiative Update
	a. Engage Clayton_  College Park City Council Meeting November 2nd


	5. Remarks of Citizens
	6. Other Business
	A. 8415 : AMI Update
	Printout: 8415 : AMI Update
	a. AMI Project Update Nov 2020

	B. 8406 : Ordinances and Resolutions Update
	Printout: 8406 : Ordinances and Resolutions Update
	a. 2020 ORDINANCES
	b. 2020 Resolutions


	7. Public Hearings
	A. 8380 : Request to Set a Public Hearing for Consideration of a Rezoning at 2154 Rugby Ave
	Printout: 8380 : Request to Set a Public Hearing for Consideration of a Rezoning at 2154 Rugby Ave
	a. 2154RugbyAve_Application


	8. Bids, Change Order Requests and Contracts
	A. 8414 : FAA Building Lighting Controls Replacement Project
	Printout: 8414 : FAA Building Lighting Controls Replacement Project
	a. FAA Bldg Lighting Controls Back-Up Documentation

	B. 8419 : Approval for Agreement with ARC to Update the Comprehensive Plan
	Printout: 8419 : Approval for Agreement with ARC to Update the Comprehensive Plan
	a. 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA - City of College Park 10.27.20
	b. 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA Attachment A - Scope of Work

	C. 8421 : Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan
	Printout: 8421 : Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan
	a. Administrative Edits to SFCTP Project List_October 27 2020
	b. College Park Project Maps & Lists_October 2020

	D. 8432 : Email License Payment for End Users
	Printout: 8432 : Email License Payment for End Users
	a. City of College Park Option 1 -0365
	b. Microsoft Renewal


	9. Unfinished (Old) Business
	10. New Business
	A. 8426 : Policy Guidance Regarding Contracts for Special Events
	Printout: 8426 : Policy Guidance Regarding Contracts for Special Events
	a. City of College Park Contracting Polices_FD Document
	b. CP Contracting Authority Ordinance
	c. Exhibit A- College Park Purchasing Policy 2020 (clean)
	d. College Park Purchasing Policy (redline)

	B. 8427 : Considerations Regarding Term Limits
	Printout: 8427 : Considerations Regarding Term Limits
	a. City Charter Term Limits and Procedures to Amend (memo)


	11. City Attorney's Report
	12. City Manager's Report
	A. 8428 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	Printout: 8428 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	a. Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020
	b. Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020 - 2018

	B. 8429 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	Printout: 8429 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	a. Top Ten Report 102720 - Redacted
	b. October 2020 Cut-on report 102720 - Redacted
	c. RF Aging 102620 Redacted
	d. CF Aging 102620 Redacted
	e. RC Aging 102620 Redacted
	f. CC  Aging 102720 Redacted


	13. Report of Mayor and Council
	14. Executive Session
	15. Approval of Executive Session Minutes
	16. Adjournment

	Appendix
	3.A · 8405 : Regular Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	3.A.a · RS101920

	3.B · 8404 : Workshop Session Minutes dated October 19, 2020
	3.B.a · WSS101920

	4.A · 8416 : Presentation of Proclamation - Pastor Marjorie Dent
	4.A.a · Marjorie Dent Proclamation

	4.B · 8417 : Proclamation for Outstanding Achievement for Jerisha Bronson
	4.B.a · Jerisha Bronson Proclamation
	4.B.b · Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America
	4.B.c · Jerisha Bronson Miss Georgia for America picture 2

	4.C · 8434 : Clayton County Community Engagement Initiative Update
	4.C.a · Engage Clayton_  College Park City Council Meeting November 2nd

	6.A · 8415 : AMI Update
	6.A.a · AMI Project Update Nov 2020

	6.B · 8406 : Ordinances and Resolutions Update
	6.B.a · 2020 ORDINANCES
	6.B.b · 2020 Resolutions

	7.A · 8380 : Request to Set a Public Hearing for Consideration of a Rezoning at 2154 Rugby Ave
	7.A.a · 2154RugbyAve_Application

	8.A · 8414 : FAA Building Lighting Controls Replacement Project
	8.A.a · FAA Bldg Lighting Controls Back-Up Documentation

	8.B · 8419 : Approval for Agreement with ARC to Update the Comprehensive Plan
	8.B.a · 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA - City of College Park 10.27.20
	8.B.b · 2021 Comprehensive Plan MOA Attachment A - Scope of Work

	8.C · 8421 : Southern Fulton County Comprehensive Transportation Plan
	8.C.a · Administrative Edits to SFCTP Project List_October 27 2020
	8.C.b · College Park Project Maps & Lists_October 2020

	8.D · 8432 : Email License Payment for End Users
	8.D.a · City of College Park Option 1 -0365
	8.D.b · Microsoft Renewal

	10.A · 8426 : Policy Guidance Regarding Contracts for Special Events
	10.A.a · City of College Park Contracting Polices_FD Document
	10.A.b · CP Contracting Authority Ordinance
	10.A.c · Exhibit A- College Park Purchasing Policy 2020 (clean)
	10.A.d · College Park Purchasing Policy (redline)

	10.B · 8427 : Considerations Regarding Term Limits
	10.B.a · City Charter Term Limits and Procedures to Amend (memo)

	12.A · 8428 : Delinquent Property Tax Payers Update
	12.A.a · Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020
	12.A.b · Top Ten Delinq Property Tax Accounts 10262020 - 2018

	12.B · 8429 : Top 10 Delinquent Customers
	12.B.a · Top Ten Report 102720 - Redacted
	12.B.b · October 2020 Cut-on report 102720 - Redacted
	12.B.c · RF Aging 102620 Redacted
	12.B.d · CF Aging 102620 Redacted
	12.B.e · RC Aging 102620 Redacted
	12.B.f · CC  Aging 102720 Redacted



